From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Foley, Chris (CPC); Jonathan
Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns; So, Lydia (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MATT HANEY ANNOUNCE PLAN TO
EXPAND HOUSING PRIORITY TO CURRENT TREASURE ISLAND RESIDENTS

Date: Thursday, November 07, 2019 10:12:54 AM

Attachments: 11.07.19 Treasure Island Resident Relocation and Transition Benefits.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,

Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309,Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, November 07, 2019 10:11 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MATT HANEY
ANNOUNCE PLAN TO EXPAND HOUSING PRIORITY TO CURRENT TREASURE ISLAND RESIDENTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, November 7, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MATT HANEY
ANNOUNCE PLAN TO EXPAND HOUSING PRIORITY TO
CURRENT TREASURE ISLAND RESIDENTS

Relocation and transition benefits will be extended to all income-qualified residents currently
living on Treasure Island, even if they moved there after the Development Agreement was
enacted in 2011

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Matt Haney today announced
a plan to expand housing benefits to all current income-qualified Treasure Island residents.
This plan would ensure that all current Treasure Island residents have access to relocation and
transition benefits. Currently, only those who were living there prior to June 2011 have access
to these benefits.

In June 2011, the Treasure Island Development Authority approved a “Development and
Disposition Agreement” (DDA) that gave certain benefits to households that had leases on
Treasure Island as part of the project Development Agreement. Mayor Breed and Supervisor
Haney will move forward a plan to extend those benefits to residents of Treasure Island who
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LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, November 7, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
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

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Matt Haney today announced a
plan to expand housing benefits to all current income-qualified Treasure Island residents. This
plan would ensure that all current Treasure Island residents have access to relocation and
transition benefits. Currently, only those who were living there prior to June 2011 have access to
these benefits.

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
began their leases after June 29, 2011. Many households who are considered “post-DDA” have
lived on Treasure Island for eight years, and by the time the last of the Treasure Island residents
are relocated, they may have lived there for 20 years or more. Supervisor Haney introduced a
resolution urging the Treasure Island Development Authority to implement these changes, which
was approved this week by the Board of Supervisors.

“The housing being built on Treasure Island will provide thousands of badly needed new homes
in our City, but it’s important that we make sure that residents who live there now have access to
these new homes,” said Mayor Breed. “By extending these benefits to all income-qualified
Treasure Island residents, we can ensure that as this important project moves forward and this
incredible new neighborhood is created, people can take every opportunity to remain on Treasure
Island, if they wish to do so.”

“There is a large group of Treasure Island residents who are completely excluded from
replacement housing opportunities in the future development,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. “It is
our obligation to provide benefits for these residents who are being told to move by no fault of
their own. Some people have lived there for eight years now and the development won’t be
complete for another 10+ years. It is critical that we make changes to ensure that these residents
have priority access to the future development.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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The current Development Agreement gives households that have been on Treasure Island since
2011 the right to several different housing options in response to the development projects that
are underway. Households have the choice between:
1) Renting a newly constructed unit in a building and receiving moving assistance when the
move into the new unit;
2) Receiving down payment assistance to purchase a newly constructed unit on the Island
on the open market; or
3) Receiving an in-lieu payment and moving off the Island.

Mayor Breed and Supervisor Haney’s proposal would expand the arrangement to post-DDA
residents who income qualify into affordable housing that is newly constructed on Treasure
Island. Post-DDA residents would be prioritized after pre-DDA residents and ahead of members
of the public with no connection to the island. The new proposed agreement would include those
households on pre-marketing notice lists so they have the opportunity to purchase units before
they go to the general market.

Treasure Island is currently in the process of a 20-year development project to create 8,000 units
of housing, including over 2,000 units of affordable housing, with the first new building
scheduled to open in 2022. Approximately 1,800 residents in more than 600 households
currently live on Treasure Island, of which:

e Approximately 250 households live in supportive housing;

e 200 households currently fall under the existing TIDA agreement;

e 150 are considered post-DDA households.
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began their leases after June 29, 2011. Many households who are considered “post-DDA”
have lived on Treasure Island for eight years, and by the time the last of the Treasure Island
residents are relocated, they may have lived there for 20 years or more. Supervisor Haney
introduced a resolution urging the Treasure Island Development Authority to implement these
changes, which was approved this week by the Board of Supervisors.

“The housing being built on Treasure Island will provide thousands of badly needed new
homes in our City, but it’s important that we make sure that residents who live there now have
access to these new homes,” said Mayor Breed. “By extending these benefits to all income-
qualified Treasure Island residents, we can ensure that as this important project moves forward
and this incredible new neighborhood is created, people can take every opportunity to remain
on Treasure Island, if they wish to do so.”

“There is a large group of Treasure Island residents who are completely excluded from
replacement housing opportunities in the future development,” said Supervisor Matt Haney.
“It is our obligation to provide benefits for these residents who are being told to move by no
fault of their own. Some people have lived there for eight years now and the development
won’t be complete for another 10+ years. It is critical that we make changes to ensure that
these residents have priority access to the future development.”

The current Development Agreement gives households that have been on Treasure Island
since 2011 the right to several different housing options in response to the development
projects that are underway. Households have the choice between:
1. Renting a newly constructed unit in a building and receiving moving assistance when
the move into the new unit;
2. Receiving down payment assistance to purchase a newly constructed unit on the Island
on the open market; or
3. Receiving an in-lieu payment and moving off the Island.

Mayor Breed and Supervisor Haney’s proposal would expand the arrangement to post-DDA
residents who income qualify into affordable housing that is newly constructed on Treasure
Island. Post-DDA residents would be prioritized after pre-DDA residents and ahead of
members of the public with no connection to the island. The new proposed agreement would
include those households on pre-marketing notice lists so they have the opportunity to
purchase units before they go to the general market.

Treasure Island is currently in the process of a 20-year development project to create 8,000
units of housing, including over 2,000 units of affordable housing, with the first new building
scheduled to open in 2022. Approximately 1,800 residents in more than 600 households
currently live on Treasure Island, of which:

o Approximately 250 households live in supportive housing;

¢ 200 households currently fall under the existing TIDA agreement;

e 150 are considered post-DDA households.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 1776 Green Street 2018-011430CUA

Date: Thursday, November 07, 2019 9:48:13 AM

Attachments: 1776 Green Street 2018-011430CUA.pdf

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

From: Ben Libbey <ben@yesinmybackyard.org>

Sent: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 3:59 PM

Cc: May, Christopher (CPC) <christopher.may@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: 1776 Green Street 2018-011430CUA

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

11/6/2019

San Francisco Planning Commission
1 Dr Carlton Goodlett P1
San Francisco, CA 94102

christopher.may@sfgov.org; commissions.secretary@sfgov.org;
Via Email

Re: 1776 Green Street
2018-011430CUA

Dear San Francisco Planning Commission,

Yes In My Back Yard submits this letter to inform you that the San Francisco Planning
Commission has an obligation to abide by all relevant state housing laws when evaluating the
above captioned proposal, including the Housing Accountability Act (HAA).

California Government Code § 65589.5, the Housing Accountability Act, prohibits localities
from denying housing development projects that are compliant with the locality’s zoning
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Yes In My Back Yard

1260 Mission St
San Francisco, CA 94103

hello@vimbylaw.org

11/6/2019

San Francisco Planning Commission
1 Dr Carlton Goodlett Pl
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
Commission has an obligation to abide by all relevant state housing laws when
evaluating the above captioned proposal, including the Housing Accountability Act
(HAA).

California Government Code § 65589.5, the Housing Accountability Act, prohibits
localities from denying housing development projects that are compliant with the
locality’s zoning ordinance or general plan at the time the application was deemed
complete, unless the locality can make findings that the proposed housing
development would be a threat to public health and safety. The most relevant section
is copied below:

(j) When a proposed housing development project complies with applicable,
objective general plan and zoning standards and criteria, including design
review standards, in effect at the time that the housing development project's
application is determined to be complete, but the local agency proposes to
disapprove the project or to approve it upon the condition that the project be
developed at a lower density, the local agency shall base its decision regarding
the proposed housing development project upon written findings supported by
substantial evidence on the record that both of the following conditions exist:

(1) The housing development project would have a specific, adverse
impact upon the public health or safety unless the project is disapproved
or approved upon the condition that the project be developed at a lower
density. As used in this paragraph, a "specific, adverse impact' means a
significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on
objective, identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or
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The applicant proposes the construction of a two-story vertical addition and change
of use from an automobile repair garage to a residential building with five 3-bedroom
units, 10 below-grade off-street parking spaces, and five Class 1 bicycle parking

spaces..

The above captioned proposal is zoning compliant and general plan compliant,
therefore, your local agency must approve the application, or else make findings to
the effect that the proposed project would have an adverse impact on public health

conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed
complete.

(2) There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the
adverse impact identified pursuant to paragraph (1), other than the
disapproval of the housing development project or the approval of the
project upon the condition that it be developed at a lower density.

(4) For purposes of this section, a proposed housing development project
is not inconsistent with the applicable zoning standards and criteria, and
shall not require a rezoning, if the housing development project is
consistent with the objective general plan standards and criteria but the
zoning for the project site is inconsistent with the general plan. If the local
agency has complied with paragraph (2), the local agency may require the
proposed housing development project to comply with the objective
standards and criteria of the zoning which is consistent with the general
plan, however, the standards and criteria shall be applied to facilitate and
accommodate development at the density allowed on the site by the
general plan and proposed by the proposed housing development project.

and safety, as described above.

Yes In My Back Yard is a 501(c)3 non-profit corporation, whose mission is to increase

the accessibility and affordability of housing in California.

Sincerely,

A

Sonja Trauss
Secretary

Nanss

Yes In My Back Yard

YIMBY Law, 1260 Mission St, San Francisco, CA 94103






ordinance or general plan at the time the application was deemed complete, unless the locality
can make findings that the proposed housing development would be a threat to public health
and safety. The most relevant section is copied below:

(j) When a proposed housing development project complies with applicable, objective general plan and
zoning standards and criteria, including design review standards, in effect at the time that the housing
development project's application is determined to be complete, but the local agency proposes to
disapprove the project or to approve it upon the condition that the project be developed at a lower
density, the local agency shall base its decision regarding the proposed housing development project
upon written findings supported by substantial evidence on the record that both of the following
conditions exist:

(1) The housing development project would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public
health or safety unless the project is disapproved or approved upon the condition that the project
be developed at a lower density. As used in this paragraph, a "specific, adverse impact" means a
significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified written
public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the
application was deemed complete.

(2) There is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the adverse impact identified
pursuant to paragraph (1), other than the disapproval of the housing development project or the
approval of the project upon the condition that it be developed at a lower density.

(4) For purposes of this section, a proposed housing development project is not inconsistent with
the applicable zoning standards and criteria, and shall not require a rezoning, if the housing
development project is consistent with the objective general plan standards and criteria but the
zoning for the project site is inconsistent with the general plan. If the local agency has complied
with paragraph (2), the local agency may require the proposed housing development project to
comply with the objective standards and criteria of the zoning which is consistent with the
general plan, however, the standards and criteria shall be applied to facilitate and accommodate
development at the density allowed on the site by the general plan and proposed by the proposed
housing development project.

The applicant proposes the construction of a two-story vertical addition and change of use
from an automobile repair garage to a residential building with five 3-bedroom units, 10
below-grade off-street parking spaces, and five Class 1 bicycle parking spaces..

The above captioned proposal is zoning compliant and general plan compliant, therefore, your
local agency must approve the application, or else make findings to the effect that the
proposed project would have an adverse impact on public health and safety, as described
above.

Yes In My Back Yard is a 501(c)3 non-profit corporation, whose mission is to increase the
accessibility and affordability of housing in California.

Sincerely,



Sonja Trauss
Secretary
Yes In My Back Yard



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Support for 3945 Judah St (2018-000468CUA/AHB/ENV)
Date: Thursday, November 07, 2019 9:40:38 AM

Attachments: 3945 Judah St.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309]Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Westside = best side! <westsidebestsidesf@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, November 07, 2019 1:24 AM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC) <gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>; BRENDAN QUINLAN
<quinlanz@comcast.net>

Subject: Support for 3945 Judah St (2018-000468CUA/AHB/ENV)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.
Dear Planning Commissioners,

Please find attached the formal letter of support from our neighborhood group for 3945 Judah St, a
Home-SF proposal which will be heard before you today, November 7th.

In short: please approve it.
Thank you,
Jimmy La

Westside = best side! organizer
Sunset District resident
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ﬁﬁ Westside = best side! HHHH

Phone: 415.779.2031 | Email: westsidebestsidesf(@gmail.com

Re: 3945 Judah St/ Case no.: 2018-000468CUA/AHB/ENV
November 7", 2019 meeting (Item #16)

Position: APPROVE

Dear Planning Commissioners,

On behalf of the 300+ neighbors who joined us and support the work we do on the West Side of
San Francisco, we are asking you to approve the Home-SF proposal at 3945 Judah St.

This is a brilliant project: it is in the right place, at the right time (if not a little too late), and using
the right affordability tools.

First, the “who?”. This proposal is spearheaded by Brendan Quinlan. We have met him. We
have talked with him many times. Brendan is not only a westside neighbor, but a local home
builder who has been working in and learning about construction in San Francisco, and its
specificities, for more than 3 decades. Brendan and his business are exactly the kind of people
we want to empower building more homes in this City.

Then, the “where?”. Our beautiful and beloved Outer Sunset. Five blocks from Ocean Beach,
some local folks call this area LaPlaya Park. Right on one of the most vibrant transit and
commercial corridors of the West Side. Replacing one of the ugliest vacant lots in the entire
City. Seriously, it is visual blight exemplified: a former gas station falling into ruins, surrounded
by an ugly chain link fence that is rusting from the fog and sea air. It looks like the set of an
apocalyptic movie. No more!

This brings us to the “what?”. A beautifully designed 5-story apartment building that will bring 20
new homes and 2 ground floor commercial units to the neighborhood. This height will actually
blend quite well with its surroundings. As we reminded you two years ago when the Planning
Commission approved a 4-story apartment building at 3601 Lawton St, which is 3 blocks away,
there are more than 50* existing apartment buildings that are 3 or 4 stories in a 10-minute walk
radius. Anyway, 3945 Judah St will also be a good mix of apartment sizes, including some
family-friendly 2- and 3-bedroom units. Seven underground parking spaces, which we think is
probably seven too many...

Yes, parking. Let’'s pause on this for a minute. Why, in the middle of a climate crisis and one
year after San Francisco eliminated minimum parking requirements, are we requiring off-street





underground parking in this building? Simply by removing the curb cuts, this proposal adds 6
new on-street parking spots. Isn’'t it enough already? We still remember you, the Planning
Commissioners, lamenting the too many underground parking spots that would sit empty at
3601 Lawton St. This proposal is even closer to transit. One block away from the north/south 18
bus line and literally, right on the east/west N-Judah streetcar and NX express bus lines.

Now, to finish, the “how?”. Our neighborhood group was created when a bunch of neighbors
decided to band together to organize and show that there was broad support for Home-SF (at
the time still named AHBP, for Affordable Housing Bonus Program) in the Sunset. We helped
get this legislation past the finish line, so we are now very excited to see it used in our own
backyard, for the first time. What does Home-SF mean for 3945 Judah St? Before, this project
would have been 6 units only. 0% below-market rate. Thanks to the density bonus provided by
Home-SF, this proposal can now offer 20 new homes, including 5 at below-market rate. That’s
25% affordable, something that never happened previously on the west side. We wished that
the project sponsor would have decided to add a second additional “bonus” story so that we
could get 2 more below-market rate units and 30% deed-restricted affordability. But no more
delay, let's approve it already. We can also add that, thanks to the density decontrol allowed by
Home-SF, even the market rate units will be “affordable by design” compared to the market-rate
luxury single-family homes nearby.

As you may have seen already from the correspondence you have received so far from
members of the community, there is tremendous neighborhood support for this Home-SF
proposal, and virtually no opposition.

Let's not wait any longer. Let's send a signal to all those local midsize multi-family home
builders that if they want to build more affordable housing using Home-SF in our neighborhoods,
your Commission will welcome those with a resounding “yes”. Please approve this proposal.

Thank you,

Jimmy La
Sunset District resident and organizer

* sorry, we stopped counting once we reached 50






NOTICE OF INTENT TO REQUEST RELEASE OF FUNDS; FINAL NOTICE AND
PUBLIC EXPLANATION OF A PROPOSED ACTIVITY IN A 100-YEAR
FLOODPLAIN; AND NOTICE OF FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

RECEIVED

NOV -1 2019
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
City and County of San Francisco CITY & COUNTY OF g,
1 South Van Ness Avenue, 5th Floor LANN'%%&E;’?;RW ENT
San Francisco, CA 94103
415-701-5598

October 31, 2019

These notices shall satisfy three separate but related procedural requirements for activities
to be undertaken by the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development

L REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS

On or about November 19, 2019 the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development of
the City and County of San Francisco (MOHCD) will authorize the San Francisco Housing
Authority (SFHA) to submit a request to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public Housing for the release of Shelter Plus Care Program Funds, to undertake a project
known as Parcel C3.1 Affordable Housing on Treasure Island, in San Francisco, California.

The project would develop a 138-unit building to provide replacement housing for existing units
(serving formerly homeless residents) managed by Catholic Charities on Treasure Island, along
with affordable units for residents designed to serve Pre-Disposition and Development Agreement
(Pre-DDA) residents; that is, for Treasure Island households in residence as of July 2011 when the
Treasure Island DDA was executed. This category provides replacement housing and reduces
displacement for existing Treasure Island residents. The building would provide a mix of one-,
two-, three- and four-bedroom apartments. The building design has units and common amenities
arranged around a second-floor courtyard above the ground floor level. The ground floor would
include a number of units along with building services, community space, bike and car parking,
and various utilities, storage and maintenance rooms. There would be 27 vehicle parking spots for
staff and some residents (3 electric vehicle-installed + 24 electric vehicle-ready,) and 138 Class-1
bicycle parking.

This site is located on Parcel C3.1, which is the northeastern portion of Parcel C3, a mostly flat
site bounded by Avenue C, 6th Street, Parcel C3.2, Parcel C3.3 (and the adjacent midblock alleys),
all yet to be developed. The construction five stories of Type III-A construction located over two
story Type I for a portion of the site, and then three stories Type V-A construction located over
Type I for the other portion.

II. FINAL NOTICE AND PUBLIC EXPLANATION OF A PROPOSED
ACTIVITY IN A 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

MOHCD has conducted an evaluation as required by Executive Order 11988, in accordance with
HUD regulations at 24 CFR §55.20 Subpart C Procedures for Making Determinations on
Floodplain Management, to determine the potential effect that the activity in the proposed
floodplain will have on the human environment for the Parcel C3.1 Affordable Housing Project.

MOHCD has considered the following alternatives and mitigation measures to be taken to
minimize adverse impacts and to restore and preserve natural and beneficial values: (1) The parcels
cannot cause current City residents to become displaced; they are within City limits in order for
grants to be used by MOHCD and the co-sponsors; they are within the Treasure Island Major Phase
1 Redevelopment Area, and within a baseline mapped affordable housing site to meet the
affordable housing and phasing requirements of the larger plan area; and; the site is available and
can accommodate the 138 affordable housing units proposed by the co-sponsors, with access to
public services. (ii) The following alternatives were considered and determined to be
impracticable: Alternative l.a, 1.b, and 1.c, Locate the Project Outside of the Floodplain is
impracticable due to limited availability within the required area, small lot sizes, and lack of



current ownership by, or availability to the co-sponsors; Alternative 2, Alternate Action: Locate
and Modify the Project Layout within the Floodplain, is impracticable as locating the project
within the floodplain with a modified and reduced footprint would fail to provide 138 affordable
units within the larger Treasure Island Major Phase 1 Redevelopment Area; and Alternative 3, No
Action Alternative is impracticable because it would not include raising the base elevation, as
discussed below, and would present continued risk to human life and property, and risks feasibility
of full buildout due to increased costs, (ii1) the following project mitigation measures are proposed:
1) Project Mitigation Measure 1: Construction above the BFE, and; 2) Project Mitigation Measure
2: FEMA Map Revision. In sum, these two measures would reduce risk to life and property and
would not impact the existing use of the site, which currently does not serve as a floodplain in a
manner compliant with state and local floodplain protection procedures.

MOHCD has reevaluated the alternatives to building in the floodplain. The project has been
modified and proposes mitigation to elevate the site so that structures are located outside of the
floodplain. Environmental files that document compliance with steps 1 through 8 of Executive
Order 11988 are available for public inspection, review and copying upon request at the times and
location delineated in the Section III of this notice for receipt of comments. Based on the analysis
of the EA, this activity will have no significant impact on the environment as all impacts are
mitigatable and elevating the site above the anticipated BFE would not interfere with future water
patterns.

There are three primary purposes for this notice. First, people who may be affected by activities in
floodplains and those who have an interest in the protection of the natural environment should be
given an opportunity to express their concerns and provide information about these areas. Second,
an adequate public notice program can be an important public educational tool. The dissemination
of information about floodplains can facilitate and enhance federal efforts to reduce the risks
associated with the occupancy and modification of these special areas. Third, as a matter of
fairness, when the federal government determines it will participate in actions taking place in
floodplains, it must inform those who may be put at greater or continued risk.

III. FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

The Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development has determined that the project will
have no significant impact on the human environment. Therefore, an Environmental Impact
Statement under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) is not required.
Additional project information is contained in the Environmental Review Record (ERR) on file at
the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 5th
Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103 and may be examined or copied weekdays 9 A.M to 5 P.M. The
ERR can also be viewed at the MOHCD website at https.//sfmohcd.org/environmental-reviews.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any individual, group, or agency may submit written comments on the ERR to the Mayor’s Office
of Housing and Community Development, City and County of San Francisco, 1 South Van Ness
Avenue, 5th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103, attn.: Eugene Flannery or to
Eugene.flannery@sfgov.org. All comments received by 5:00 pm on November 18, 2019 will be
considered by the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development prior to authorizing
submission of a request for release of funds. Comments should specify which Notice they are
addressing.

V. ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION

The City and County of San Francisco Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
certifies to HUD that Daniel Adams, in her capacity as Acting Director of the Mayor’s Office of
Housing and Community Development, consents to accept the jurisdiction of the Federal Courts
if an action is brought to enforce responsibilities in relation to the environmental review process
and that these responsibilities have been satisfied. HUD’s approval of the certification satisfies its
responsibilities under NEPA and related laws and authorities and allows the Mayor’s Office of
Housing and Community Development to use Program funds.



VI. OBJECTIONS TO RELEASE OF FUNDS

HUD will accept objections to the Responsible Entity’s (RE) Request for Release of Funds and
Environmental Certification for a period of fifteen days following the anticipated submission date
specified above or its actual receipt of the request (whichever is later) only if they are on one of
the following bases: (a) the certification was not executed by the Certifying Officer of the Mayor’s
Office of Housing and Community Development; (b) the Mayor’s Office of Housing and
Community Development has omitted a step or failed to make a decision or finding required by
HUD regulations at 24 CFR part 58 or by CEQ regulations at 40 CFR 1500-1508, as applicable;
(c) the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development has omitted one or more steps
in the preparation, completion or publication of the Environmental Assessment or Environmental
Impact Study per 24 CFR Subparts E, F or G of Part 58, as applicable; (d) the grant recipient or
other participant in the development process has committed funds for or undertaken activities not
authorized by 24 CFR Part 58 before release of funds and approval of the environmental
certification; (e) another Federal, State or local agency has submitted a written finding that the
project is unsatisfactory from the standpoint of environmental quality. Objections must be
prepared and submitted in accordance with the required procedures (24 CFR Part 58, Sec. 58.76)
and shall be addressed to Director, Public and Indian Housing, United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development, 1 Sansome St #1200, San Francisco, CA 94104. Potential
objectors should contact Director, Public and Indian Housing , San Francisco Regional Office —
Region IX, One Sansome Street, Suite 1200 San Francisco, California 94104-4430 to verify the
actual last day of the objection period.

Daniel Adams
Director, Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
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PLANNING DE‘:J’L\;ME hﬁ' S.F
President Myrna Melgar (myrna.melgar@sfgov.org) CRC/HPC

Vice-President Joel Koppel (joel.koppel.sfgov.org)
Commissioner Frank Fung (frank.fung@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Milicent A Johnson (milicent.johnson@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Kathrin Moore (kathrin.moore@sfgov.orq)
Commissioner Dennis Richards (dennis.richards@sfqov.org)
San Francisco Planning Commission

c/o Jonas P. lonin (jonas.ionin@sfgov.org)
Commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Christopher May, Senior Planner
San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Email: christopher.may@sfgov.org

Re: 1776 Green Street: Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR.
President Melgar, Honorable Members of the Planning Commission and Mr. May:

| am writing on behalf of The Hollow Revolution (“THoR"), an association of
neighbors living near 1776 Green Street, San Francisco, California, concerning a
proposed project (“Project”) at 1776 Green Street, Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR. The
matter is scheduled for hearing by the Planning Commission and Zoning Administrator on
November 7, 2019. We hereby ask that the Planning Commission continue the matter for
30 days to allow for adequate review and comment on the CEQA Categorical Exemption
that was issued only two days ago on October 30, 2019.

THoR submitted a comment letter to the Planning Department on May 28, 2019
(attached). The letter raised concerns that the Project involves destroying most of an
historic building, requires extensive excavation of soil on a site listed on the City’'s Maher
Map due to almost 100 years of use as an auto repair shop, and other issues. The City
has not responded to that letter. Instead, only two days ago, on October 30, 2019, the
City issued a Categorical Exemption under CEQA, and then scheduled the Project for
hearing before the Planning Commission on November 7, 2019. This provides the
neighbors with only one week to review and comment on the Categorical Exemption,
which is plainly inadequate given the significant interests at stake and the significant level



1776 Green Street
May 28, 2019
Page 2 of 2

of community concern. THoR therefore requests that the Commission continue
consideration of this matter for at least thirty days to allow for a reasonable review and
comment period. Thank you for considering this request.

Sincerely,

I
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Richard Toshiyuki Drury /,'
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BY E-MAIL AND OVERNIGHT MAIL
May 28, 2019

Christopher May, Senior Planner
San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Email: christopher.may@sfgov.org

RE: 1776 Green Street

Dear Mr. May:

| am writing on behalf of The Hollow Revolution (“THoR”), an association of
neighbors living near 1776 Green Street, San Francisco, California, concerning certain
applications filed with the Planning Department to convert the existing automotive garage
at 1776 Green Street (built in 1914) to a new residential development consisting of five
market rate three-bedroom units with a two-story addition and street level commercial
space (“Project’).

l. Introduction

THoR is reaching out to the Planning Department early to outline its initial
concerns about the proposed Project. The proposed Project would be a relatively large
residential development on a quiet street. Specifically, THoR wants to ensure that any
new development at 1776 Green Street:

1. Does not require legal work-arounds like variances and conditional use
permits but rather is consistent with San Francisco’s general plan for open
space, setbacks, density, massing and height;

2. Properly handles and disposes of all hazardous materials prior to any
demolition or construction work consistent with San Francisco’s Health
Code Article 22A ("Maher Ordinance”);

3. Maintains and protects the existing building’s historic character; and,

4. Fully complies with the California Environmental Quality Act (*“CEQA”).
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The developer was required to contact the members of THoR for a “pre-
application” meeting.! A pre-application meeting is mandatory in this case because it
serves as the “first step in the process prior to building permit applications or
entitlements.”? The pre-application meeting gives proximate neighbors an opportunity to
learn the details of a proposed project from the developer directly.® In particular, the
developer initiates neighbor communication to identify issues and concerns early on in
order to address any potential problems with the project prior to submitting an application.

Contrary to ordinance, the developer chose not to contact many of the Project’s
neighbors until March 22, 2019, more than six months after it submitted it approval
applications to the City, despite the presence of neighbors living directly next door to the
subject property. The developer, Local Capital Group, purportedly held a pre-application
meeting on July 18, 2018 but included only a select group of residents. Therefore, many
of the members of THoR, and other neighbors have had no meaningful dialogue with the
developer and the only information they have on the proposed development is what can
be gleaned from San Francisco websites. Because the developer excluded its neighbors
from the informal, pre-application process, THoR now raises their concerns about the
proposed development with the Planning Department before any aspects of the project
are finalized.

Il Project Description

It appears on Aug 06, 2018, the Planning Department received four permit
applications for a proposed development described as:

“1776 Green Street is an existing auto garage originally constructed in 1914. The
proposal is to maintain the existing garage walls and construct 5 new residential
units within the existing structure and in a two-story addition. One neighborhood
serving commercial space will be provided at the ground floor. The project will
enhance provisions of the General Plan by preserving neighborhood character;
preserving an existing historic structure; providing 5 new housing units; and adding
a locally serving commercial space to enhance the existing adjacent Union Street
Commercial District.”

According to the applications, the five residential units will constitute a total of 17,673 sqg/ft
with 4,803 sq/ft of parking and 963 sq/ft of ground level retail. Reported open space

" Projects subject to 311 notification:

» New Construction;

* Any vertical addition of 7 feet or more;

* Any horizontal addition of 10 feet or more;

» Decks over 10 feet above grade or within the required rear yard;

« All Formula Retail uses subject to a Conditional Use Authorization;
« Community Business Priority Processing (CB3P);

« Projects in PDR-1-B Districts subject to Section 313.

Z See http://forms sfplanning.org/Pre-Application Meeting Form.pdf.
31d.
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would be 3,891 sqg/ft.* Please let us know if the project description has been modified or
updated in any manner.

. Neighbors’ Concerns

THoR’s overarching concern is the overall size of the proposed development as
compared to the size of existing building and the parcel size itself.

A. Variance from Open-Space Requirements

The developer is requesting a variance in order to provide less rear yard and
frontal set-back space than is legally required in San Francisco.® Neighbors understand
that front setbacks may not be feasible due to the historic fagade’s at-sidewalk
configuration. However, that limitation only reinforces the need for adequate rear yard
open space. It appears the developer may be more interested in maximizing the number
of units and each unit’s size over providing City-mandated open space.

In order to receive a variance, the developer must show special circumstances that
would make it difficult for the project to meet the Planning Department’s requirements.
More specifically, variances may only be granted when the strict application of the zoning
ordinance would deprive a property owner of privileges enjoyed by other property owners
in the vicinity under the same zoning classification because of special circumstances
applicable to the specific property such as size, shape, topography, location, or
surroundings.® Gov. Code §65906; Eskeland v. City of Del Mar, 224 Cal.App.4th 936, 946
(2014), see also, Topanga Ass’n v. County of Los Angeles, 11 Cal.3d 506, 518 (1974)
(written findings required).

For this determination, the San Francisco Zoning Code requires the zoning
administrator to make five specific findings, based on the developer’s evidence, that a
variance is warranted. The findings are:

1. There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances applying to the property
involved or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other
property or uses in the same class of district;

4 The four applications are:
1. Application No. 2018-011430VAR
2. Application N0.2018-011430CUA
3. Application No. 2018-011430ENV
4. Application No. 2018-011430PRJ

5 See application No. 2018-011430VAR.
6 Gov. Code §65906.
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2. Based on the exceptional or extraordinary circumstances, the literal enforcement of
the Code provisions would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship not
created by or attributable to the applicant or the owner of the property;

3. The variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial
property right of the subject property, possessed by other property in the same
class of district;

4. That the granting of such variance will not be materially detrimental to the public
welfare or materially injurious to the property or improvements in the vicinity; and,

5. That the granting of such variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and
intent of this Code and will not adversely affect the Master Plan.

The developer has the burden of showing, based on substantial evidence that it cannot
comply with the Code.”

Given the size of the parcel and existing structure, it is hard to see how the plain
and literal interpretation and enforcement of the Code would “result in practical difficulties,
unnecessary hardships,” or where denial of the variance “would be inconsistent with the
general purpose of the Code.” There does not appear to be anything particularly unusual
about the configuration of the building or parcel justifying a deviation from the law. In fact,
the most extraordinary aspect of the building is its historic character. The developer
should not be granted a variance in order to spoil the only exceptional attribute of 1776
Green Street, especially because this detail was surely obvious at purchase.

B. Conditional Use Permit

The developer is also requesting a conditional use permit, presumably due to the
size and density of the proposed development.® Similar to the request for a variance, the
developer has chosen to submit plans inconsistent with legal requirements. Developers
should endeavor to propose projects that conform to the law rather than presuming
developments will receive a work-around from the City. Land use laws are based on
important public interest considerations such as safety, affordability, livability, community
character and diversity. There is no evidence this project would enhance such
considerations. For example, in relation to the proposal the developer must show, among
other things that:

7 See, Orinda Ass'n v. Bd. of Supervisors, 182 Cal.App.3d 1145 (1986) (facts did not justify a variance since
property was not substantially different from other parcels in the same zone).
8 See application No. 2018-011430CUA.
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¢ Existing housing and neighborhood character would be conserved and protected in
order to preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods;

¢ The City’s supply of affordable housing would be preserved and enhanced,;

e Landmarks and historic buildings would be preserved;

e Our parks and open space and our access to sunlight and vistas would be
protected from development.®

For both the variance and conditional use requests, the City must assume the
developer examined the Code requirements before purchasing the property and
determined he could enjoy a reasonable return on his investment without any Code
variances or conditional uses. Therefore, the development should comply with the law so
that the City’s broader public policy considerations are enforced.

C. On Site Hazardous Waste Considerations

According to the project application, the site contains hazardous materials or
waste.'? Specifically, the project site is located on the Maher map; would involve ground
disturbance of at least 275 cubic yards; would be a change from an industrial use to a
residential use; and, was a longstanding former auto repair business. All of these factors
indicate the need for site assessment and potential remediation. And no wonder, 1776
Green Street was an automotive repair shop for approximately a century, operating for
decades when the open dumping of hazardous materials was the norm and governmental
regulation of hazard chemicals was nearly non-existent.

Under San Francisco’'s Health Code Article 22A, the "Maher Ordinance,” the San
Francisco Department of Public Health regulates hazardous substances in soil and
groundwater at properties with industrial use histories. Under the Maher Ordinance, the
developer must provide to the City:

1. A site history to show whether there is a record of hazardous substances in the
soil or ground water at the site.

2. If there is evidence of contamination, a work plan for a subsurface investigation
must be submitted to the Director of Health.

3. If the subsurface investigation report indicates that soil or groundwater samples
have hazardous substances present, the developer must submit a site

® http://forms.sfplanning.ora/CUA Application.pdf citing relevant findings necessary for a conditional use.
0 No. 2018-011430PRJ.
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mitigation plan describing handling, management and mitigation of the
contamination.

4. A final project report must contain a site mitigation plan and describe
implementation and material disposal documentation. The Director then
provides a notification that the applicant has completed and complied with
Article 22A.

THoR is concerned about dispersal of heavy metals such as lead, solvents,
asbestos and other airborne hazardous materials during demolition and project
construction. Without proper identification and a City-approved remediation plan, workers,
future residents, and neighbors may be exposed to these chemicals through inhalation
and dermal contact. We strongly urge the City to ensure full oversight over this process.

D. Historic Resource Value

According to the City’s Historic Resource Evaluation, 1776 Green Street is eligible
for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources based on its Classic Revival
style.’ The building was completed the same year as the Panama-Pacific International
Exhibition and was an early automobile-oriented building constructed contemporaneously
with the exhibition.?

As it sits, the current building holds “a high degree of its [architectural] integrity and
continues to convey its individual significance.”3 In lay terms, it is a unique and charming
building that should not be significantly altered in order to squeeze in an overlarge use
into its four corners. Instead, the City should approve a size-appropriate and fitting use in
order to preserve its architectural integrity and value. Too often developers’ promises to
maintain a building’s aesthetic qualities fall by the wayside once project construction is
underway. That must not happen here. The project application acknowledges that the
developer wants to change the front fagade. Again, this is a unique and historic building,
the aesthetics of which should not be altered so that a developer can construct luxury
condo units.

" Historic Resource Evaluation Response at p. 5.
21d. at p. 4.
3 San Francisco Planning Department, Historic Resource Evaluation Response, at p. 5 (Dec.5, 2018).
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E. California Environmental Quality Act

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) ensures that all development
projects in San Francisco avoid or minimize environmental impacts to the extent feasible.
To date, the City has not issued any determination or analysis under the act, therefore we
take this opportunity to request that the City conduct in-depth analyses on:

s The historic value of 1776 Green Street including ways project alternatives
to ensure the building’s architectural integrity is fully maintained;

2. Site contamination and remediation— the project site is located on the
Maher map; would involve ground disturbance of at least 275 cubic yards of
soil; would be a change from an industrial use to a residential use; and, was
a longstanding former auto repair business. The same facts that made the
proposed project subject to Health Code Article 22A, also subject it to full
CEQA review; and

58 Full compliance with San Francisco’s building code and general plan.

Because the Project site includes an historic building, the Project may not be
exempted from CEQA review. Pub. Res. Code §21084.1. Also, because the Project is
on the City’s Maher Map and contains potentially contaminated soil, it may not be
exempted from CEQA review. See, Association for a Cleaner Environment v. Yosemite
Comm. College, 110 Cal. App.4th 629 (2004) (presence of hazardous materials makes
CEQA exemption improper). CEQA review must be required to mitigate the proposed
Project’s impacts related to historic resources and potentially contaminated soil.

V. Conclusion

The members of THoR understand that the proposed Project has yet to be
finalized and is not currently available for public comment. Nevertheless, we believe that
early involvement can be the most efficient and least contentious path for providing
meaningful feedback on a proposed development. It is unfortunate the developer in this
case chose to bypass that opportunity with most of the affected community. We sincerely
hope that this letter opens up a meaningful dialogue between the City and the neighbors
who would be directly impacted by construction at 1776 Green Street.

I
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Thank you for your consideration of our comments and concerns. Please do not
hesitate to contact me with any questions about this letter.

Sincerely,

Fdl |
|
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Richard Toshiyuki Drury /
LOZEAU DRURY LLP



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 1776 Green St Project

Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 3:08:37 PM
Attachments: 1776 Green St. Salem Mansoir.pdf

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

From: sdmansoir@gmail.com <sdmansoir@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 3:06 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; May, Christopher (CPC)
<christopher.may@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: 1776 Green St Project

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Honorable Members of the Planning Commission,

Please find attached my letter in opposition of the Project at 1776 Green St.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Thank you,

Salem Mansoir

sdmansoir@gmail.com
408.838.0961 cell


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
http://gmail.com/

BY EMAIL AND OVERNIGHT MAIL

Salem D. Mansoir

2724 Octavia St.

San Francisco, CA 94123
(408) 838-0961

November 6, 2019

President Myrna Melgar (myrna.melgar@sfgov.org)
Vice-President Joel Koppel (joel. koppel.sfgov.org)
Commissioner Frank Fung (frank.fung@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Milicent A Johnson (milicent.johnson@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Kathrin Moore (kathrin.moore@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Dennis Richards (dennis.richards@sfgov.org)
San Francisco Planning Commission

c/o Jonas P. lonin (jonas.ionin@sfgov.org)
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Christopher May, Senior Planner
San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

RE: 1776 Green St. Project Record - 2018-001430CUAVAR
Honorable members of the Planning Commission,

I am writing this letter to express my strong opposition to the proposed project (“Project”) located
at 1776 Green St. San Francisco, California. | am a 20-year resident at 2724 Octavia St., located
along the west side of the Project. | am particularly concerned with what appears to be inadequate
consideration of serious problems posed by this Project. Profoundly, the environmental hazards!

As a parent of three young children, chemicals that are known to cause functional and organic
damaoe during critical perindc an:\rly dmmlnpmenf are of grave concern. In my Qpi[li()!l,. this

damage during critica ods of early develo tareo e conce
project is considered “spot zoning” and only serves to benefit the developer and does not contribute
to the dire need of affordable housing. The impact of developing so many “out of scale” buildings in

neighborhoods throughout San Francisco has significant effects on the quality of life for residents.

My concerns, specifically:

A. Public Health and Safety | Hazardous Materials or Waste

The Project site is located on the Maher map containing hazardous materials and highly
contaminated soil from a former automotive repair and collision business, dumping carcinogenic
chemicals for nearly a century. Additionally, during reconstruction after the 1906 Earthquake
landfill was used that contained lead. Pursuant to Article 22A of San Francisco’s Health Code,
“Maher Ordinance,” a proposed development site which involves at least 50 cubic yards of ground





disturbance requires soil sample test and subsurface analyses report. Phase 1 & Phase 2
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) are needed in order to proceed. Conversely, if the project is
exempt from Maher under CEQA Class 1. Existing Facilities, then the additions to the project cannot
exceed 10,000 sq. ft. According to the Project details, total livable space exceeds 10,000 sq. ft. by
more than 8,000 sq. ft.

Section 15301 (e) Additions to existing structures provided that the additions will not
result in an increase more than:
(2) 10,000 square feet if:
(A) The project is in an area where all public services and facilities are
available to allow for maximum development permissible in the General Plan,
AND
(B) The area in which the project is located is not environmentally sensitive.

Why hasn’t the Planning Department completed the administrative actions required by CEQA under
San Francisco Administrative Code 34.01 (h) prior to any formal Conditional Use Authorization?
This is a serious public health and safety matter and I urge the Commission to stop this Project
immediately in order to assess the site for harmful chemicals and propose to clean it up bringing it
to residential standards.

B. Variance for Rear Yard Setback

[ urge the Commission to deny the request for a rear-yard variance and rather create open space
which provides natural light and ventilation at the back of the lot as mandated in Planning Code
Sections 130 & 134. This is more appropriate for the neighborhood and serves the residents of the
Project. The developer is requesting a variance in order to provide less set back space than is
legally require in San Francisco in order to turn the square footage into profit.

C. Height Variance| Communal Roof Deck | Privacy & Noise

Given the size, density and height of this project, it does not fit the neighborhood character and is
outside the RH2 designation. The current height variation request will pose serious shadow impact
on adjacent residential properties to the west and eliminate windows in the building (1770 Green)

to the east. Issues of privacy, light and noise will disrupt the surrounding dwelling with communal

roof decks, penthouses and height allowance.

Each of the five units has its own private usable open space via terraces and decks well in excess of
the Planning Code requirements (94 to 387 sq. ft. larger than the 125 sq. ft. required per unit).
Consequently, the 1369 sq. ft. common roof deck is unnecessary and excessive. Given that each unit
has private usable open space ranging from 219 sq. ft. to 512 sq. ft. per unit, we're concerned that
the common roof deck will mostly be used for large parties, thereby creating substantial noise and
disturbances and compromising the privacy of neighbors. Furthermore, immediately adjacent to
the Project to the east is a seven-story apartment building which will further amplify the noise from
the roof deck.





The 13-foot elevator penthouse adversely impacts this historic resource. The plans contemplate an
elevator shaft that would rise above 13 feet above the forty-foot elevation limit, which looks
awkwardly out of place and should not be granted. The Project Sponsor should explore alternative
elevator systems that would not require the exceedance of the forty foot elevation limit. [ urge the
Commission to eliminate the Project’s communal roof deck and deny the height variance.

Developing this site from an industrial building to residential will better serve the community by
keeping the Project’s current building envelope and preserving its historic value in keeping with the
existing housing and neighborhood character.

Thank you for providing the opportunity for me to express serious concern over this project.

Sincerely,
\

Salem Mansoir






From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 1776 Green Street: Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR. | Letter of Opposition from Neighbor
Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 3:04:23 PM

Attachments: 1776 Green letter Letitia Yang 20191106.pdf

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

From: Letitia Yang <letitia.yang@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 11:41 AM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; May, Christopher (CPC)
<christopher.may@sfgov.org>

Subject: 1776 Green Street: Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR. | Letter of Opposition from Neighbor

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

BY EMAIL AND OVERNIGHT MAIL

November 6, 2019

President Myrna Melgar (myrna.melgar@sfgov.org)
Vice-President Joel Koppel (joel.koppel@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Frank Fung (frank.fung@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Milicent A. Johnson (milicent.johnson@sfgov.org)
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
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Letitia Yang
1769 Green Street
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

Christopher May, Senior Planner (christopher.may@sfgov.org)
San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400

San Francisco, CA 94103

Re: 1776 Green Street: Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR.
Dear President Melgar, Honorable Members of the Planning Commission and Mr. May,

| live directly across from 1776 Green Street, San Francisco, California and am writing to you regarding
the proposed project (“Project”) at 1776 Green Street, Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR. | am opposed to
the project in its current form and have serious concerns, which I’'ve outlined below.

1) Privacy & Noise | Communal Roof Deck
Adverse Impact to Historic Resource | Height Variance for Elevator Penthouse

| urge the Commission to eliminate the Project’s communal roof deck and to deny the height variance
for the elevator penthouse.

The communal roof deck is unnecessary and excessive. Each of the five units has its own private usable
open space via terraces and decks well in excess of the Planning Code requirements (94 to 387 sq ft
larger than the 125 sq ft required per unit). Consequently, the 1369 sq ft common roof deck is
unnecessary and excessive. Given that each unit has private usable open space ranging from 219 sq ft to
512 sq ft per unit, I’'m concerned that the common roof deck will mostly be used for large parties,
thereby creating substantial noise and disturbances and compromising the privacy of neighbors.
Furthermore, immediately adjacent to the Project to the east is a seven-story apartment building which
will further amplify the noise from the roof deck.






Letitia Yang
1769 Green Street
San Francisco, CA 94123

The 13-foot elevator penthouse adversely impacts this historic resource. The plans contemplate an
elevator penthouse that would rise 13 feet above the forty-foot elevation. The elevator penthouse
looks awkwardly out of place and should not be granted. The Project Sponsor should explore alternative
elevator systems that would not require the exceedance of the forty-foot elevation limit.

2) Public Health and Safety | Hazardous Materials

I’'m gravely concerned that the project site is listed on the City's Maher Map of contaminated sites and
the State of California’s Cortese list of contaminated sites. This is a result of many decades of use as an
automobile repair shop, including many decades when environmental laws were non-existent. Due to
this past use, it is highly likely that the site is contaminated with hazardous chemicals. This is a matter of
public health and safety, and | urge the City to require a thorough clean-up of the site to residential
standards to safeguard neighborhood residents, future residents of the project, and construction
workers. Especially because the Project is a block away from Sherman Elementary (1651 Union Street),
a sensitive receptor, | urge the Commission to require that extra care must be taken when dealing with
the contaminants and pollutants on the project site. | further urge the Commission to require full
compliance with the City's Maher Ordinance, and review under the California Environmental Quality Act
("CEQA"). |support the creation of new housing units in San Francisco but want to make sure that
there won’t be negative environmental or health impacts for my family and community.

3) Variance for Rear-Yard Setback

| urge the Commission to deny the request for a rear-yard variance and rather create open space at the
back of the lot for the use of the residents of the Project. This will enhance the livability of this Project
and is more appropriate for the neighborhood.

| unfortunately will not be able to attend the November 7" hearing in person. | have business travel
that was scheduled well in advance of the notification of the hearing date and was unable to change
those plans. In my absence, | hope that this letter will provide you with an understanding of my
concerns with the Project.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Ftrr
etitia Yang






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

| live directly across from 1776 Green Street, San Francisco, California and am writing to you
regarding the proposed project (“Project”) at 1776 Green Street, Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR. |
am opposed to the project in its current form and have serious concerns, which I've outlined
below.

1) Privacy & Noise | Communal Roof Deck
Adverse Impact to Historic Resource | Height Variance for Elevator Penthouse

| urge the Commission to eliminate the Project’s communal roof deck and to deny the height
variance for the elevator penthouse.

The communal roof deck is unnecessary and excessive. Each of the five units has its own private
usable open space via terraces and decks well in excess of the Planning Code requirements (94 to
387 sq ft larger than the 125 sq ft required per unit). Consequently, the 1369 sq ft common roof
deck is unnecessary and excessive. Given that each unit has private usable open space ranging from
219 sq ft to 512 sq ft per unit, I'm concerned that the common roof deck will mostly be used for

large parties, thereby creating substantial noise and disturbances and compromising the privacy of
neighbors. Furthermore, immediately adjacent to the Project to the east is a seven-story apartment
building which will further amplify the noise from the roof deck.

The 13-foot elevator penthouse adversely impacts this historic resource. The plans contemplate an
elevator penthouse that would rise 13 feet above the forty-foot elevation. The elevator penthouse

looks awkwardly out of place and should not be granted. The Project Sponsor should explore
alternative elevator systems that would not require the exceedance of the forty-foot elevation limit.

2) Public Health and Safety | Hazardous Materials

I’'m gravely concerned that the project site is listed on the City's Maher Map of contaminated sites
and the State of California’s Cortese list of contaminated sites. This is a result of many decades of
use as an automobile repair shop, including many decades when environmental laws were non-
existent. Due to this past use, it is highly likely that the site is contaminated with hazardous
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chemicals. This is a matter of public health and safety, and | urge the City to require a thorough
clean-up of the site to residential standards to safeguard neighborhood residents, future residents of
the project, and construction workers. Especially because the Project is a block away from Sherman
Elementary (1651 Union Street), a sensitive receptor, | urge the Commission to require that extra
care must be taken when dealing with the contaminants and pollutants on the project site. | further
urge the Commission to require full compliance with the City's Maher Ordinance, and review under
the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"). | support the creation of new housing units in

San Francisco but want to make sure that there won’t be negative environmental or health impacts
for my family and community.

3) Variance for Rear-Yard Setback

| urge the Commission to deny the request for a rear-yard variance and rather create open space at
the back of the lot for the use of the residents of the Project. This will enhance the livability of this
Project and is more appropriate for the neighborhood.

| unfortunately will not be able to attend the November 7th hearing in person. | have business travel
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

[signed letter attached]



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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO MOVES FORWARD WITH NEW SYSTEM TO REPLACE PRE-
ARRAIGNMENT CASH BAIL

Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 2:59:09 PM

Attachments: 11.06.19 Cash Bail Buffin Decision.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 12:07 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO MOVES FORWARD WITH NEW SYSTEM TO
REPLACE PRE-ARRAIGNMENT CASH BAIL

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, November 6, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO MOVES FORWARD WITH NEW SYSTEM
TO REPLACE PRE-ARRAIGNMENT CASH BAIL

Board of Supervisors Budget Committee approves $2.2 million to replace pre-arraignment
cash bail system with an expedited assessment of a person’s public safety and court
appearance risks in order to quickly determine if a person should or should not be released
while awaiting arraignment

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, along with Sheriff Vicki Hennessy, City
Attorney Dennis Herrera, and Interim District Attorney Suzy Loftus, today announced that
starting early next year San Francisco will no longer have a pre-arraignment cash bail system.
As part of a recent court settlement, San Francisco, in collaboration with community and
criminal justice partners, will implement an expedited system to assess and make
recommendations to the Superior Court regarding a person’s public safety risk. The new
system will facilitate release determinations within 18 hours of a person’s arrest.

This expansion of San Francisco’s existing pretrial diversion program will eliminate the

Superior Court’s pre-arraignment bail schedule. A faster system of review upholds public
nd
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

Board of Supervisors Budget Committee approves $2.2 million to replace pre-arraignment cash
bail system with an expedited assessment of a person’s public safety and court appearance risks
in order to quickly determine if a person should or should not be released while awaiting
arraignment

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, along with Sheriff Vicki Hennessy, City
Attorney Dennis Herrera, and Interim District Attorney Suzy Loftus, today announced that
starting early next year San Francisco will no longer have a pre-arraignment cash bail system. As
part of a recent court settlement, San Francisco, in collaboration with community and criminal
justice partners, will implement an expedited system to assess and make recommendations to the
Superior Court regarding a person’s public safety risk. The new system will facilitate release
determinations within 18 hours of a person’s arrest.

This expansion of San Francisco’s existing pretrial diversion program will eliminate the Superior
Court’s pre-arraignment bail schedule. A faster system of review upholds public safety while
protecting arrested persons’ constitutional rights. On October 22", Mayor Breed introduced a
supplemental budget appropriation at the Board of Supervisors to ensure that City departments
will have the necessary resources and staffing to implement this new system. The Board of
Supervisors Budget and Finance Committee today approved the $2.2 million budget
appropriation. The budget appropriation will go before the full Board of Supervisors on Tuesday,
November 12",

“Everyone should be treated equally under the law—not based on their ability to afford bail,”
said Mayor Breed. “Every hour or day that someone is in jail waiting to go before a judge can
have a significant negative impact on their life. Not being able to afford bail can mean lost wages
and the risk of unemployment, and can pose major difficulties for childcare and even child
custody. Our hope is that with this new, expedited system and by funding the San Francisco
Pretrial Diversion Project appropriately, we can make our system more just and fair.”

In 2015, two plaintiffs brought a lawsuit against the San Francisco Sheriff claiming that the pre-
arraignment bail schedule required by state law deprives defendants of their constitutional right
to freedom before appearing in court if they are unable to afford bail. The lawsuit, Buffin v. City
and County of San Francisco, argued that cash bail without judicial review limited personal
liberty primarily based on their ability to pay, and kept poor people detained in prison for a
longer amount of time than people who could afford to post bail. In 2016, Sheriff Hennessy and

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

City Attorney Herrera agreed that cash bail was unfair and took the groundbreaking step of
declining to defend the constitutionality of the pre-arraignment cash bail system.

In March 2019, a U.S. District Judge found that the bail schedule perpetuates inequity between
people who can afford to pay bail and those who cannot. Sheriff Hennessy, the City Attorney’s
Office, the federal magistrate, and the plaintiffs forged a settlement agreement to cease

San Francisco’s use of the bail schedule, and developed a proposal to replace it with a more
expedient pre-trial assessment program. This change to the bail system is specifically for pre-
arraignment bail, meaning before a person goes before a judge. There is still a bail system in
place for post-arraignment.

Under the new system, the San Francisco will expedite pre-arraignment release decisions. These
decisions are informed by a risk assessment tool, called a Public Safety Assessment (PSA),
which evaluates an arrestee’s risk factors. The tool was first implemented in San Francisco in
2016 and measures risk factors like whether the current offense is violent, whether the person has
prior violent convictions, and whether the person has failed to appear at a pretrial hearing. The
PSA in an objective, research-based tool designed to reduce bias in the release determination
process.

The Pretrial Diversion Project must convey its release recommendation and other available
information to the court within eight hours of booking, beginning at the time the person’s
identity is confirmed in the jail. If the Court does not make a release determination within 18
hours of booking, then the recommendation of the Public Safety Assessment takes effect,
requiring the Sheriff’s Department to release or detain the defendant as indicated. Law
enforcement may request a 12-hour extension if there are public safety concerns with releasing
the individual. People arrested on suspicion of a serious or violent felony will not be entitled to
pre-arraignment release without a court decision.

On October 22", Mayor Breed introduced a supplemental budget appropriation at the Board of
Supervisors to fund the implementation period for the new system of release determinations, and
the Budget Committee voted today to approve $2.2 million in funding. If approved by the full
Board of Supervisors, the funding will allow the San Francisco Police Department, Sheriff’s
Department, the San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, and the District Attorney’s Office to
hire additional staff and fund additional staff time and technology upgrades to implement the
new program. The Mayor’s Office will work with the City Controller and departments to
evaluate the implementation of the program and inform the next budget cycle.

“We worked tirelessly with the plaintiffs and federal court to devise a system that protects the
rights of arrested individuals, ensures an expedited review of each case, and protects public
safety,” said Sheriff Hennessy. “l am pleased that Mayor Breed is moving forward with the next
phase to fund this reform.”

“One system of justice for the rich and another for everyone else isn’t justice at all,” said City
Attorney Dennis Herrera. “We refused to defend an unconstitutional bail system that allowed the
wealthy to pay their way out of jail, even if they posed a danger to the public. This new system
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takes money out of the equation. Justice is better served when decisions are based on the facts,
not on the size of someone’s bank account.”

“Release decisions should be based on the public safety risk posed and not by how much money
someone has in their bank account,” said Interim District Attorney Suzy Loftus. “Money bail
does not make us safer and moving away from it is simply the right thing to do.”

“A fundamental presumption of our criminal justice system is that individuals are innocent until
proven guilty. For over four decades, SF Pretrial has protected that right through pretrial
diversion and release in collaboration with the Courts and our community and criminal justice
partners,” said David Mauroff, CEO of the San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project. “It has been
proven that time in jail results in an increased likelihood to commit a crime and hardship, which
disproportionately impacts innocent people of color. Public safety is a priority, and a 96% rate of
people not picking up a new case while under our supervision is the perfect complement to a
speedy and equitable release.”

HiH
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safety while protecting arrested persons’ constitutional rights. On October 22 , Mayor Breed
introduced a supplemental budget appropriation at the Board of Supervisors to ensure that City
departments will have the necessary resources and staffing to implement this new system. The
Board of Supervisors Budget and Finance Committee today approved the $2.2 million budget
appropriation. The budget appropriation will go before the full Board of Supervisors on

Tuesday, November 12,

“Everyone should be treated equally under the law—not based on their ability to afford bail,”
said Mayor Breed. “Every hour or day that someone is in jail waiting to go before a judge can
have a significant negative impact on their life. Not being able to afford bail can mean lost
wages and the risk of unemployment, and can pose major difficulties for childcare and even
child custody. Our hope is that with this new, expedited system and by funding the San
Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project appropriately, we can make our system more just and
fair.”

In 2015, two plaintiffs brought a lawsuit against the San Francisco Sheriff claiming that the
pre-arraignment bail schedule required by state law deprives defendants of their constitutional
right to freedom before appearing in court if they are unable to afford bail. The lawsuit, Buffin
v. City and County of San Francisco, argued that cash bail without judicial review limited
personal liberty primarily based on their ability to pay, and kept poor people detained in prison
for a longer amount of time than people who could afford to post bail. In 2016, Sheriff
Hennessy and City Attorney Herrera agreed that cash bail was unfair and took the
groundbreaking step of declining to defend the constitutionality of the pre-arraignment cash
bail system.

In March 2019, a U.S. District Judge found that the bail schedule perpetuates inequity between
people who can afford to pay bail and those who cannot. Sheriff Hennessy, the City
Attorney’s Office, the federal magistrate, and the plaintiffs forged a settlement agreement to
cease San Francisco’s use of the bail schedule, and developed a proposal to replace it with a
more expedient pre-trial assessment program. This change to the bail system is specifically for
pre-arraignment bail, meaning before a person goes before a judge. There is still a bail system
in place for post-arraignment.

Under the new system, the San Francisco will expedite pre-arraignment release decisions.
These decisions are informed by a risk assessment tool, called a Public Safety Assessment
(PSA), which evaluates an arrestee’s risk factors. The tool was first implemented in

San Francisco in 2016 and measures risk factors like whether the current offense is violent,
whether the person has prior violent convictions, and whether the person has failed to appear
at a pretrial hearing. The PSA in an objective, research-based tool designed to reduce bias in
the release determination process.

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
the individual. People arrested on suspicion of a serious or violent felony will not be entitled
to pre-arraignment release without a court decision.



On October 22M4, Mayor Breed introduced a supplemental budget appropriation at the Board
of Supervisors to fund the implementation period for the new system of release
determinations, and the Budget Committee voted today to approve $2.2 million in funding. If
approved by the full Board of Supervisors, the funding will allow the San Francisco Police
Department, Sheriff’s Department, the San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project, and the
District Attorney’s Office to hire additional staff and fund additional staff time and technology
upgrades to implement the new program. The Mayor’s Office will work with the City
Controller and departments to evaluate the implementation of the program and inform the next
budget cycle.

“We worked tirelessly with the plaintiffs and federal court to devise a system that protects the
rights of arrested individuals, ensures an expedited review of each case, and protects public
safety,” said Sheriff Hennessy. “I am pleased that Mayor Breed is moving forward with the
next phase to fund this reform.”

“One system of justice for the rich and another for everyone else isn’t justice at all,” said City
Attorney Dennis Herrera. “We refused to defend an unconstitutional bail system that allowed
the wealthy to pay their way out of jail, even if they posed a danger to the public. This new
system takes money out of the equation. Justice is better served when decisions are based on
the facts, not on the size of someone’s bank account.”

“Release decisions should be based on the public safety risk posed and not by how much
money someone has in their bank account,” said Interim District Attorney Suzy Loftus.
“Money bail does not make us safer and moving away from it is simply the right thing to do.”

“A fundamental presumption of our criminal justice system is that individuals are innocent
until proven guilty. For over four decades, SF Pretrial has protected that right through pretrial
diversion and release in collaboration with the Courts and our community and criminal justice
partners,” said David Mauroff, CEO of the San Francisco Pretrial Diversion Project. “It has
been proven that time in jail results in an increased likelihood to commit a crime and hardship,
which disproportionately impacts innocent people of color. Public safety is a priority, and a
96% rate of people not picking up a new case while under our supervision is the perfect
complement to a speedy and equitable release.”

HiHt



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Comments on 1776 Green Street Project (2018-011430CUA)
Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 2:57:31 PM

Attachments: 2019.11.06.PC ComLtr 1776 Green.pdf

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

From: Stacey Oborne <stacey@lozeaudrury.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 2:38 PM

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

Cc: 'Richard Drury' <richard@lozeaudrury.com>

Subject: Comments on 1776 Green Street Project (2018-011430CUA)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Honorable Members of the Planning Commission,

Please find attached comments on the 1776 Green Street Project (2018-011430CUA), submitted on
behalf of The Hollow Revolution (“THoR”). Hardcopies will be provided at the Planning Commission
hearing tomorrow. If you have any questions, please contact our office.

Best Regards,
Stacey

Stacey Oborne

Paralegal

Lozeau | Drury LLP

1939 Harrison Street, Suite 150
Oakland, CA 94612
510-836-4200 (Phone)
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BY E-MAIL AND HAND DELIVERY
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
c/o Jonas lonin (jonas.ionin@sfgov.org)
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

RE: 1776 Green Street (2018-011430CUA)
Honorable Members of the Planning Commission:

| am writing on behalf of The Hollow Revolution (“THOR”), an association of
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
space, and an accessory dwelling unit (“Project”).

l. Introduction

The proposed Project would be a relatively large residential development on a
quiet street. THOR wants to ensure that any new development at 1776 Green Street:

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

4. Fully complies with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). In

particular, as discussed below, the Project site is listed on the State of
California’s Cortese list of contaminated sites, due to over 100 years of use
as an automobile repair garage. According to the Cortese listing the site
contains extremely high levels of contamination, including highly toxic and
cancer causing chemicals, in some cases dozens or hundreds of times
above environmental screening levels. The contamination remains in the
soil. The Project proposes to excavate over 1300 cubic yards of this
contaminated soil. Under CEQA, a site on the Cortese list may not be
exempted from CEQA. Therefore, the CEQA exemption must be rescinded
and CEQA review must be conducted before any Project approvals are
considered.

Project Description

The Staff Report for the Planning Commission hearing describes the Project as:

Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections
209.1 and 303 to permit a two-story vertical addition and a change of use from an
automobile repair garage to a residential building containing five new residential
units within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X
Height and Bulk District. The Conditional Use Authorization request is to exceed
the principally permitted dwelling unit density limit for the respective zoning district.

In addition to the five large units, the applicant also proposes an accessory

dwelling unit (“ADU”) of over 950 square feet, thus making the Project a six-unit building.

The Project includes a 1,369 square foot communal roof deck. The roof deck

looks directly into the adjacent apartment building. The roof deck fencing and rail exceed
the 40-foot height limit, as does the elevator penthouse (approximately 53 feet tall).

The applicant also seeks a variance from the requirement for a front and rear yard

set-back. The required front-yard set-back is 11 feet and the required rear yard set-back
is 34 feet. The Project includes no set back at all and intensifies a pre-existing non-
complying use. The Project would exceed the two-unit density in the RH-2 district and
would exceed the 40-foot height limit due to a roof deck and elevator penthouse.
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The applicant proposes to construct extremely large, luxury units of more than
3000 square feet, each having 2 below-ground parking spaces — exceeding the 1.5
spaces allowed by the Planning Code Section 151.

The Project will require excavation of over 1300 cubic yards of highly contaminated
soil due to the building’s use for over one hundred years (1914-2018) as an automobile
repair shop. During much of that time, there were almost no laws governing hazardous
waste disposal, and it was common to simply dump chemicals down the drain or on the
ground. In addition, the site contains four leaking underground storage tank sites, which
have not been cleaned up. Contaminated soil will have to be excavated for the
underground garage. The Project site is an “active” (not closed) toxic site, with
contamination levels in some cases over one hundred times above environmental
screening levels (ESLs). Soil contamination levels are far above levels deemed
acceptable for residential use. There is no clean-up plan. The site is so contaminated
that it is on the State of California’s Cortese List. Since it is on the Cortese list, the
Project may not be exempted from CEQA review. CEQA review is required to develop a
thorough, enforceable clean-up plan to ensure clean-up to residential levels, in a manner
that will safeguard neighbors, future residents of the Project, and construction workers.

M. Neighbors’ Concerns

A. The Project Does not Qualify for a Variance from Open-Space
Requirements, Roof Deck, or Parking

Rear Yard: The developer is requesting a variance in order to provide less rear
yard and frontal set-back space than is legally required in San Francisco." Neighbors
understand that front setbacks may not be feasible due to the historic fagade’s at-
sidewalk configuration. However, that limitation only reinforces the need for adequate rear
yard open space. It appears the developer may be more interested in maximizing the
number of units and each unit’s size over providing City-mandated open space.

There appears to be no reason for the rear yard variance. The Project has ample
space to create the required 34 feet of rear yard. Although the front fagade of the building
is historic and should not be moved, the rear of the building is not. If the rear yard
variance is not granted, then the building would have ample open space in the rear —
making the intrusive communal roof deck unnecessary.?

1 See application No. 2018-011430VAR.
2 It may be appropriate to screen neighboring properties from the rear yard by creating or retaining a side
wall.
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Roof Deck: Although the staff report does not mention it, a variance is also
required for the roof deck and elevator penthouse. The roof deck rails and fence extend
above the 40 foot height limit by several feet, and the elevator penthouse extends to over
50 feet. The roof deck will create noise and invade the privacy of the adjacent apartment
building. The findings for a variance cannot be made, so the roof deck should not be
allowed.

Parking: The Code limits parking to 1.5 spaces per unit. Yet, the Project provides
2 parking spaces per unit (10 spaces). The Staff Report contends that the parking is pre-
existing and therefore exempt from the Code requirement. This is false. The Project
includes excavation of over 1000 cubic years of highly contaminated soil to expand the
basement garage and create additional parking. The Project plans include excavation to
expand the basement up to Green Street and lowering the floor by up to three feet. Thus,
this is not pre-existing parking, but new parking. As such a variance is required but
should not be granted. The site is well-served by public transit, and providing surplus
parking discourages public transit usage.

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
(2014); see also, Topanga Ass’n v. County of Los Angeles, 11 Cal.3d 506, 518 (1974)
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

3 Gov. Code §65906.
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
comply with the Code.*

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

The findings clearly cannot be made for the roof deck. The roof deck not only
exceeds height limits, but it also violates the San Francisco Residential Design
Guidelines, which provide: "Articulate the building to minimize impacts on light and
privacy to adjacent properties." (RDGs, page 16). The roof deck will look directly into
adjacent apartment windows and conflicts with the intent of the code.

Nor can the findings be made for the Parking over-supply. Since the developer is
excavating to create additional underground parking, this is not pre-existing parking,
contrary to the staff misrepresentation.

For these reasons, the Zoning Administrator should not grant a variance from the
rear yard set-back requirement, should disallow the construction of the communal roof
deck, and should limit parking to no more than 1.5 parking spaces per unit.

4 See, Orinda Ass'n v. Bd. of Supervisors, 182 Cal.App.3d 1145 (1986) (facts did not justify a variance since
property was not substantially different from other parcels in the same zone).
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B. The Project is Not Entitled to a Conditional Use Authorization

In order to construct 5 luxury residential units, the developer wants to exceed the
dwelling density for the parcel to greater than the required one dwelling unit per 1,500
square feet in an RH-2 zone. To obtain a Conditional Use Authorization, the developer
must show, among other things that:

e Existing housing and neighborhood character would be conserved and protected in
order to preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods;

e The City’s supply of affordable housing would be preserved and enhanced;

e Landmarks and historic buildings would be preserved;

e Our parks and open space and our access to sunlight and vistas would be
protected from development.®

The Planning Department’s recommendation that the Commission approve the
conditional use is unrelated to the actual criterial for authorizing a conditional use:

“‘BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATON: The Project will add five dwelling units to the
City’s housing stock and will feature the restoration of the historic resource’s
original fagade, which had been significantly altered in a 1933 renovation. As
such, the Department finds the project to be necessary, desirable, and compatible
with the surrounding neighborhood, and not to be detrimental to persons or
adjacent properties in the vicinity.”

The staff report provided no analysis that Green Street, the neighborhood or San
Francisco generally would benefit from five over-the-top luxury residential units with a
penthouse, elevator, roof deck and various balconies and additional decks all intruding
upon existing neighbors’ privacy, all at the expense of an historic resource. Instead, the
Planning Department based its recommendation for conditional use on the building’s
historic nature, the very aspect that would be destroyed as a result of the proposed
Project.

The developer chose to submit plans inconsistent with San Francisco’s legal
requirements, asking to expand a nonconforming use. Developers should endeavor to
propose projects that conform to the law rather than presuming developments will receive
a work-around from the City. Land use laws are based on important public interest
considerations such as safety, affordability, livability, community character and diversity.
There is no evidence this Project would enhance such considerations.

5 http://forms.sfplanning.org/CUA _Application.pdf citing relevant findings necessary for a conditional use.
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As proposed, the Project would not preserve an historic resource in a way that
would respect the character and structure of the building. To the contrary, the Project will
destroy the entire historic building, except for the fagade. One need only review the
developer’s own plans for the front fagade to see it would negatively transform and
diminish 1776 Green. Likewise, the proposed Project would not contribute in any way to
affordable housing in the City or encourage economic diversity other than to entice those
wealthy enough to afford a penthouse complete with elevator and private decks.

Finally, the CUA recommendation was based on an incorrect reference. The
HRER was not concerned about the 1933 alteration.® Instead, the HRER found that
adding the pilasters back to the fagade was not considered necessary restoration to
maintaining 1776 Green’s historic nature.” So the idea that a CUA authorization would be
based on the 1933 alternation makes no sense. More to the point, there are countless
ways the building could be developed that would not result in such significant alterations
to the building’s interior and front facade, and that would not require conditional use
authorization or variances. In short, why would the treatment of the building’s facade form
the basis of a CUA approval?

It is the developer’s burden to explain why the project cannot comply with existing
law. Likewise, the City must assume the developer examined the Code requirements
before purchasing the property and determined he could enjoy a reasonable return on his
investment without any Code variances or conditional uses. Therefore, the development
should comply with the law so that the City’s broader public policy considerations are
respected and implemented.

C. Hazardous Waste Considerations

The Project Site was used for over 100 years as an automobile repair garage —
from 1914 to 2018. For most of that time, there were few if any environmental laws, and it
was common to dispose of hazardous chemicals simply by dumping them down the drain
or on the ground. The site contains four leaking underground storage tanks (LUSTSs).
While the tanks were removed in 2016, soil contamination was left in place. According to
the developer’'s own environmental consultant, AllWest Environmental Consultants, “The
subject property currently is listed as an open leaking UST (LUST) case with the
SFDPH and on the SWRCB Geotracker database.” (Phase Il Environmental Site
Assessment (“Phase 2 ESA”), p. 3).2 The project site is located on the City’s Maher map
of contaminated sites and the State’s Cortese List of contaminated sites (Geotracker).

6 October 30, 2019 HRER at p.4.
71d.
8 No. 2018-011430PRJ.
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According to AllWest, the Project would involve excavation of approximately 1,315 cubic
yards of soil. (Phase 2 ESA, p..6).

According to the Phase 2 ESA:

Concentrations of TPH-g, TPH-d, benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, xylenes and
naphthalene were detected at maximum respective concentrations of 19,000
milligrams per kilogram (mg/Kg), 1,200 mg/Kg, 94 mg/Kg, 190 mg/Kg, 570 mg/Kg,
1,000 mg/kg and 63 mg/Kg; above their applicable San Francisco Regional Water
Quality Control Board (SFRWQCB) Environmental Screening Levels (ELSs) in soil
samples collected from borings B-3 and B-5 at depths between approximately 14.5
feet bgs and 39.5 feet bgs.

(Phase 3 ESA, p. 4).

Some of these levels are dozens or even hundreds of times above the relevant
environmental screen levels. For example, total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) was
found on the site at levels up to 2,300 mg/Kg (parts per million or ppm). The ESL is 100
ppm. (San Francisco DPH Phase Il Assessment Work Plan Request, p. 3). Benzene (a
known human carcinogen) is on the site at levels of .87 ppm twenty times above the ESL
of 0.04 ppm. Xylene is on the site at levels up to 198 ppm, 86 times above the ESL of 2.3
ppm. Naphthalene has been detected in soil at 44.2 ppm, 1,473 times above the ESL of
0.03 ppm. There is no question that the levels of soil contamination are of serious
concern to neighbors, future residents of the Project, and construction workers.

Under San Francisco’s Health Code Article 22A, the "Maher Ordinance,” the San
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

THOR is concerned about dispersal of heavy metals such as lead, solvents,
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

As discussed below, due to the extreme soil contamination, the Project may not be
exempted from CEQA review. CEQA review is required to ensure that an adequate
clean-up plan is developed and to ensure that clean-up is conducted subject to
enforceable measures to residential standards. No such clean-up plan has been
developed.

E. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The City contends that the Project is exempt entirely from all CEQA review based
on two separate CEQA exemptions: Class 1 and Class 3. Class 1 is for “Existing
Facilities” exemption, and Class 3 is for “New construction or conversion of small
structures (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15303).” Neither applies on its face. Even if the
exemptions arguably applied, the Project may not be exempted from CEQA because it is
on the Cortese list of contaminated sites, and the Project may adversely affect an historic
resource.

The Class 1 exemption is commonly known as the “pre-existing” facility exemption.
It does not apply on its face. The project involves almost entirely destroying the existing
building and replacing it with an entirely new structure — except for the fagade. There will
be no “pre-existing” facility. The exemption is also limited to “small structures” of less
than 10,000 square feet. Since the building is over 12,000 square feet, the exemption
does not apply.

The Class 3 exemption is limited to buildings with a total square footage of less
than 10,000 square feet. Since the Project is over 12,000 square feet, the exemption
does not apply.

The Staff Report asks the Commission to approve the Project in total, including an
exemption under CEQA,° despite evidence that the Project is not eligible for a categorical
exemption. The CEQA statute provides that if a project may cause a substantial adverse

92018-011430ENV.





1776 Green Street
November 6, 2019
Page 10 of 14

change in the significance of a historical resource, that project shall not be exempted from
CEQA review.'® Categorical exemptions are allowed for certain classes of activities that
can be shown not to have significant effects on the environment.’ Public agencies
utilizing CEQA exemptions must support their determination that a particular project is
exempt with substantial evidence that support each element of the exemption.'? A court
will reverse an agency’s use of an exemption if the court finds evidence a project may
have an adverse impact on the environment.'3

1. The Project May Not Be Exempted from CEQA Because it is on the
Cortese List of Contaminated Sites.

As discussed above, the site is so heavily contaminated with toxic chemicals, that
it is listed as an active contaminated site on the State of California’s Cortese List of
contaminated sites. For this reason, the Project may not be exempted from CEQA
review.

A categorical exemption “shall not be used for a project located on a site which is
included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code.” 14
CCR §15300.2(e) (emphasis added); PRC § 21084(c) (“No project located on a site which
is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code
shall be exempted from this division pursuant to subdivision (a)[categorical
exemptions].”). “The provisions in Government Code Section 65962.5 are commonly
referred to as the ‘Cortese List’ ... The list, or a site’s presence on the list, has bearing on
the local permitting process as well as on compliance with the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA).” A Cortese listing can be effected for “underground storage tanks for
which an unauthorized release report is filed pursuant to Section 25295 of the Health and
Safety Code.” Govt. Code § 65962.5(c)(1). The GeoTracker list is one of the lists in the
Cortese List.

The Project site is listed as an active, open site under GeoTracker due to its
extensive soil contamination which has not been remediated:

https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile report?global id=T10000008988

The GeoTracker listing notes extensive soil contamination: MW1 had 17,000 ppb TPH-
gas, 3,700 ppb TPH diesel, and 570 ppb Benzene. Soil boring B3 next to MW1 had TPHg
at 32,000 ppb, TPHd at 2,500 ppb and Benzene at 4,500 ppb.

Since the Project site is on the Cortese list, the City may not exempt the Project
from CEQA review. CEQA review is required to analyze the soil contamination, to
develop a comprehensive clean-up plan to residential standards, and to ensure that

0 CEQA § 21084.1, CEQA Guidelines 15300.2(f).

" CEQA § 21084(a).

2 CEQA § 21168.5.

3 Dunn Edwards Corp. v. Bay Area Air Quality Management Dist. (1992) 9 Cal.App.4th 644, 656.
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neighbors are not exposed to toxic chemicals during clean-up and excavation. CEQA will
ensure that the clean-up plan is adequate, and enforceable. See, McQueen v. Mid-
Peninsula Board, 202 Cal.App.3d 1136, 1149, (“the known existence of.....hazardous
wastes on property to be acquired is an unusual circumstance threatening the
environment” and the project may not be exempted from CEQA review); Association for a
Cleaner Environment v. Yosemite Comm. College, 110 Cal.App.4th 629 (2004) (presence
of hazardous materials makes CEQA exemption improper).

2. The Project May not be Exempted from CEQA Because it will Adversely
Affect an Historic Resource.

Because the Project involves largely destroying an historic building, the Project
may not be exempted from CEQA review. Pub. Res. Code §21084.1.

It is undisputed that 1776 Green Street is an historic resource.'* The building was
constructed in 1914 by owner and builder Sven J. Sterner as an automotive garage in the
Classical Revival style. It is a one-story-over-basement light industrial reinforced concrete
structure with a mezzanine level that occupies the entire lot area. The facade design is an
example of the "station" typology of garage facades, displaying a symmetrical design with
a large arched opening centered beneath a gabled parapet with a molded cornice and
eave returns. The property features rusticated stucco siding throughout the primary
facade with a wide central garage entrance flanked by a secondary garage door at the
east (right) bay. Fenestration within the arched openings features wood casement
windows with divided lites with solid spandrels below. A trio of casement windows sits
above the textured stucco bulkhead on the west (left) bay at the ground floor. Roll-up
metal garage doors span the central and eastern (right) openings. Based on historic
photographs and a limited permit history, the building appears to have retained a high
degree of integrity since a 1933 alteration, which removed pilasters from the central arch
to allow a wider garage opening.’®

The surrounding neighborhood consists of a mix of multi- and single-family homes
constructed between 1890s and 1950s designed in various styles, with a majority
constructed prior to the Great Depression in 1929."® The neighborhood refreshingly lacks
large, new boxy construction projects so prevalent around San Francisco now. Nearby
local landmarks include the Octagon House at 2645 Gough Street and the Burr House at
1772 Vallejo Street, and a majority of the residences on the south side of Green Street
were included in the 1976 survey.'”

™ The building is eligible listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, HRER at p. 1 (December
5, 2019)

5 December 2018 HRER at p. 1.

1616 1d. at p. 2.

7 December 2018 HRER at p. 2.
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To assist with CEQA compliance for the protection of historic resources, San
Francisco adopted Preservation Bulletin No. 16 (the “Bulletin®). That Bulletin sets out a
two-step process for evaluating the potential for proposed projects to impact historical
resources. First, a Preservation Planner determines whether the property is an historical
resource as defined by CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a)(3); and, second, if the
property is an historical resource, it then evaluates whether the proposed action or project
would cause a “substantial adverse change” to the historical resource.'®

CEQA defines a “substantial adverse change” as the physical demolition,
destruction, relocation or alteration of the historical resource or its immediate
surroundings such that the significance of the historical resource would be materially
impaired. CEQA goes on to define “materially impaired” as work that materially alters, in
an adverse manner, those physical characteristics that convey the resource’s historical
significance and justify its inclusion in the California Register of Historic Places, a local
register of historical resources, or an historical resource survey.'® There can be no
serious question that the Project involves “physical demolition,” “destruction,” or
“alteration” of the historic resource.

The Planning Commission must not approve the project without conducting a full
CEQA analysis on a range of alternatives and mitigation measures that would lessen the
identified impacts on this historic resource. A CEQA document would also give the public
and decision makers an opportunity to better respond to staff's analysis which contained
a number of errors and unsupported recommendations.

First, the HRER contains ill-conceived recommendations: “the work on the primary
facade—the reconstruction of the pilasters, the installation of recessed panels, the new
glazing—will be based on historical architectural plans that show the building's
appearance prior to the widening of the vehicular entry in 1933.72° Never has the adage
“a picture is worth a thousand words” been more apt; but in this case, the developer’s
own rendition says it all.?" One need only view the developer’s proposed changes to the
facade of 1776 Green Street to see that the alterations would completely destroy all
evidence of the buildings historic aspect and character; instead turning it into something
entirely different: a garden variety glass-fronted modern structure.

8 San Francisco Preservation Bulletin No. 16, at p. 2.

9 CEQA Guidelines 15064.5(b), Bulletin 16, p. 9.

20 October 30, HRER at p. 3.

21 See, Executive Summary Conditional Use Authorization at exhibit F, Project Sponsor Brief (October 30,
2019).





1776 Green Street
November 6, 2019
Page 13 of 14

Second, and related, the October 30, 2019 HRER erred by asserting that the
“change of use will not require significant changes to the subject building's character-
defining features, which are primarily on the front facade, and will in some ways enhance
the building's ability to convey its significance through the restoration of specific facade
features.”?? After viewing the developer’s plans, the idea that the proposed changes
would somehow restore the front facade’s character-defining features defies credulity.
The developer’s proposal would entirely transform the look and character of the fagade.
Under CEQA, this drastic alteration of an historic resource is a significant impact that
would materially impair the historic significance of the property. The City must prepare a
CEQA document that proposes feasible Project alternatives and mitigation measures to
lessen this impact.

Third, the HRER focused on “rehabilitating” the building, which includes gutting the
interior, removing the historic wood truss system, creating a “penthouse” with an elevator
and roof deck.?® This cannot be what historic preservation experts have in mind when
advocating for protecting our architectural heritage. 1776 Green Street requires careful
preservation and restoration, not heavy handed “rehabilitation” designed to completely
transform its form and appearance into modern luxury apartments inside and out.

Fourth, the HRER found that the developer’s plans did not meet the Secretary of
the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.?* The historic analysis focused primarily on the
interior’s existing wood truss system as the most salient character defining feature.?® That
aspect of the property must be preserved. The proposed Project would destroy the
wooden truss system to accommodate five luxury residences. The developer could retain
many aspects of the building’s interior by proposing a single-story use such as one or two
residential units.

Lastly, as mentioned in Section lll, the staff report recommending approval
mischaracterized the HRER’s findings. According to the staff report, the Project “will
feature the restoration of the historic resource’s original fagade, which had been
significantly altered in a 1933 renovation. As such, the Department finds the project to be
necessary, desirable, and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood, and not to be
detrimental to persons or adjacent properties in the vicinity.”?® The HRER made no finding
that reinstalling the pilasters would return the building to its historic significance. Instead,
the HRER asserted that adding the pilasters back would have no affect: “The subject
building's only major alteration was the 1933 removal of the pilasters and widening of the

22 October 30, 2019 HRER at pp. 2-3.

23 October 30, HRER at p. 2.

24 October 30, 2019 HRER at p. 2.

25 October 30, 2019 HRER at p. 3.

26 Executive Summary Conditional Use Authorization at p. 2.





1776 Green Street
November 6, 2019
Page 14 of 14

vehicular entry. This alteration has not acquired significance in its own right; thus, the
proposed reversal of this alteration and restoration of the original pilasters will not
diminish the subject building's historic significance.” In other words, putting the pilasters
back on the fagade cannot be the justification for approving the Project and providing
conditional use authorization.

In summary, the complete transformation of the building’s fagade and the gutting of
its interior is a potential significant impact under CEQA. The Planning Department must
prepare a CEQA document analyzing alternatives and mitigation measures that would
protect this historic resource.

V. Conclusion

As the foregoing shows, the Project is entitled to neither a conditional use
authorization, nor a variance, nor a CEQA exemption. Given evidence of potentially
significant impacts on an historic resource and on-site hazardous waste, the Planning
Department must prepare a CEQA document that analyzes these issues and proposes
alternatives and feasible measures to mitigate such impacts. The public must be afforded
to opportunity to assess the project in full. Thank you for your consideration of our
comments and concerns. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions about
this letter.

Sincerely,

7
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Richard Toshiyuki Drury
LOZEAU DRURY LLP





ATTACHMENT A





11/6/2019 GeoTracker

(CASE SUMMARY

REPORT DATE HAZARDOUS MATERIAL INCIDENT REPORT FILED WITH OES?

2/12/2016

. REPORTED BY - CREATED BY
UNKNOWN UNKNOWN

lil. SITE LOCATION

FACILITY NAME FACILITY ID

1776 Green Street, LLC

EACILITY ADDRESS ORIENTATION OF SITE TO STREET
1776 Green Street

San Francisco, CA 94123 CROSS STREET

SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY

V. SUBSTANCES RELEASED / CONTAMINANT(S) OF CONCERN
GASOLINE

VI. DISCOVERY/ABATEMENT
DATE DISCHARGE BEGAN

DATE DISCOVERED HOW DISCOVERED DESCRIPTION
2/12/2016 Tank Closure Tank Closure
DATE STOPPED STOP METHOD DESCRIPTION
2/12/2016 Remove Tank

Vil. SOURCE/CAUSE
SOURCE OF DISCHARGE CAUSE OF DISCHARGE
Tank Corrosion

DISCHARGE DESCRIPTION
Unknown

VIIl. CASE TYPE
CASE TYPE

IX. REMEDIAL ACTION
NO REMEDIAL ACTIONS ENTERED

X. GENERAL COMMENTS

MW1 had 17,000 ppb TPH-gas, 3,700 ppb TPH diesel, and 570 ppb Benzene. Soil boring B3 next to MW1 had TPHg at 32,000 ppb, TPHd at
2,500 ppb and Benzene at 4,500 ppb.

9/26/19-Reviewed groundwater monitoring report from August 1st of 2019. MW 1 had TPHg at 1,300 pbb & benzene at 130 ppb.

Xl. CERTIFICATION

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION REPORTED HEREIN
IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Xll. REGULATORY USE ONLY

LOCAL AGENCY CASE NUMBER REGIONAL BOARD CASE NUMBER

12076

LOCAL AGENCY

CONTACT NAME INITIALS ORGANIZATION_NAME EMAIL ADDRESS
MAMDOUH AWWAD MA SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY LOP mamdouh.awwad@sfdph.org

https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/case_summary?global_id=T10000008988#skip-to-content
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ADDRESS
1390 MARKET STREET, #210
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102
PHONE TYPE PHONE NUMBER
Business (415)-252-3927
REGIONAL BOARD

UNKNOWN

GeoTracker
CONTACT DESCRIPTION

EXTENSION

Back to Top
Privacy Policy

Contact Us

Conditions of Use

Accessibility

Copyright © 2015 State of California

https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/case_summary?global_id=T10000008988#skip-to-content
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sw AP E Technical Consultation, Data Analysis and
Litigation Support for the Environment

2656 29t Street, Suite 201
Santa Monica, CA 90405

Matt Hagemann, P.G, C.Hg.
(949) 887-9013
mhagemann@swape.com

November 6, 2019

Richard Drury

Lozeau Drury LLP

410 12th Street, Suite 250
Oakland, CA 94607

Subject: 1776 Green Street Project, San Francisco, California

Dear Mr. Drury:

| have reviewed the July 31, 2018 Maher Ordinance application for 1776 Green Street, San Francisco,
California. The proposed project is to construct a building with five residential units and one commercial
unit within an existing building. The new building will be four stories high and will be situated atop a
one-level below-grade parking garage.

The proposed project site, 1776 Green Street, was used by automotive repair purposes between 1914
and 2018.1 The proposed project site is listed at the California Geotracker website as an open case
where the following levels of contamination have been documented?: (1) groundwater containing total
petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) gas at 17,000 ppb, TPH diesel at 3,700 ppb, and benzene at 570 ppb and;
(2) soil containing TPHg at 32,000 ppb, TPHd at 2,500 ppb and benzene at 4,500 ppb. The project site is
under active oversight by the San Francisco Department of Public Health. The San Francisco Department
of Public Health approved a workplan for additional soil and groundwater investigation on August 8,
2019. Exposure to TPH compounds can cause developmental effects along with hematological, liver
immunological, and renal effects.® Benzene is a known human carcinogen.*

The City of San Francisco is proposing to exempt the project from the CEQA process. CEQA requires the
identification of Cortese-listed sites, such as the 1776 Green Street project site, when evaluating project

! Phase Il Site investigation Workplan, 1176 Green Street, San Francisco, AllWest Environmental, January 18, 2019
2 https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile report?global id=T10000008988

3 https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/substances/toxsubstance.asp?toxid=75

4 https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxfaqs/tf.asp?id=38&tid=14

1





impacts. Projects that are included on the Cortese List may result in significant impacts from hazardous
materials unless assessment and clean-up has been completed. The project should be considered under
CEQA to identify the 1776 Green Street site as a Cortese List site. A CEQA process should be undertaken
to show that all hazardous waste has been assessed and remediated to the satisfaction of the San
Francisco Department of Public Health. (See Citizens for Responsible Equitable Environmental
Development v. City of Chula Vista, 197 Cal. App. 4th 327 (Cal. App. 4th Dist. 2011.)

Sincerely,

/

Vi d Lol ;
:f{'_(_ l.&fé'gfc Lt —

Matt Hagemann, P.G., C.Hg.
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PHASE Il SITE ASSESSMENT WORK PLAN

1776 Green Street, San Francisco, CA 94123

City of San Francisco Department of Public Health,
EHB-SAM Case Number: SMED 1751

LOP Site Number: 12076

GeoTracker Facility Global ID # T10000008988

INTRODUCTION

This workplan describes tasks to characterize subsurface conditions at the property referenced above
(“the subject property”, Figures 1 and 2). The scope of work addresses requirements by the City of San
Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH) Environmental Health Branch, Site Assessment and
Mitigation (EHB-SAM) for a Phase Il Site Assessment Work Plan to be submitted prior to site renovation
activities.

The subject property is located within the Expanded Maher Zone. Characterization of suspected fill
material, native soil, soil gas and shallow groundwater is required in areas within the Expanded Maher
Zone where at least 50 cubic yards of soil are planned to be removed, in accordance with procedures and
analyses specified in the revised City of San Francisco Health Code (SFHC) Article 22A (Maher
Ordinance).

The proposed work will be conducted with the approval and oversight of the SFDPH. Upon approval of
the Phase Il Site Assessment Work Plan by the SFDPH, the proposed scope of work will be implemented.
Upon completion of the subsurface investigation, a Phase Il Site Assessment Report will be submitted to
the SFDPH. Contingent upon review of the Phase Il Site Assessment Report, the SFDPH will require
submittal of a Site Mitigation Plan (SMP) for the proposed development activities on the property.

This workplan presents the proposed subsurface investigation scope of work and briefly summarizes the
site setting and background, including previous site investigations.

. PROJECT BACKGROUND

A. Site Location and Description

The subject property is located in the Cow Hollow District, on the north side of Green Street between
Octavia and Gough Streets, in the City of San Francisco. A site vicinity map is included as Figure 1.

The subject property is a rectangular parcel, comprising approximately 0.17 acres (7,422 square feet),
developed with a single-story 12,450 square feet masonry/concrete light-industrial building with a
basement parking garage and mezzanine completed in 1914.. The basement floor slab grade is
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approximately 10 feet below the Green Street sidewalk grade. A site plan is included as Figure 2. The
subject property is occupied by Jump, a bicycle rental firm.

The subject property slopes gently downwards towards the north, at an elevation of approximately 94 feet
above mean seal level (msl).

A review of the USGS Note 36 California Geomorphic Provinces map, the property is located in the Coast
Ranges geomorphic province of California. The coastline is uplifted, terraced and wave-cut. The Coast
Ranges are composed of thick Mesozoic and Cenozoic sedimentary strata. The northern and southern
ranges are separated by a depression containing the San Francisco Bay.

The northern Coast Ranges are dominated by the irregular, knobby landslide-topography of the
Franciscan Complex. The eastern border is characterized by strike-ridges and valleys in Upper Mesozoic
strata. In several areas, Franciscan rocks are overlain by volcanic cones and flows of the Quien Sabe,
Sonoma and Clear Lake volcanic fields. The Coast Ranges is subparallel to the active San Andreas
Fault. The San Andreas is more than 600 miles long, extending from Point Arena to the Gulf of
California. West of the San Andreas is the Salinian Block, a granitic core extending from the southern
extremity of the Coast Ranges to north of the Farallon Islands. Geologically, the area of the subject
property is underlain by Mesozoic era Eugeosynclinal Deposits.

According to California’s Groundwater Bulletin 118, the subject property is located in the San Francisco
Bay Hydrologic Region and lies in the Marina Groundwater Basin (Basin No. 2-039). The Marina
groundwater basin is located on the northern portion of the San Francisco Peninsula and is one of five
basins in on the eastern side of a northwest trending bedrock ridge within the peninsula (Phillips, et al.
1993). The 220-acre groundwater basin consists of shallow unconsolidated alluvium underlain by less
permeable bedrock within the watershed located north of Nob Hill and including most of the Presidio and
Fort Point areas. Bedrock outcrops along much of the ridge form the eastern, southern and western
basin boundaries.

The Marina Groundwater Basin 2-39 is listed in the State of California Regional Water Quality Control
Board, San Francisco Region (SFRWQCB) Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan) date May 4, 2017,
table 2-2 as having existing municipal and agricultural use and potential industrial and process use
(SFRWQCB, 2017). However, the City of San Francisco Public Utility Commission (SFPUC) report no
plans to develop groundwater resources within the basin. The SFDPH considers groundwater quality in
the basin to be degraded below drinking water standards.

According to information obtained from the Geotracker database for a former service station leaking
underground storage tank (LUST) site at 2559 Van Ness Avenue, approximately 1/4-mile northeast of the
subject property, soils consist of fill material to approximately 8 to 12 feet below ground surface (bgs)
underlain by native sand, silty sand, clayey sand, and sandy clay to the maximum explored depth of 45
feet bgs.

Soils encountered during the AllWest subsurface investigations of May 14 to 15 and July 30 to 31, 2018
were fill materials consisting of very fine to fine sand with fine gravel from below the asphalt/concrete
surface to a depth of approximately 12 to15 feet bgs within the former UST pit. Outside of the former
UST pit, and below 12 to 15 feet bgs beneath the pit, native soils were silty to clayey sands with some
gravel, sandy silt, or sandy clay to the total depth explored at 45 feet bgs (AllWest, 2018b and 2018c).

Depth to ground water was documented as variable in the site vicinity, and based on information available
on the Geotracker website, ranging from approximately 8 to 35 feet below ground surface. Ground water
was not encountered to a depth of at least 12 feet during excavation activity conducted on the subject
property during removal of former underground storage tanks (USTs) in February 2016 (AllWest, 2018a).
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Ground water flow direction in the vicinity of the subject property was anticipated to follow the local
topography towards the north.

Measurable groundwater was not encountered during drilling activities of the AllWest May 2018
subsurface investigation, although several moist to wet zones were encountered. Boring B-3 (within the
former UST excavation) was left open overnight for groundwater recovery; static groundwater was
measured at approximately 36.95 feet bgs the next day. Groundwater was first encountered during the
July-August 2018 AllWest subsurface investigation at approximately 35 to 40 feet bgs (Green Street
sidewalk grade) in borings MW-1 and MW-2 and approximately 32.5 to 34 feet below basement grade
(bbg) in boring MW-3 located in the subject building basement (approximately 10 feet below sidewalk
grade).

Static depths to groundwater in the completed monitoring wells prior to the August 10, 2018 monitoring
event ranged from 31.56 feet bbg in MW-3 to 37.19 feet bgs (Green Street sidewalk grade) in MW-1. The
groundwater flow direction was calculated to be due north, at a gradient of 0.01 feet per foot (AllWest,
2018c).

The nearest significant surface water to the subject property is the San Francisco Bay, located
approximately ¥ mile north. There are no water supply wells, aboveground water tanks or water
reservoirs at the subject property. There are currently three ground water monitoring wells at the subject
property. The property does not fall under requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) and storm water runoff is directed to drains in the adjoining street.

The subject property was residentially developed by the 1890s, with dwellings remaining present through
1913. The existing building was constructed in 1914 and documented as being utilized for automotive
repair purposes by several different businesses between 1914 and 2018. The subject property was
occupied by an auto body repair shop at the time of the AllWest Phase | ESA site visit in February 2018.
The subject property was unoccupied at the time of the AllWest subsurface investigation in late July to
early August 2018, but is currently occupied by Jump, a bicycle rental firm, and undergoing remodeling.

Four USTs were identified on the subject property, a 1,000-gallon and three 550-gallon “petroleum blend”
fuel tanks. The date of installation of the USTS is unknown. The USTs were originally ‘closed in place' in
1987, and a Certificate of Completion was issued by SFDPH in 1989. However, in 2016 the USTs were
removed and residual total petroleum hydrocarbons as gasoline (TPH-g), benzene, toluene, ethyl
benzene and xylenes (BTEX) and naphthalene were documented in verification soil samples collected
from beneath the tanks. As a result, the 1989 Certificate of Completion was rescinded by the SFDPH-
LOP. Total petroleum hydrocarbons as diesel (TPH-d) were detected in soil stockpile samples but were
not analyzed in confirmatory soil samples. The subject property currently is listed as an open leaking
UST (LUST) case with the SFDPH and on the SWRCB Geotracker database..

LW Phase | Environmental Site Assessments

In 2013, a Phase | Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was conducted on the subject property, and
subsequently updated in 2014. LW Construction Services, Inc. (LW) conducted a second update in 2015.

The 2015 LW Phase | ESA update, updated a 2013 Phase | and 2014 Phase | update. The property was
developed with the existing structure at the time of the 2015 study, which was vacant but had been
occupied by various automotive repair businesses. Planned future occupancy by a different auto repair
business was reported.
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The presence of four USTs was documented. LW stated the tanks had been closed-in-place under
proper permitting and the SFDPH had issued case closure with no further action required. A sump was
documented in the building basement. LW noted no use, storage, generation or disposal of automotive
related materials and no physical or documentary evidence of reportable discharges of hazardous
materials.

LW stated the subject property was not located within the Maher Zone at the time of the study. No vicinity
facilities of significant concern were identified. Only a “very limited potential” was identified for the
presence of a vapor encroachment condition to be present on the subject property.

LW did not identify any RECs or CRECs associated with the subject property. The closed USTs were
identified as an HREC, which was appropriate at the time of the study as no contamination had been
identified and a certificate of completion had been issued by the SFDPH (LW, 2015).

AllWest Phase | Environmental Site Assessment, February-March, 2018

AllWest conducted a Phase | ESA in 2018. AllWest identified two Recognized Environmental Conditions
(RECSs) in their Phase | ESA of the subject property; the open LUST case with the SFDPH and property’s
location within the Expanded Maher Area.

The 1,000-gallon and three 550-gallon “petroleum blend” fuel USTs initially were closed-in-place beneath
the adjoining Green Street sidewalk in 1987. Soil samples collected at depths of 10.5- to 11-foot from
four borings advanced near the tanks demonstrated non-detectable concentrations of total petroleum
hydrocarbons. Based on the analytical results, the SFDPH issued a Certificate of Completion with no
further investigation or cleanup required in June 1989.

The four closed-in-place USTs were removed from the subject property in February 2016. The 1989
SFDPH closure was rescinded following the 2016 removals, as residual TPHg, BTEX and naphthalene
were documented at concentrations no exceeding applicable direct exposure SFRWQCB ESLs for
commercial/industrial land use in verification soil samples collected from beneath the tanks as well as in
the removed overburden. The subject property is now an open LUST case with the SFDPH (AllWest,
2018a).

AllWest Phase Il Subsurface Investigation, May 2018

AllWest conducted a subsurface investigation at the subject property on May 14 to 15, 2018, consisting of
the advancement of five soil borings (B-1 through B-5), and the collection of one groundwater sample.
The borings were advanced by track-mounted Geoprobe®direct push technology (DPT) methods to a
total depth of 15 to 40 bgs. Static groundwater was measured at approximately 37 feet bgs in boring B-3
following recovery overnight. Boring locations are shown on Figure 2.

Twenty one soil samples were collected from the borings. One grab groundwater sample was collected
from boring B-3. Fifteen soil samples were analyzed for total petroleum hydrocarbons as gasoline, diesel
and motor oil (TPH-g, TPH-d and TPH-mo); selected volatile organic compounds (VOCSs) including
benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene and total xylenes (BTEX), methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE), tert-butyl
alcohol (TBA), 1,2-dibromoethane (EDB), 1,2-dichloroethane (1,2-DCA) and naphthalene; and total lead.

Concentrations of TPH-g, TPH-d, benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, xylenes and napthalene were
detected at maximum respective concentrations of 19,000 milligrams per kilogram (mg/Kg), 1,200 mg/Kg,
94 mg/Kg, 190 mg/Kg, 570 mg/Kg, 1,000 mg/kg and 63 mg/Kg; above their applicable San Francisco
Regional Water Quality Control Board (SFRWQCB) Environmental Screening Levels (ELSSs) in soil
samples collected from borings B-3 and B-5 at depths between approximately 14.5 feet bgs and 39.5 feet
bgs.
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Elevated concentrations, in exceedance of their respective ESLs, of TPH-g, TPH-d, BTEX, and 1,2-DCA
were detected at 32,000 micrograms per liter (ug/L), 2,500 ug/L, 4,500 pg/L, 890 ug/L, 7,400 ug/L 4,200
Mg/l and 670 pg/L, respectively in the groundwater sample from boring B-3. No other constituents of
concern (COCs) were detected in any other soil samples at concentrations exceeding applicable ESLs.

In conclusion, AllWest’s subsurface assessment identified elevated levels of petroleum hydrocarbons in
soil and groundwater at the subject property exceeding applicable regulatory agency screening levels.
The vertical extent and partial lateral extent of elevated hydrocarbon constituent concentrations in soil
had been delineated and impacts to groundwater had been identified (AllWest, 2018b).

AllWest Groundwater Monitoring Well Installations and Sampling, July-August 2018

AllWest conducted a subsurface investigation at the subject property on July 30-31, 2018, consisting of
the advancement of three soil borings and their completion as groundwater monitoring wells. Two of the
borings were advanced in the Green Street sidewalk in front of the subject building to total depths of
approximately 43 to 45 feet bgs and completed as monitoring wells MW-1 and MW-2. One boring was
advanced to approximately 36 feet below basement grade (bbg) within the subject building basement and
completed as monitoring well MW-3.

Nineteen soil samples were collected from the borings. Nine soil samples (three per boring) were
analyzed. The only constituents of concern (COCs) detected in soil samples at concentrations exceeding
applicable SFRWQCB ESLs were TPH-g, benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene, total xylenes and napthalene
at maximum respective concentrations of 3,100 mg/Kg, 6.9 mg/Kg, 69 mg/Kg, 120 mg/Kg, 330 mg/Kg
and 25 mg/Kg; all at a depth of 14.5-15 feet bgs in boring MW-1.

The monitoring wells (MW-1, MW-2 & MW-3) were developed on August 3, 2018, and sampled on August
10, 2018. COCs detected in groundwater samples at concentrations exceeding applicable SFWQCB
ESLs were TPH-g, benzene, ethylbenzene, toluene and total xylenes at maximum respective
concentrations of 17,000 micrograms per liter (ug/L), 3,700 pg/L, 570 pg/L, 320 pg/L, 1,400 pg/L and
2,200 pg/L; all in MW-1. The only COC detected in groundwater samples at a concentration exceeding
applicable commercial/industrial groundwater vapor intrusion ESLs was benzene.

AllWest concluded the vertical extent of petroleum hydrocarbons in soil does not significantly extend
vertically below first encountered groundwater and petroleum hydrocarbons in soil do not significantly
extend laterally beyond the former UST excavations. AllWest concluded the downgradient extent of
dissolved petroleum hydrocarbons in groundwater has been largely delineated and probably does not
extend significantly downgradient of monitoring well MW-3 or beyond the subject property boundaries.
Dissolved VOCs in groundwater are unlikely to present a significant vapor intrusion risk to occupants of
the subject site building (AllWest, 2018c).

The purpose of the investigation is to characterize suspect fill material, native soil, shallow groundwater
and soil gas at the subject property as required prior to redevelopment activities in areas within the
Extended Maher Zone. Soil, groundwater and soil gas sampling and analysis will be conducted in
accordance with City of San Francisco Health Code revised Article 22A, Section 22A.7(b), to provide data
for preparation of a SMP, to address procedures to remove contaminated soil and groundwater prior to
site redevelopment activities.

The subject site building is to be remodeled as a four-story mixed use commercial/residential building with
five residential units and one commercial unit (at sidewalk grade) within the shell of the existing building.
The new building will be four stories high above a one-level below-grade parking garage. The basement
parking garage will be enlarged by excavating beneath the currently unexcavated southern portion of the
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building to the Green Street sidewalk, and deepened by demolishing and excavating below the existing
floor slab. The proposed finished floor slab elevation of the below-grade garage is estimated to be about
1 to 3 feet below the top of the existing basement floor slab.

The volume of soil disturbance was not indicated in the SFDPH EHB-SAM Maher Program application
but, based on the size of the proposed excavation, the Maher Program threshold of 50 cubic yards of soil
disturbance will be exceeded. Based on the proposed excavation dimensions, AllWest estimates up to
approximately 1,315 cubic yards of soil will be excavated (assuming excavation to 3 feet below current
basement grade). A plan of the proposed expanded basement parking garage is included in Appendix B.

The proposed scope of work consists of the following tasks:

1)

2)
3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

Prepare a written workplan for conducting a subsurface investigation including soil and soil vapor
sampling at the subject site. Submit the workplan to the SFDPH EHB-SAM for review and
approval;

Prepare a site-specific health and safety plan;
Obtain drilling permits from the SFDPH Environmental Health;

Engage the service of Underground Service Alert (USA) and a private underground utility locator
to locate and clear underground utilities within the proposed investigation area so that the
potential of accidental damage to underground utilities will be reduced during proposed
subsurface investigation. Notify SFDPH and property owner/tenants 5 days prior to the start of
field work;

Retain the services of a C-57 licensed drilling contractor for the advancement by Geoprobe®
Direct Push Technology (DPT) methods of five borings to the anticipated proposed foundation
excavation depth of approximately three feet below basement grade (bbg) within the subject
property building basement using a limited access track-mounted rig. Advance two additional
borings to approximately 13 feet bgs (Green Street grade) within the subject property building first
floor garage and office area adjacent to the Green Street sidewalk using a limited access track-
mounted rig.

Collect approximately 10 soil samples at depth intervals of approximately 0.5-1 and 2.5-3 feet
below basement grade from the basement borings and approximately 6 soil samples from 0.5-1,
4.5-5 and 12.5-13 feet bgs (street grade) from the first floor borings. Collect additional soil
samples if warranted based on observed evidence of contamination. Collect groundwater
samples (if required by the SFDPH EHB-SAM) from the existing basement groundwater
monitoring well, at additional cost pending client approval.

Further advance one of the basement borings to 5 feet below grade, install one temporary soil
gas probe within the borehole, and collect one soil gas sample. Remove casing and probes, seal
borings with cement grout and restore concrete floor slabs. Contain all soil spoils generated
during the assessment onsite pending profiling for disposal.

Maintain soil, soil gas and groundwater samples under chain-of-custody and transport the
samples to a Department of Health Services (DHS) certified analytical laboratory for chemical
analyses per SFHC Article 22A (Revised Maher Ordinance).

e Analyze nine selected soil samples (collected from each of the five basement borings at
approximately 0.5-1 feet bgs and from each of the two first floor borings at 0.5-1 and 12.5-13
feet bgs) per Article 22A requirements for total petroleum hydrocarbons as diesel and motor
oil (TPH-d and TPH-mo) without silica gel cleanup, total petroleum hydrocarbons as gasoline
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(TPH-g) and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) by EPA Method 8260B, semivolatile organic
compounds (SVOCs) including polynuclear aromatics (PNAs) and polyaromatic
hydrocarbons (PAHs) by EPA Method 8270C, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) by EPA
Method 8082, California assessment Manual (CAM)-17 metals by EPA Method 6020,
hexavalent chromium (Cr6) by EPA Method 7199, total cyanides by Standard Method SM
4500-CN, pH by EPA Method 9045D and asbestos by CARB Method 435; and

e Analyze the one soil gas sample for TPH-g by EPA Method TO-3, VOCs by EPA Method TO-
15, and methane by ASTM D1946, per Article 22A requirements, and for the leak detection
gas helium by ASTM D1946.

9) Review sample data and compare analytical results to Tier 1 and 2 Environmental Screening
Levels (ESLs) developed by the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board
(SFRWQCB), and to State of California Title 22 Total Threshold Limit Concentration (TTLC),
Soluble Threshold Limit Concentration (STLC) and Toxic Characteristic Leaching Procedure
(TCLP) levels.

10) Prepare a written report describing the field activities, summarizing the laboratory data,
presenting investigation findings, and providing conclusions and recommendations. Submit the
report to SFDPH.

AllWest will prepare and submit a drilling permit application for the Geoprobe® DPT borings to SFDPH
EHB-SAM for review and approval. AllWest will also prepare and submit lane closure permit applications
to SFDPW if necessary. Upon permit approval, AllWest will notify SFDPH of the drilling schedule a
minimum of 10 working days in advance to allow scheduling of drilling and grouting inspection.

AllWest will update the site specific health and safety plan prior to mobilizing to the site. A tailgate safety
meeting will be given prior to commencing work. All site personnel will be required to review the health
and safety plan.

To avoid damage to underground utility installations during the course of the subsurface investigation,
AllWest will contact USA, an organization for public utility information, on the pending subsurface
investigation. USA will then notify public and private entities that maintained underground utilities within
the site vicinity to locate and mark their installations for field identification. A private underground utility
locator, GPRS, Inc. of San Francisco, California, will also be employed by AllWest to conduct a
magnetometer and ground penetrating radar (GPR) sweep investigation to locate marked and unmarked
underground utilities in the vicinity of the proposed boring locations. Other qualified contractors may be
used if necessary.

To characterize the vertical and lateral extent of petroleum hydrocarbons and related compounds in soils
and groundwater (if encountered) around the former USTs, seven soil borings will be advanced with
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Geoprobe® DPT methods by a State of California C-57 licensed drilling contractor, Environmental Control
Associates, Inc. of Aptos, California. Other qualified drilling contractors may be used if necessary. Five
of the borings will be located in the building basement and advanced to a depth of 3 feet bbg. Two
borings will be located in the currently unexcavated area of the building first floor adjacent to the Green
Street sidewalk, and advanced to a depth of 13 feet bgs (sidewalk grade). The proposed boring locations
are shown in Figure 2.

The borings will be advanced by a limited access track-mounted rig using continuous core Geoprobe®
DPT sampling methods. Soil samples will be collected for lithologic characterization and potential
laboratory analysis using a nominal 4-foot long, 2-inch outside diameter (OD) stainless steel core barrel
drive probe and extension rods. The drive probe will be equipped with nhominal 1 %2-inch inside diameter
(ID) clear PVC plastic tubes that line the interior of the probe. The probe and insert tubes are together
hydraulically driven using a percussion hammer to the specified depth. After the specified drive interval,
the drive probe and rods are retrieved to the surface. The PVC tube containing subsurface soil is then
removed. Selected soil sample intervals will be cut from the PVC tube for analytical testing. The ends of
samples for possible analytical testing are sealed using Teflon™ squares and plastic end caps. The
samples are labeled, and stored in an iced cooler.

AllWest will collect approximately 10 soil samples at depth intervals of approximately 0.5-1 and 2.5-3 feet
bbg (basement grade) from the basement borings and approximately 6 soil samples from 0.5-1, 4.5-5 and
12.5-13 feet bgs (sidewalk grade) from the first floor borings, or within areas of obvious contamination,
and within the capillary fringe zone if groundwater is encountered, or depending upon visual observation,
odors and photo-ionizer detector (PID) screening.

AllWest will advance one of the basement borings to 5 feet bgs, install one temporary soil gas probe
within the borehole, and collect one soil gas sample. Remove casing and probes, seal borings with
cement grout and restore concrete floor slabs. Contain all soil spoils generated during the assessment
onsite pending profiling for disposal.

An AllWest environmental professional will oversee field work and drilling activities. The recovered soil
samples are inspected after each drive interval with lithologic and relevant drilling observations recorded.
Soil samples are screened for organic vapors using a PID or other appropriate device by taking readings
of headspace vapor concentrations of the soil inside a zip-lock plastic bag. PID readings, soil staining
and other relevant observations are recorded on the boring logs. Geoprobe® DPT soil sampling
procedures are included in Appendix B.

At the completion of drilling and sampling activities, Geoprobe® DPT drive casings and temporary soil
vapor probes and tubing will be removed and the borings will be backfilled with a “neat” Portland Type | or
Il cement grout slurry that is tremied into the borehole through a PVC pipe. The level of grout will be
checked to ascertain if any settling has occurred and will be “topped off” if required. Concrete surfaces
will be restored as appropriate. The SFDPH will be notified 5 days in advance of the anticipated grouting
time in order to schedule inspection.

All investigative derived wastes, soil (unused sample intervals) and water (decontamination, development
and/or purge water) will be temporarily stored at the property in 5-gallon buckets or 55-gallon drums,
awaiting test results to determine the proper disposal method.
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V. QUALITY ASSURANCE / QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM

A. Sample Preservation, Storage and Handling

To prevent the loss of constituents of interest, all soil and groundwater samples will be preserved by
storing in an ice chest cooled to 4°C with crushed ice immediately after their collection and during
transportation to the laboratory. Groundwater sample will be contained in appropriate laboratory-supplied
pre-preserved containers. Groundwater samples for metals analysis will be pre-filtered in the field.
Samples will be stored within the cooler in separate zip-lock plastic bags to avoid cross-contamination.

B. Chain-Of-Custody Program

All samples collected for this project will be transported under chain-of-custody protocol. The chain-of-
custody program allows for the tracing of possession and handling of individual samples from the time of
field collection through laboratory analysis. The document includes the signature of the collector, date and
time of collection, sample number, number and type of sample containers including preservatives,
parameters requested for analysis, signatures of persons and inclusive dates involved in the chain of
possession. Upon delivery to the laboratory the document will also include the name of the person
receiving the samples, and date and time samples were received.

VI.

ANALYTICAL METHODS

All samples selected for analysis will be analyzed by a State of California certified independent analytical
laboratory. McCampbell Analytical, Inc. of Pittsburg, California will perform soil, groundwater and soil
vapor analysis. Other available qualified State-certified analytical laboratories may be used as necessary.
All samples will be analyzed on standard 5-day turn-around time. Analytical methods are in general
accordance with those specified in SFHC Article 22A (Maher Ordinance).

The nine selected soil samples collected during this investigation will be analyzed for total TPH-d and
TPH-mo without silica gel cleanup, TPH-g and VOCs by EPA Method 8260B, SVOCs including PNAs and
PAHs by EPA Method 8270C, PCBs by EPA Method 8082, California CAM-17 metals by EPA Method
6020, Cr6 by EPA Method 7199, total cyanides by Standard Method SM 4500-CN, pH by EPA Method
9045D and asbestos by CARB Method 435.

Remaining collected soil samples (if any) will be archived for potential analysis based on initial analytical
results, pending client approval. Based on initial analytical results, selected soil samples may be analyzed
as warranted for STLC and TCLP metals pending client approval.

The one soil vapor sample collected during this investigation will be analyzed for TPH-g and VOCs by

EPA Methods TO-3 and TO-15 (mid-level detection limits), and for methane and the leak tracer gas
helium by ASTM D1946.

VIl. REPORT PREPARATION

A written report will be prepared for this investigation after the completion of all field work and receipt of
analytical results. Included in the report will be site plans, analytical tables, soil boring logs, chain-of-
custody documents, copies of the analytical laboratory reports, and conclusions and recommendations.
Analytical data will be compared to Tier 1 and 2 ESLs developed by the SFRWQCB, and to State of
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California Title 22 TTLC, STLC and TCLP levels, to evaluate risk to subject site occupants and to profile
excavated soil for disposal.

The report will be reviewed and signed by a California Professional Geologist. The report and associated

documents (chemical reports, survey data, boring logs, etc.) will be submitted to the SFDPH and
uploaded to the GeoTracker database.

VIIl. PROJECT STAFF AND SCHEDULE

Mr. Leonard P. Niles, P.G., C.H.G., a California Professional Geologist (PG 5774) and Certified
Hydrogeologist (CHG 357), will provide technical oversight for this project and act as the project manager
and regulatory liaison. Additionally, AllWest's staff of engineers, geologists, and technicians will be
employed to perform the various tasks of the project. AllWest will inform the SFDPH at least 5 days prior
to the start of field activities. AllWest will inform the SFDPH of any significant developments during the
course of the investigations.

IX. LIMITATIONS

AllWest has prepared this Phase Il Site Assessment Work Plan for the exclusive use of 1776 Green
Street, LLC, c/o Local Capital Group (Client) for this particular project and in accordance with generally
accepted practices at the time of the work and with our written proposal dated November 20, 2018. No
other warranties, either expressed or implied is made as to the professional advice offered. This plan is
not a specification for the proposed work and should not be used to bid out any of the proposed work
found within. Reliance on this plan by any party other than the Client is at the user’s sole risk.

Background information that AllWest has used in preparing this workplan, including but not limited to
previous field measurements, analytical results, site plans, and other data, has been furnished to AllWest
by the Client, its previous consultants, and/or third parties. AllWest has relied on this information as
furnished. AllWest is not responsible for nor has it confirmed the accuracy of this information.

X. REFERENCES

AllWest Environmental Inc. (AllWest), 2018c. Groundwater Monitoring Well Installation Report, 1776
Green Street, San Francisco, CA 94123, September 13.
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LW Construction Services, Inc. (LW), 2015. Phase | Update, 1776 Green Street, San Francisco, CA.
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Phase Il Site Assessment Work Plan AllWest Environmental, Inc.
1776 Green Street Project No. 18086.23
San Francisco, California 11 January 18, 2019





FIGURES





Topo USA® 8

,\\_ ST el F T T — - 7 ’
4D N orst—g N e AT ==2 | o
TAYLOR ST_TAY ] . . reE o s~
e : — aowesste = /) Vpﬂaamz 7 WEENR |
3 AL Yy , e
; B\\Eomm\w - st i A
¢«0 % \\\ " | ,& /ZVC\ ﬂ/—v\ iAUWmH W )
7 A7 A oRTRIST, = @\ YDEIST 2
L EaennoEEse Bl e N L 5
: ] ENTABIEL MCCORMICK m/a W e
gl s 7 g 2ol
AV z 3|0
AV Z o|2|=
5 - Ell )<
1 . o|¥fo
i % T : w12
) ol pOLK.S] G y X|lo|lx|o
, : ; ikl
3 ) o 0| o
3 d SHE M
. N e P P A
ClwlX|y o x|«
z|g[2)x| 2| |w
EEISEEHE
SNRNEIEIEE
o
o
M, WD |23
OUGHIST——2 S7 V =S
| ans 2 |58
A ] 2
o fM OCTAVIAST A o

=

[
/z.mm,mamw‘mﬂ 2

G
BRO AD

St

N

MN (13.9° E)

ft ]

|
.
—

=

% DELORME

L

B
| |

1200 1600 2000
o2
\%ﬁﬁ‘-‘”ﬁ’é\

40,0. 800

0
(e
s

LS

—_—






C:\Drawing Files\AllWest Environmental\18086.23\18086.23 Fig 2, Site Plan WExisting & Proposed Boring & MW Locations - 01/17/2019

\ 4 N4
YARD
4 N4
Multi-Family
SUBJECT PROPERTY Residential Building
(1776 Green Street) (1770 Green Street)
Residence
(1780 Green Street) BASEMENT GARAGE
(TO BE EXCAVATED TO 3 FEET BELOW
CURRENT BASEMENT GRADE
PROPOSED ELEVATOR PIT \
CURRENT UNEXCAVATED
AREA BELOW FIRST FLOOR \
(TO BE EXCAVATED) — FIRST FLOOR GARAGE
— WALL
FIRST FLOOR
OFFICE BN
— RAMP
SIDEWALK
B-2 4% ROLL-UP
L DOORS

LEGEND

/A Proposed Geoprobe DPT Boring and

GREEN STREET

Temporary Soil Vapor Probe to 5 feet bbg
- N FIGURE 2
T eeRe iet Poor  Street Gract) SITE PLAN WITH EXISTING AND
¥ Proposed Geoprobe DPT Boring to 3 feet MONITORING WELL LOCATIONS
Below Basement Grase (bbg)
o . 1776 Green Street
MW—S{} Monitoring Well Location
(AllWest, 7/30-7/31/18) . » . A"\VGSI' San Francisco, California
B5< Geoprobe Borngs (AMNESL, 5/145/14/16)| | el | PROJEGT NO. | SOURGE: AllWest, Google Earth
T F UST Locati
o TormertRy roctons APPROXMATESCALE | 18086.23 | pRAWN BY: CM (01/17/2019)






APPENDIX A





City and County of San Francisco London Breed, Mayor

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH Greg Wagner, Director of Health
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH Stephanie K.J. Cushing, MSPH, CHMM, REHS
Environmental Health Director
9 November 2018
1776 Green Street LLC
The Presidio — 572 Ruger Street, Ste. A
San Francisco, CA 94129

Email: jbickford@localcapgroup.com

Subject: PHASE II ASSESSMENT WORK PLAN REQUEST
1776 GREEN STREET
EHB-SAM NO. SMED: 1751

Dear Mr. John Bickford:

In accordance with the San Francisco Health Code, Article 22A and the Building Code, Section
106A.3.2.4.1, 106A.3.2.4.2 and 106A.3.2.4.4 — Hazardous Substances;, the San Francisco
Department of Public Health, Environmental Health Branch, Site Assessment and Mitigation
(EHB-SAM) has reviewed the following documents:

1. Geotechnical Investigation Report by Rockridge Geotechnical dated 29 July 2018.
2. Environmental Site Assessment Report by AllWest Environmental dated 1 March 2018.
3. Plan Drawings by Sutro Architects dated 18 July 2018.

Site Description

The subject property is developed on a rectangular site comprising approximately 0.17 acre (7,422
square feet), designated as assessor’s parcel number (APN) 0544/006. 1t’s located in the Marina
District, on the north side of Green Street between Octavia and Gough Streets. The parcel has
approximately 54 feet of street frontage along Green Street and extends approximately 138 feet
north. The subject property is developed with a single-story light-industrial building with a
basement and mezzanine. The building, which occupies the entire footprint of the property, is
reported at 12,450 square feet. Construction of the masonry/concrete building was completed in
1914. The building is occupied by an auto body shop. The zoning designation for the subject
property is RH-2 — residential-house. The subject property is located on a residential street in a
mixed-use residential and commercial area of the Marina District of San Francisco. Adjoining sites
include residential structures to the south, west and east and small parking lots followed by
commercial/residential structures to the north. Site topography is generally flat, at an elevation of
approximately 94 feet above mean sea level (msl). Topography in the immediate vicinity slopes
moderately towards the north, then towards the northwest. Depth to ground water was documented
as variable in the vicinity, ranging from approximately 8 to 35 feet below ground surface. Ground
water was not encountered to a depth of at least 12 feet during excavation activity conducted on
the subject property. Ground water flow direction in the vicinity is anticipated to follow the local
topography towards the north.

CONTAMINATED SITES ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION PROGRAM
1390 Market Street, Suite 210, San Francisco, CA 94102
Phone 415-252-3926 | Fax 415-252-3910
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Site History

AllWest assessed the site’s land use history by reviewing aerial photographs, city directories,
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps and other relevant documents. Their review revealed the subject
property to be residentially developed by the 1890s, with dwellings remaining present through
1913. The existing building was constructed in 1914 and documented as being utilized for
automotive repair purposes by several different businesses between 1914 and the present.

Small quantity hazardous materials use by the existing property tenant was observed, including
assorted automotive fluids and auto body paints and related materials. Small quantity hazardous
waste generation by former occupants of the subject property was also reported. Based on many
decades of occupancy by several previous automotive and auto body repair businesses, use and
storage of hazardous materials, including solvents and fuels, is presumed.

Proposed Project Scope

The proposed project is to construct a new mixed-use building with five residential units and one
commercial unit (at sidewalk grade) within the shell of the existing building. The new building
will be four stories high above a one-level below-grade parking garage. The finished floor
elevation of the below-grade garage is estimated to be about 12 to 18 inches below the top of the
existing basement floor slab. The volume of soil disturbance was not indicated in EHB-SAM
application but based on the size of the lot the threshold of 50 cu yards of soil disturbance will be
exceeded.

Geotechnical Information

According to the Geotechnical report the garage floor slab is underlain by undocumented fill
ranging from less that one foot at (Cone Penetration Test) CPT-1 location to approximately 6-1/2
feet below top of slab (bts) at CPT-4.

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment

The Soil Sample Analysis by Allwest Environmental noted that petroleum hydrocarbons and
related compounds were detected in soil remaining in place beneath the former USTs, residual
concentrations was at same level as the California Regional Water Quality Control Board
Environmental Screening Levels (ESLs) for direct exposure. AllWest recommends preparation
and submittal of the required work plan, outlining a subsurface investigation to satisfy SFDPH
requirements prior to requesting case closure.

The second recognized environmental condition (REC) is the site’s location with the Expanded
Maher Area. Subsurface investigations throughout the Area have documented the presence of lead,
mercury and other toxic metals, and petroleum hydrocarbons such as oils and creosotes, in shallow
soil, fill material and ground water. The sources of these contaminants are past industrial land use
activities and the use of debris from the 1906 earthquake in fill materials. Designation of the
subject property within the Expanded Maher Area is primarily attributable to the identified UST
release.
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2016 UST Removal Verification Sampling Results:
Sample TPHd TPHg B T E X Naph.
Location
Tank1 South NA 2,300 0.37 14.4 34.3 141 22.9
Tank]1 North NA 2,800 ND 19.8 45.8 198 40.8
Tank 2 South NA 2,360 0.87 54.1 41.9 173 44.2
Tank 2 North NA 2,400 ND &0 20.6 75.5 14.6
Tank3 South NA 373 ND 0-39 3.7 15 12
Tank3 North NA 97 ND 0.09 058 24 33
Tank4 South NA 460 ND ND 024 ND 2.1
Tank4 North NA 200 N2 ND 0 019 0.79
Excavation Soil | '%7° 660 ND 0.05 N 2 0.35
Tier 1 ESL 230 100 0.04 29 1.4 2.3 0.03
Direct Exposure 880 2,800 24 4,100 480 2,400 350
ESL

Numbers in bold font exceed one or both ESLs
1All samples collected from a depth of 10 feet bgs with
exception of Subgrade Sample collected at 12 feet bgs

Based on EHB-SAM review of documents (1- 3) a Phase II Subsurface Investigation is warranted.

Please submit a Phase II Site Assessment Work Plan via unsecured PDF/Word document to the
email below. Should you have any questions please contact me at (415) 252-3892 or

joseph.ossai@sfdph.org.

Sincerely, |

: U=\
: J
Joseph Ossai,” MSEE, PE, REHS

Senior Environmental Health Inspector

cc: Jeanie Poling, San Francisco Planning Department

Daniel Lowrey, San Francisco Department of Building Inspection
Mark Walls, San Francisco Department of Building Inspection
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STANDARD GEOPROBE™ DPT SAMPLING PROCEDURES

Soil Sampling

Direct push technology (DPT) soil core sampling using Geoprobe™ or similar methods is
accomplished using a nominal 4-foot long, 2-inch outside diameter (OD) stainless steel core
barrel drive probe and extension rods. The drive probe is equipped with nominal 1 ¥2-inch inside
diameter (ID) clear PVC plastic tubes that line the interior of the probe. The probe and insert
tubes are together hydraulically driven using a percussion hammer in 4-foot intervals to the
specified depth. After each drive interval the drive probe and rods are retrieved to the surface.
The PVC tube containing subsurface soil is then removed. Selected soil sample intervals can be
cut from the 4-foot PVC tube for possible analytical or geotechnical testing, or other purposes.

The drive probe is then cleaned, equipped with a new PVC tube and reinserted into the boring
with extension rods as required. The apparatus is then driven following the above procedure until
the desired depth is obtained. The PVVC tubes and recovered soil are inspected after each drive
interval with lithologic and relevant drilling observations recorded. Soil samples are screened for
organic vapors using an organic vapor meter (OVM), photo-ionization detector (PID) or other
appropriate device. OVM/PID readings, soil staining and other relevant observations are
recorded. The soils contained in the sample liners are then classified according to the Uniform
Soil Classification System and recorded on the soil boring logs.

Sample liners selected for laboratory analyses are sealed with Teflon™ sheets, plastic end caps,
and silicon tape. Samples can also be collected from inside the liner using an EnCore™ type
sampler per EPA Method 5035. The sealed sample liner is then labeled, sealed in a plastic bag,
and placed in an ice chest cooled to 4°C with crushed ice for temporary field storage and
transportation. The standard chain-of-custody protocol is maintained for all soil samples from the
time of collection to arrival at the laboratory.

Groundwater Sampling

Groundwater sampling is performed after the completion of soil sampling and when the boring
has reached its desired depth. The steel probe and rods are then removed from the boring and
new, nominal 1-inch diameter PVC solid and perforated temporary casing is lowered into the
borehole. Alternatively, a retractable screen sampling device such as a Hydropunch™ can be
driven to the desired depth and pulled back to expose the screened interval. Depth to water is
then measured using an electronic groundwater sounding probe. Groundwater samples are
collected using a stainless steel bailer, disposable polyethylene bailer, or check valve or
peristaltic pump with disposable Teflon™ or polyethylene sample tubing.

After the retrieval of the bailer, groundwater contained in the bailer (or discharged from sample
tubing) is decanted into laboratory provided containers. The containers are then sealed with
Teflon™ coated caps with no headspace, labeled, and placed in an ice chest for field storage and
transportation to a state certified analytical laboratory. The standard chain-of-custody protocols
are followed from sample collection to delivery to the laboratory. A new bailer (or sample
tubing) is used for each groundwater sampling location to avoid cross contamination.
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Soil Gas Probe Emplacement Methods
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STANDARD GEOPROBE® AND SUB-SLAB PROBE SOIL VAPOR SAMPLING
PROCEDURES

Geoprobe® DPT PRT Temporary Soil Vapor Probe Advancement

The Geoprobe® Direct Push Technology (DPT) Post Run Tubing (PRT) soil vapor sampling process
involves driving into the subsurface a disposable Geoprobe® DPT sampling probe with expendable tip and
a PRT adapter that are connected to 4-foot sections of Geoprobe® 1.25-inch inside diameter (ID) extension
rods. The PRT adapter has a reverse-thread adapter at the upper end to allow the connection of flexible soil
vapor sampling tubing with a PRT tubing adaptor after the installation (post-run) of the tip. The entire
sampling assembly, the sampling tip, PRT adapter, and the Geoprobe® extension rods, is driven into the
subsurface by a truck-mounted hydraulic percussion hammer. The sampler is driven to the desired depth as
additional rods are connected. At the desired sampling depth, typically 5 feet below ground surface (bgs) a
sufficient length of disposable flexible 0.25-inch OD polyethylene, Nylaflow™ or Teflon™ sample tubing
is first lowered through the center of the extension rod and connected to the PRT adapter. Only Teflon™
sample tubing is to be used if naphthalene analysis is intended. The extension rod is then retracted 3 to 4
inches to create a small void around the PRT adapter and the expendable sampling tip for extracting a soil
vapor sample from that location. Bentonite chips will be used to fill the annular space between the probe
and the subgrade material to the ground surface. The bentonite will then be hydrated with distilled water.
The temporary Geoprobe® PRT soil vapor probe will be sampled at least 2 hours following driving of the
probe, to allow vapor conditions to equalize in subsurface materials and the bentonite surface seal to
hydrate in general accordance with guidelines presented in the CalEPA Department of Toxic Substance
Control (DTSC) Advisory — Active Soil Gas Investigations, July, 2015.

Geoprobe® DPT Borehole Advancement and Temporary Soil Vapor Probe Installation

Alternatively, borings can be advanced using truck-mounted or limited access Geoprobe® DPT continuous
coring equipment using a nominal 4-foot long, 2-inch OD stainless steel core barrel drive sampler and
extension rods. The drive probe will be equipped with nominal 1 ¥-inch inside diameter (ID) clear PETG
plastic tubes that line the interior of the probe. Continuous soil sample cores are recovered for potential
lithologic characterization and laboratory analysis. Alternatively, borings can be advanced using truck-
mounted or limited access Geoprobe® DPT equipment, or a hand-operated slide hammer, to drive 1-inch
outside diameter (OD) rods and probes with expendable steel tips without recovering soil cores. After the
probes or core barrels are advanced to the specified depth, typically 5.5 feet bgs, the probes and drive rods
are removed, leaving the borehole open with the expendable probe tip (if used) at the bottom.

Plastic or stainless steel soil vapor probes, “2-inch diameter by 2-inches long and tipped with porous plastic
membranes, are then inserted to the bottom of the 1-inch diameter boreholes at 5 feet bgs. The probe tips
are attached to 7-foot lengths of flexible 0.25-inch OD polyethylene, Nylaflow™ or Teflon™ tubing
extending to the top of the floor slab. Only Teflon™ sample tubing is to be used if naphthalene analysis is
intended. A 1-foot interval of fine sand filter pack is placed in the borehole annulus around the probe,
typically from approximately 4.5 to 5.5 feet bgs. A 1-foot interval of the annular space above the filter
pack is then filled with non-hydrated granular bentonite. Hydrated granular bentonite or bentonite chips
are then used to fill the annular space above the non-hydrated granular bentonite to the top of the floor slab
or surface pavement. The bentonite is allowed to hydrate and borehole conditions to equalize for 2 hours
prior to sampling activities, per DTSC vapor sampling guidelines. Temporary soil vapor probe installation
procedures will be performed in general accordance with guidelines presented in the DTSC Advisory —
Active Soil Gas Investigations, July, 2015.

Page 1 of 4
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Sub Slab Soil VVapor Probe Installation

Semi-permanent sub-slab soil vapor probes are emplaced as follows: A 1-inch diameter hole is drilled
through the concrete floor slab using a portable electric drill. The boreholes are advanced approximately
0.5 feet bgs into the subgrade material beneath the floor slab. Stainless steel or plastic vapor probes 2
inches long by 0.5 inches in diameter, tipped with porous plastic membranes, will be inserted to the bottom
of each sub-slab borehole. The probe tips will be attached to lengths of 0.25-inch diameter Teflon™ or
stainless steel tubing extending to approximately 1 inch below the top of the floor slab. The top of the
Teflon™ or stainless steel tubing in each probe will be attached to a brass threaded male Swagelock™
fitting and cap recessed below the concrete floor. A fine sand filter pack approximately 2 to 4 inches thick
will be placed in the borehole annulus around the probes. A Teflon™ sealing disk will be placed around
the tubing above the filter pack.

Dry granular bentonite will be placed in the borehole annulus above the Teflon™ sealing disk to above the
base of the concrete floor slab. Hydrated granulated bentonite will then be used to fill the annular space
above the dry granular to approximately 2 inches above the bottom of the floor slab, and will be hydrated
from the surface using deionized water. Quick-drying cement/bentonite grout will then be used to fill the
remaining annular space to the Swagelock fitting approximately %. to 1 inch below the top of the slab. A
watertight plastic cap or metal vault box will be installed flush with the top of the floor slab within a 2 to 4-
inch diameter countersunk hole to protect the probe fitting. At least 2 hours will elapse prior to collecting
vapor samples to allow the bentonite and cement grout seal to hydrate and borehole conditions to equalize,
per DTSC sub-slab vapor sampling guidelines (DTSC, 2011).

Soil Vapor Sampling via Summa Canister

Soil vapor sampling procedures will be similar for Geoprobe® PRT and continuously cored temporary soil
vapor probes, and semi-permanent sub-slab soil vapor probes, and will be in general accordance with
DTSC Advisory — Active Soil Gas Investigations, July 2015. Soil vapor sampling will not be performed if
significant precipitation (greater than % inch in a 24 hour period) has occurred within the previous five
days. The soil vapor probe Teflon™ sample tubing will be connected to the sample manifold system via
threaded SwageLok™ connectors.

AllWest will collect soil vapor samples in laboratory prepared 1-liter capacity SUMMA canisters. Prior to
vapor purging and sample collection, a vacuum leak shut-in test of the flow-controller/gauge manifold
assembly will be performed for a minimum of 1 minute, with a no allowable observed vacuum drop of 0.2
inches of mercury (in Hg). If any noticeable vacuum drop is observed, the manifold fittings will be
tightened or manifold replaced and the shut-in test redone. Vacuum gauge sensitivity will register a
minimum of 0.5 inches of mercury (in Hg). The sampling system configuration is shown in the attached
schematic diagram.

Prior to sample collection, approximately 3 sampling system volumes of soil vapor will be purged at a flow
rate of approximately 150-200 milliliters per minute (ml/min) from each vapor probe using a dedicated 6-
liter capacity SUMMA purge canister (approximately 200 ml per in Hg vacuum). A 3-way valve (with the
handle mounted outside the leak detection shroud) will be opened to divert the flow of purged soil vapor
from the probe to the purge Summa canister, after opening the purge Summa valve. Typical sampling
system volumes are 4.5 ml/feet for ¥%-inch OD/0.17-inch ID tubing, and 200 ml/feet for a 2-inch diameter
borehole with sand filter pack (minus tubing volume). Assuming a 2-inch diameter borehole with a 0.5
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feet sand filter pack interval, the typical system volume would be approximately 130 ml for a 5-feet bgs
temporary probe, and 115 ml for a 1-feet bgs sub-slab probe, including 2-3 feet of tubing above grade.
Therefore, 3 system volumes would typically be approximately 350 to 400 milliliters (ml) depending on
tubing length and borehole diameter, depth and filter pack interval.

Alternatively, for large purge volumes an electric battery-powered vacuum pump may be used for purging.
The vacuum pump is located outside of the leak detection shroud and connected to the flow-
controller/gauge manifold assembly inside the shroud by %-inch OD/0.17-inch 1D Teflon tubing passing
through a 2-way valve (with the handle mounted outside the leak detection shroud). During the purging
operation, the valve is opened to allow soil vapor to be purged by the pump. The pump is equipped with a
variable rate flow controller, in addition to the flow regulator on the manifold, and the flow rate is set at
150-200 mi/min. The purge volume is determined by the purge time multiplied by the flow rate. When the
required soil vapor volume has been purged, the 2-way valve is closed to isolate the pump from the
sampling manifold, and the pump turned off.

During purging and sampling, a leak detection test is conducted using helium as a leak tracer inside an
airtight plastic shroud covering the entire sampling apparatus, as recommended in the DTSC Advisory —
Active Soil Gas Investigations (DTSC Appendix C, 2015). The leak detection shroud configuration is
shown in the attached schematic diagram. The helium concentration within the shroud is monitored with a
helium gas detection meter with a minimum precision of 0.1% to keep the ambient concentration at
approximately 10% to 20% (or at least two orders of magnitude above the minimum meter detection limit).
The helium tracer gas will be infused into the shroud at the required concentration at least 5 minutes prior
to purging and sample collection. The ambient helium concentration within the shroud will be maintained
throughout the purge and sample periods to within £10% of the target concentration.

Depending upon helium availability, other leak detection gases such as isopropyl alcohol (IPA) or
difluoroethane (DFA, commonly known as DustOff) may be substituted. Ambient concentrations of IPA
within the shroud or purged soil vapor will be measured with a photo-ionization detector (PID); DFA
concentrations are not measurable with a PID. The same volume of IPA (typically a cotton ball soaked
with 5 milliliters of IPA) or DFA (typically a 5-second aerosol can discharge) will be used for each sample
to maintain consistent ambient concentrations within the shroud.

Immediately following purging of 3 sampling system volumes of soil vapor, a leak test of the probe seal
will be conducted by using the 3-way valve to divert the flow of purged soil vapor from the probe to the
helium detection meter via a monitoring port on the outside of the shroud. If the measured purged soil
vapor helium concentration is less than 5% of the ambient shroud concentration, the soil vapor probe seal
is presumed to be acceptable (per DTSC Appendix C, 2015), and sampling will proceed. If the measured
purged soil vapor helium concentration is greater than 5% of the ambient shroud concentration, the soil
vapor probe seal is presumed to be defective, and the probe should be reinstalled and re-sampled.

Following the purged soil vapor readings and acceptable vapor probe seal leak test, the 3-way and purge
Summa valves will be closed, sample Summa valve opened, and additional helium added to the shroud to
bring the ambient concentration back up to within £10% of the target concentration. The 3-way valve will
then be turned to divert soil vapor from the probe to the sample Summa canister. To verify helium
detection (or PID if used) meter accuracy, one (1) ambient air sample per day is usually collected using a
1-liter SUMMA canister with a 150-200 ml/min flow restrictor inside the leak detection shroud during the
sampling of one probe to measure ambient helium (or IPA or DFA if used instead) concentrations inside
the shroud.
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Flow rates of approximately 150-200 ml/min are used to fill the sample canisters. The canisters are filled to
approximate 80% of capacity (approximately 5 inches of mercury vacuum remaining), at which point first
the 3-way valve, then the sample Summa valve are closed. All pertinent field observations, pressure, times
and readings are recorded. After filling and closing the sample valve, all SUMMA canisters are removed
from the manifold, labeled with sampling information, including initial and final vacuum pressures, placed
in a dark container and transported under chain-of-custody to the analytical laboratory. The analytical
laboratory will record the final SUMMA canister vacuum upon receipt.

Soil Vapor Sampling via Tenax™ Sorbent Tubes

For collecting soil vapor samples in sorbent tubes for analysis by EPA Method TO-17, the sampling
manifold setup, shut-in leak checks, system purging and leak detect shroud setup are similar to that using
Summa canisters. However, instead of using Summa canisters for sample collection, samples are collected
in stainless steel sample tubes filled with Tenax™ sorbent material. The sorbent tubes are attached with
Swagelock™ fittings to the sample manifold downstream from the gauges, filters, flow restrictors, and
purge canister or pump, and within the leak detection shroud. In areas of suspected high contaminant
concentrations, two (2) Tenax™ sorbent tubes may be placed in series to prevent contaminant
breakthrough. A vacuum pump, 100 ml syringe or second SUMMA sample purge canister is attached to
the downstream end of the Tenax™ sorbent tubes. If the sample manifold train is too large to fit in the
leak detection shroud, the pump, syringe or second sample purge SUMMA may be located outside the
shroud with the sample train tubing passing through the shroud wall.

A cotton ball saturated with approximately 5 ml isopropyl alcohol (IPA) and placed inside the shroud will
be used as the leak detection gas agent. A photo-ionization detector (PID) is used to monitor IPA
concentrations within the leak detection shroud, or purged soil vapor through access ports in the shroud via
the 3-way valve. The 3-way valve is used to divert purged soil vapor to either the purge Summa canister
during purging, or to the purged soil vapor monitoring port following purging for probe seal leak detection
by monitoring IPA concentrations with a PID, as described in the Summa canister sampling section.

Flow rates of approximately 50 to 100 ml/min are used to fill the sorbent tubes with a total sample volume
of approximately 1 to 4 liters, depending on the desired laboratory detection limits. The sampling system
vacuum should not exceed 100 inches of water (or 7.4 in Hg). All pertinent field observations, pressure,
times, and ambient and soil vapor IPA (PID) concentration readings are recorded. After the desired sample
volume is withdrawn through the sorbent tubes, the tubes are removed from the manifold, capped with
Swagelock™ caps, wrapped in aluminum foil, placed in a sealed plastic tube container, labeled with
sampling information, placed in an ice chest cooled to 4°C with crushed ice, and transported under chain-
of-custody to the analytical laboratory.
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 3945 Judah Street Proposal: 2018-000468CUA4 Record No.: 2018-000468AHB Block 1809/028
Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 10:49:42 AM

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

From: Kyle Stanner <kstanner@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 1:19 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>

Cc: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Marstaff (BOS) <marstaff@sfgov.org>

Subject: 3945 Judah Street Proposal: 2018-000468CUA4 Record No.: 2018-000468AHB Block
1809/028

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Ladies and Gentlemen,

| am writing regarding the above proposal in the Sunset District at an old gas station located on
Judah Street. | have some concerns regarding the proposed height that will far exceed neighboring
buildings and the influx of traffic and vehicles that will surely take up parking space where parking is
very limited. | am not opposed to developing this site, and indeed welcome a developer building,
however | believe that any building should conform with the existing neighborhood. If we allow the
development of a 20 unit apartment building will put undue stress on the infrastructure, encourage
other property owners to grant exceptions to zoning and contribute to the manhatanization of our
community.

Thanks for your consideration of my concerns.

-Kyle Stanner
Resident, Outer Sunset, 94122.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Item 16. 3945 Judah Street OPPOSE
Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 10:49:08 AM
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

From: Kathy Howard <kathyhoward@earthlink.net>

Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 2:59 PM

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-
Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore
<mooreurban@aol.com>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna
(CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>

Cc: Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC) <gabriela.pantoja@sfgov.org>

Subject: Item 16. 3945 Judah Street OPPOSE

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Commissioners,

I live in the Outer Sunset, very close to the proposed project at 3945 Judah Street. This is not a good
project for San Francisco and provides minimal benefit for all the people who need housing and cannot
afford to stay in their home city.

| understand that there has been legislation that gives expedited approvals and up-zoning to this type of
project. This project underlines why that expedited approval process is a bad process for San Francisco.

San Francisco needs 100% affordable housing projects. We do not need market rate units. In fact, we
should stop building market rate units and offices until we have met the housing need for the residents
who cannot afford anything even close to the current market rents.

There is only so much land in San Francisco. When we build market rate housing, that land is no longer
available for affordable housing. There needs to be a plan for the city that takes this into account.

Added to this, let's face it - architecturally this is just another big, ugly building. It does not fit into the
beach-town quality of the Outer Sunset and is totally out of scale with the surrounding area. It will be an
eye-sore forever.

We need to modify the legislation that allowed this to happen and to have a city-wide plan that takes into
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account the needs of our underserved residents while allowing a robust neighborhood planning process.
Thank you for your consideration.
Katherine Howard

42nd Avenue,
Outer Sunset.



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: 1776 Green Street: Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR
Date: Wednesday, November 06, 2019 10:45:52 AM
Attachments: 1776 Green letter 20191105 KimEllis.pdf

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

From: Youjeong Kim <ykimellis@yahoo.com>

Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 9:29 PM

To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; May, Christopher (CPC)
<christopher.may@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>

Subject: 1776 Green Street: Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear President Melgar, Honorable Members of the Planning Commission and Mr. May,

We are neighbors directly facing 1776 Green Street, San Francisco, California, writing to you
regarding the proposed project (“Project”) at 1776 Green Street, Case No. 2018-
011430CUAVAR. We oppose the Project in its current form and have a number of
concerns, specifically:

1) Privacy & Noise | Communal Roof Deck

Adverse Impact to Historic Resource | Height Variance for Elevator Penthouse

We urge the Commission to eliminate the Project’s communal roof deck and to deny the height
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Youjeong Kim & Ben Ellis
1775 Green Street
San Francisco, CA 94123

November 5, 2019

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
regarding the proposed project (“Project”) at 1776 Green Street, Case No. 2018-011430CUAVAR.

We oppose the Project in its current form and have a number of concerns, specifically:

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

o Each of the five units has its own private usable open space via terraces and decks well in
excess of the Planning Code requirements (94 to 387 sq ft larger than the 125 sq ft required





per unit). Consequently, the 1369 sq ft common roof deck is unnecessary and excessive.
Given that each unit has private usable open space ranging from 219 sq ft to 512 sq ft per
unit, we're concerned that the common roof deck will mostly be used for large parties and
gatherings, thereby compromising our privacy as our living space would be in direct sight
from the roof deck. Furthermore, immediately adjacent to the Project to the east is a seven-
story apartment building which will amplify any noise arising from the roof deck.

e The 13-foot elevator penthouse adversely impacts not only the historic resource but also
the plain sight directly from our living space. The plans contemplate an elevator shaft that
would rise above 13 feet above the forty-foot elevation limit, which would also look
awkwardly out of place and should not be granted. The Project Sponsor is well aware of
alternative elevator systems that would not require the exceedance of the forty-foot
elevation limit.

2) Public Health and Safety | Hazardous Materials

We're parents of young children and Youjeong is a medical doctor who completed all of her medical
training at UCSF. We're very concerned that the project site is listed on the City's Maher Map of
contaminated sites. This is a result of many decades of use as an automobile repair shop, including
many decades when environmental laws were non-existent. The site is contaminated with
hazardous chemicals. This is a matter of public health and safety, and we urge the City to require a
thorough clean-up of the site to residential standards to safeguard neighborhood residents, future

residents of the project, and construction workers. We urge the Commission to require that extra
care must be taken when dealing with the contaminants and pollutants on the project site. We

further urge the Commission to require full compliance with the City's Maher Ordinance, and
review under the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"). We support the creation of new

housing units in San Francisco but want to make sure that there won’t be negative environmental
or health impacts for our family and community during the excavation and construction and
beyond.

3) Variance for Rear-Yard Setback

We urge the Commission to deny the request for a rear-yard variance and rather create open space
at the back of the lot for the use of the residents of the Project. This will enhance the livability of
this Project and is more appropriate for the neighborhood. We as owners of our lot would never be
allowed to build a structure that takes up the entire lot without leaving space for the rear-yard.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Youjeong Kim & Benjamin Ellis
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Sincerely,

Youjeong Kim & Benjamin Ellis

1773-1775 Green Street
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

Subject: FW: Academy of Art University - Director"s Report on DA

Date: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 2:02:20 PM

Attachments: Academy Director Report.pdf

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

From: Sider, Dan (CPC) <dan.sider@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 12:54 PM

To: Calvillo, Angela (BOS) <angela.calvillo@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT) <Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org>

Subject: Academy of Art University - Director's Report on DA

Dear Clerk Calvillo and Secretary lonin,

Attached please find our office’s Director’s Report on the Academy of Art University Development
Agreement. Would you please kindly distribute to members of the Board and Commission? If you’'d
like hard copies, please let me know and | can have them delivered. The Report, along with a range
of other Academy-related information, is also available at sfplanning.org/academy.

Thank you!

dan

Daniel A. Sider, AICP

Director of Executive Programs

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6697 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

DATE: October 24, 2019

TO: Members of the San Francisco Board of Supervisors
Memb an Francisco-Planning Commission

FROM: John Rahat anning Director

RE: Academyof University Development Agreement
Summary of the draft agreement and negotiations

Project Address: 43 Properties Owned or Leased by the Academy of Art

University (Academy)

Chapter 56 of the San Francisco Administrative Code sets forth the procedure by which any request for a
Development Agreement (DA) will be processed and approved by the City and County of San Francisco.
Administrative Code Section 56.10(a) describes a Planning Director report on DA negotiations between the
applicant and the City, to be disclosed to the Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors. In the
present case, the Department and the City Attorneys’ Office propose legislation that will waive certain
provisions of Section 56, including strict compliance with the formatting and content requirements of the
Directors’ Report, for the reasons described below.

This Development Agreement was negotiated in the context of judicially supervised settlement efforts
related to litigation initiated by the City Attorney, on behalf of the City and County of San Francisco (the
City), and People of the State of California, against the Stephens Institute dba Academy of Art University
(the Academy) and the LLC Parties in People v. Stephens Institute, et. Al, San Francisco Superior Court
Number CGC-16-551-832 (the Lawsuit). Before the City filed the Lawsuit, the City and the Academy had
been in a long-standing and complex set of disputes over a significant number of open enforcement actions
and entitlement applications relating to Academy properties that were out of compliance with the Planning
Code. On November 15, 2016, the Academy and the City entered into a judicially supervised non-binding
Term Sheet for Global Resolution (the “Initial Term Sheet”). The Initial Term Sheet, which was made public,
contemplated settlement of the Lawsuit through a set of agreements including a DA. As such, the Academy
submitted a DA application on December 19, 2017 and thereafter the Academy and the City commenced
a series of meetings to develop the terms of the DA, along with other terms related to the settlement of the
Lawsuit. The parties, again in the context of judicially supervised settlement efforts, modified the Initial
Term Sheet through a Supplement to the Term Sheet dated July 10, 2019, which was also made public. The
parties met to conform the terms of the DA and related documents to the Supplement and finalize their
proposed terms.

! For record keeping purposes, the case number used by the Planning Department for the DA is 2008.0586;
however, no portion of the current DA was negotiated prior to the judicially supervised Initial Term Sheet.
For ease of public access to DA documents, these records are also associated with Case No. 2019-
012970DV A, which shares the parent record number with the Academy’s Institutional Master Plan, Master
Conditional Use Authorization, Master Permit to Alter and Master Certificate of Appropriateness
applications that will be acted upon by the Planning Commission and Historic Preservation Commission;
in this way, all parts of the Project are consolidated under a single record number.
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Under the Development Agreement, the Academy agrees to withdraw from, and cease any operation at,
nine (9) of the Academy’s current properties, shrinking the Academy’s current footprint within the City.
The Academy will also bring the thirty-four (34) properties used by the Academy or intended for future
Academy use, located throughout San Francisco, into compliance with the Planning Code. Compliance of
the Academy Properties with the Planning Code requires the City’s approval of a variety of permits and
authorizations, including (i) legislation approving the DA and implementing limited amendments to the
Planning Code, (ii) approval of a master conditional use authorization by the Planning Commission to
reflect the approval of the use of thirty-four (34) buildings and to grant certain exceptions to the Planning
Code, (iii) the approval of master permits to alter, and master certificates of appropriateness, by the Historic
Preservation Commission, and (iv) a variety of other building alterations and street improvements
including without limitation the removal and installation of signage, removal and repair of nonconforming
awnings and exterior alterations, the installation Class 1 and Class 2 bike racks, the removal of curb cuts,
and the replaceiment of certain windows. In addition, the project includes removing the Hotel Conversion
Ordinance Residential Guestroom designation (Administrative Code Chapter 41) from certain guest rooms
in 1060 Bush and 1153 Bush Street, and relocating that designation to rooms located in 860 Sutter, along
with the net addition of 8 new Chapter 41 Residential Guestrooms to be added to the City’s affordable
housing stock. This transfer of Chapter 41 designations will be permanent, resulting in the entirety of 860
Sutter becoming a Chapter 41 building. '

The DA being presented to the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors reflects the negotiations
that occurred at those meetings. These include the details of public benefits to the City, including a
significant affordable housing public benefit, the process and specific approvals required to bring the
Academy’s properties and uses into compliance with the Planning Code, plan sets detailing work required
by the Planning Department for each property, the terms and conditions for student enrollment and
housing metering, requirements for institutional master plan updates, requirements for future projects, a
prohibition on conversion of existing housing, and other terms including but not limited to a schedule of
performance, limited temporary vesting, and the Administrative Code Chapter 41 exchange described in
the preceding paragraph. The Planning Department believes that both parties negotiated in good faith and
the end result is a project that will benefit the City.

Key parties involved with the negotiation of the DA include:

Dennis J. Herrera (CAQ) Dr. Elisa Stephens (Academy)
Jesse Capin Smith (CAQO) Martha Weeck (Academy)
Ron Flynn (CAO) Gordon North (Academy)
Kristen A. Jensen (CAQ) Michael Petricca (Academy)
Tom Lakritz (CAQ) Jim Abrams (J. Abrams Law, P.C.)
Michelle Sexton (CAQO) Nick Roosevelt (J. Abrams Law, P.C.)
Olsen Lee (MOHCD) Seth Pritchard (J. Abrams Law, P.C.)
Kate Hartley (MOHCD) David Millstein (Millstein & Associates
Dan Adams (MOHCD) Gerald Richelson (Millstein & Associates)
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Caroline McCormack (MOHCD) Joe Veronese (Alioto Law Group)
John Rahaim (CPC) Paul Cooper (TEF Design)
Dan Sider (CPC) Carla Dal Mas (TEF Design)
Andrew Perry (CPC) Justin Tang (TEF Design)
Liz Watty (CPC) Kate McGee (KM Planning Strategy)
Jeff Joslin (CPC) Amy Lee (Consultant)
Mary Woods (CPC) Ed Conlon (Hathaway Dinwiddie)
Tina Chang (CPC) Leilani Moisa (Hathaway Dinwiddie)
Scott Sanchez (CPC) James J. Brosnahan (Morrison Foerster)
Claudine Asbagh (CPC) Zane O. Gresham (Morrison Foerster)
Elizabeth Gordon-Jonckheer (CPC) George C. Harris (Morrison Foerster)
Alex Westoff (CPC) Corinne N. Quigley(Morrison Foerster)
Rich Sucre (CPC) Lucia X. Roibal (Morrison Foerster)
Kathrine Wilborn (CPC) Tim Kline (Morrison Foerster)
Shelley Caltagirone (CPC) Jennifer R. Jeffers (Morrison Foerster)
Alexandra Kirby (CPC) Dustin Charle Elliot (Morrison Foerster)
Tim Frye (CPC) Claudia M. Vetesi (Morrison Foerster)
Rick Cooper (CPC) David Noyola (consultant)
Chris Thomas (CPC)
Manoj Madhavan (CPC)
Wade Wietgrefe (CPC)
Ryan Shum (CPC)
Chelsea Fordham (CPC)
Lisa Gibson (CPC)

While not all of these negotiation meetings occurred in the presence of a judge, each negotiation meeting
was held and conducted pursuant to agreements reached at judicially supervised settlement meetings and
involved settlement communications subject to certain disclosure privileges. As such, and pursuant to
judicially supervised settlement discussions, the Academy and City propose that legislation approving the
DA include waivers of any otherwise applicable provisions of Administrative Code Section 56.10.

This summary is prepared for information purposes only, and is not intended to change, supplant, or be
used in the interpretation of, any provision of the Development Agreement. For any specific question or
interpretation, or for any additional detail, reference should be made to the Development Agreement itself.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the City Attorney’s Office, Jesse Capin Smith, at (415)
554-4709.

SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 3







From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Building Permit Application No. 2018.08.16.7612

Date: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 8:59:50 AM

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309|Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 8:53 AM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY @sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: Building Permit Application No. 2018.08.16.7612

Hi Jonas or Chan or Christine,

Can one of you forward this message to our Commissioners? It is for the 3252 19t st DRP, which is

scheduled for Thursday, November 7t"?

Thank You,
Rich

Richard Sucre, Principal Planner

Southeast Team & Historic Preservation, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 415.575.9108 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: Ryan Fuimaono <ryanfuimaono@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, November 04, 2019 7:31 PM

To: Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>

Subject: Re: Building Permit Application No. 2018.08.16.7612

Thank you. Here is my comment:
Dear Commissioners,

| am writing in favor of discretionary review to the proposed project in order to preserve the
current use of this building and have the proposed project find another vacant restaurant/bar space
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in the City.

| live very close to the intended project. The intended business will add considerable more late-
night noise pollution to our already noisy block. Lyft and Uber will further congest our streets. This
already happens regularly during the weekly private parties that this space hosts currently.

Our neighborhood is over-saturated with bar/restaurants that cater to high-income earners.
We must protect the cultural heritage of the Mission’s Latino community and preserve types of
businesses that employ and serve people from all walks of life; including and especially folks with
only a high school degree.

Thank you.

On Wed, Oct 23, 2019 at 2:08 PM Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org> wrote:
Hi Ryan,

You’'re welcome to send me any comments on the proposal. | will forward all public
correspondence received to the Commissioners.

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2019 6:55 PM

To: Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>
Subject: re: Building Permit Application No. 2018.08.16.7612

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hello There,

I‘m writing in response to a notice | received in the mail regarding a building permit

application that intends to convert 3252 19th St. into a restaurant/arcade. I'm wondering if there
is a way to provide comment / input around this proposal outside of attending the actual hearing
on Nov 7th due to work conflicts.

Please advise.
Thanks,
Ryan
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Ryan Fuimaono
415.271.3733



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Request to move DR Hearing - 3252 19th St

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:47:59 AM

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

From: Kevin Ortiz <kevinortiz916@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:43 AM
To: Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>;

Sucre, Richard (CPC) <richard.sucre@sfgov.org>
Subject: Request to move DR Hearing - 3252 19th St

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hi John,

| hope this email finds you well.

| am writing to request a delay for our DR hearing this Thursday at the Planning Commission. | will be
away for personal reasons so | will be unable to attend the hearing. As the DR requestor, | would ask
to move the item to the next available date so | can attend this hearing.

| would also ask that you send this request to all the commissioners. | appreciate your help on this!

All the best,

Kevin Ortiz
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

Subject: FW: Infrastructure is really tapped...... (SF)

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:43:33 AM

Attachments: image001.png
image002.png

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

From: Aaron Goodman <amgodman@yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, November 04, 2019 8:47 AM

To: Board of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>

Subject: Infrastructure is really tapped...... (SF)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

SFBOS / SF Planning Commissioners

Important to read that line in the facebook interview below and let it sink in....
Without solid investment in new lines and systems for transit and major
infrastructure, big companies will soon see greener pastures....

We need to as a city come to the table and solve for the bigger solutions, and make
them the priorities.

We need to listen to those not on panels or high commissions, and who offer the city
alternatives that make solid connections and solutions, and get those fixes pushed up
the ladder quicker. They bring "outside-the-box" solutions to the table and some may
save valuable time money and resources.

TRANSIT is and should be #1, Housing will follow, but amenities, and public
infrastructure must be brought up to speed and be simultaneous to the housing or
transit, or we lose in planning...
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If Met-Life can and did build Parkmerced, we should be thinking the same type of
solution to our extreme housing shortages, maybe Facebook, Google and Apple,
should be buying up new buildings and turning them over to the SFCLT? Or possibly
larger redevelopments of malls like stonestown, serramonte, and colma, to regionalize
and solve for major transportation bi-county ills?

There are solutions, but do we have the wherewithal to solve for the larger problems?

A.Goodman D11

Meanwhile, Facebook CEO Mark Zuckerberg said at a recent live-streamed

company event that housing shortages and traffic concerns were two reasons the
company would focus most of its hiring in locations outside the Bay Area. “The
infrastructure here is really tapped,” he said.

Facebook CEO defends being a billionaire in live

Q&A


https://www.washingtonpost.com/technology/2019/10/04/facebook-ceo-defends-being-billionaire-live-qa/?tid=lk_inline_manual_25

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ADDS 20 NEW BEDS TO CIVIC CENTER NAVIGATION
CENTER

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:39:20 AM

Attachments: 10.31.19 Civic Center Navigation Center Beds.pdf

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

Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2019 11:43 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ADDS 20 NEW BEDS TO CIVIC CENTER
NAVIGATION CENTER

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 31, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ADDS 20 NEW BEDS TO
CIVIC CENTER NAVIGATION CENTER

The new beds, which are now open, are part of Mayor Breed’s efforts to add 1,000 new shelter
beds by the end of 2020

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the opening of 20 new beds
at the Civic Center Navigation Center, which brings the total number of Navigation Center
beds at Civic Center to 113. The new beds will be used to address homelessness in the area,
with a particular emphasis for people at the cross-section of homelessness, mental illness, and
substance use disorder.

Mayor Breed is committed to dramatically expanding shelters and Navigation Centers to
provide a safe place for people to be off the street and be connected with long-term services.
In October 2018, she announced a goal of opening 1,000 new shelter beds by the end of 2020.
With the expansion of Civic Center Navigation Center, Mayor Breed has added 366 new
shelter beds toward the 1,000 bed goal. There are an additional 224 beds under construction,
and 200 beds in the pipeline.
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

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the opening of 20 new beds at
the Civic Center Navigation Center, which brings the total number of Navigation Center beds at
Civic Center to 113. The new beds will be used to address homelessness in the area, with a
particular emphasis for people at the cross-section of homelessness, mental illness, and substance
use disorder.

Mayor Breed is committed to dramatically expanding shelters and Navigation Centers to provide
a safe place for people to be off the street and be connected with long-term services. In October
2018, she announced a goal of opening 1,000 new shelter beds by the end of 2020. With the
expansion of Civic Center Navigation Center, Mayor Breed has added 366 new shelter beds
toward the 1,000 bed goal. There are an additional 224 beds under construction, and 200 beds in
the pipeline.

“Everyone deserves a safe place to sleep at night, and we need to keep adding beds so that we
can offer shelter to anyone who wants it,” said Mayor Breed. “The new beds at Civic Center
Navigation Center get us one step closer to providing the shelter we need in our city, in a
location where there are many people currently experiencing homelessness. We must continue
adding more shelters and housing throughout San Francisco and connecting people to the
services that can help get them off the streets and out of homelessness.”

The Civic Center Navigation Center opened in the summer of 2016 with 93 beds. The
Navigation Center is operated by the Community Housing Partnership (CHP).

After three years of successful operation, the City has expanded the capacity of the Navigation
Center by adding 20 beds. Since its opening, the Civic Center Navigation Center has served 505
people. 52% of clients exiting Navigation Centers from 2016 to October 2019 had positive exits,
either to Homeward Bound, permanent housing, or temporary placement.

Navigation Centers are designed to serve San Franciscans who are living unsheltered in the
community. Navigation Centers allow people to bring their partners, pets, and belongings with
them, lowering barriers to coming inside. In addition to shelter, on-site case managers provide
support to connect guests with employment opportunities, health services, public benefits and
housing via the Coordinated Entry system.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

In San Francisco, there are currently 3,400 shelter beds available per night through traditional
shelters, stabilization beds, Navigation Centers, and Transitional Housing. However, 65% of
San Francisco’s homeless population lives unsheltered on the city streets, which clearly
demonstrates the need for more shelter beds.

“Expansion in our temporary shelter system, including Navigation Centers like Civic Center, is
nothing less than life saving for people living unsheltered,” said Jeff Kositsky, Director of the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “Mayor Breed’s leadership to expand
shelter while also expanding problem solving/diversion and housing exits is a game changer. I’'m
grateful to our partners at CHP for this expansion and to our non-profit and City partner
colleagues who are working tirelessly to reach Mayor Breed’s goal of opening 1,000 new shelter
beds by the end of 2020.”

“Community Housing Partnership, in full collaboration with Strada Investment Group and the
John Stewart Co., is excited to announce that 20 additional units at the Civic Center Hotel
Navigation Center are now fully available to be utilized by people experiencing homelessness,”
said Christy Saxton, Chief Operating Officer at the Community Housing Partnership. “This
opportunity was made possible through the support of both the Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing and Mayor Breed. Because of this great partnership we are now able to
house up to 113 people every night at the Civic Center which will continue to help San Francisco
combat the homeless crisis.”

Mayor Breed recently launched a new behavioral health initiative—UrgentCareSF—which
includes a plan to help the approximately 4,000 homeless San Franciscans who have mental
illness and substance use disorders. UrgentCareSF is based in clinical expertise, evidence-based
programs, data analysis, and the principles of harm reduction and compassion. The four priorities
of the program are:

e Building a new system of care coordination, outreach, low-barrier services, and harm
reduction, including for those who cannot make decisions for themselves.

e Expanding treatment capacity and reducing administrative barriers to eliminate wait
times for services.

e Focusing on the workforce needs that are required in order to provide mental health care
and substance use treatment to people.

e Providing housing options for people exiting treatment services in order to support
behavioral health chronic disease management.

UrgentCareSF was designed based on public health data and a comprehensive assessment of the
City’s mental health system. Each element of the initiative is rooted in data analysis and clinical
expertise. For more details, visit http://sfmayor.org/urgentcaresf.

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
Center by adding 20 beds. Since its opening, the Civic Center Navigation Center has served
505 people. 52% of clients exiting Navigation Centers from 2016 to October 2019 had
positive exits, either to Homeward Bound, permanent housing, or temporary placement.

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

“Expansion in our temporary shelter system, including Navigation Centers like Civic Center,
is nothing less than life saving for people living unsheltered,” said Jeff Kositsky, Director of
the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “Mayor Breed’s leadership to
expand shelter while also expanding problem solving/diversion and housing exits is a game
changer. I’m grateful to our partners at CHP for this expansion and to our non-profit and City
partner colleagues who are working tirelessly to reach Mayor Breed’s goal of opening 1,000
new shelter beds by the end of 2020.”

“Community Housing Partnership, in full collaboration with Strada Investment Group and the
John Stewart Co., is excited to announce that 20 additional units at the Civic Center Hotel
Navigation Center are now fully available to be utilized by people experiencing
homelessness,” said Christy Saxton, Chief Operating Officer at the Community Housing
Partnership. “This opportunity was made possible through the support of both the Department
of Homelessness and Supportive Housing and Mayor Breed. Because of this great partnership
we are now able to house up to 113 people every night at the Civic Center which will continue
to help San Francisco combat the homeless crisis.”

Mayor Breed recently launched a new behavioral health initiative—UrgentCareSF—which
includes a plan to help the approximately 4,000 homeless San Franciscans who have mental
illness and substance use disorders. UrgentCareSF is based in clinical expertise, evidence-
based programs, data analysis, and the principles of harm reduction and compassion. The four
priorities of the program are:

e Building a new system of care coordination, outreach, low-barrier services, and harm



reduction, including for those who cannot make decisions for themselves.
o Expanding treatment capacity and reducing administrative barriers to eliminate wait

times for services.

o Focusing on the workforce needs that are required in order to provide mental health care
and substance use treatment to people.

o Providing housing options for people exiting treatment services in order to support
behavioral health chronic disease management.

UrgentCareSF was designed based on public health data and a comprehensive assessment of
the City’s mental health system. Each element of the initiative is rooted in data analysis and
clinical expertise. For more details, visit http:/sfmayvor.org/urgentcaresf.

HiH
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: "Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC"; Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel
(CPQC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Mandatory Fairness In Hiring Training

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:37:15 AM

Commissioners,
This is a friendly reminder to submit your Certificates of Completeness to me.

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

From: Eng, Michael (CPC) <Michael.Eng@sfgov.org>

Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2019 2:12 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: Mandatory Fairness In Hiring Training

HiJonas,
DHR informed me that the Commissioners will be reviewing the Planning Director resumes on

November 7th. It's important that the Commissioners complete the 30-minute “Fairness In Hiring”
course prior to reviewing resumes.

4

For ease of access, the Commissioners can take the training via the following link:
https://dhrportal.org/wp-content/uploads/flash_files/HRD039101local

This will take them directly to the course without logging into eMerge PeopleSoft.

At the completion of the course, they will be prompted to print the “Certificate of Completion”. I'll
need a copy of the certificate for DHR.

Could you kindly pass this along to the Commissioners?
Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,
-Michael

Michael Eng
Human Resources Manager
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San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9143 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, October 29, 2019 10:52 AM
To: 'Aaron Hyland' <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)

<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)

<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)

<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Eng, Michael (CPC)
<Mlichael.Eng@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: Mandatory Fairness In Hiring Training

Importance: High

Commissioners,
I am resending this link, in case you missed it the first time around. ..

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

From: lonin, Jonas (CPC)

Sent: Monday, October 07, 2019 10:05 AM

To: 'Aaron Hyland' <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; Dennis Richards (dennis.richards@sfgov.org)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <Erank.Fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Myrna Melgar <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org>

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

Sent: Monday, August 26, 2019 11:38 AM

To: CTYPLN - Supervisors <CPC.Supervisors@sfgov.org>

Cc: DiSanto, Thomas (CPC) <thomas.disanto@sfgov.org>; Rahaim, John (CPC)
<john.rahaim@sfgov.org>

Subject: Mandatory Fairness In Hiring Training
Dear Hiring Manager/Hiring Panelist:

The Mayor’s Executive Directive 18-02, Ensuring a Diverse, Fair, and Inclusive City Workplace,
requires all hiring managers, supervisors, and others who participate on hiring panels to take a new
“Fairness In Hiring” online training. Anyone who participates in a hiring or interview panel must take
the course this year, and annually thereafter. This includes anyone who makes a final hiring
selection (including department heads).

You are receiving this notice because you will be involved on a hiring or interview panel this year,
and/or involved in making a final hiring selection. Please complete the 30-minute “Fairness In
Hiring” course before you participate in the next hiring process, and no later than December 31,
2019.

City employees can access the “Fairness In Hiring” course through the SF Employee Learning Portal,
accessible by logging into your SF Employee Gateway account. Attached are directions to access this
training. Your completion of this course will be tracked within the People and Pay system.

If you have direct reports who are involved in the hiring process, please let me know so | can enroll
them for the training as well.

Non-City employees serving on interview panels must complete this training too. If you plan to have
non-city employees involved in the hiring process, please let me know and | will coordinate the
training with them.

Please contact me or Tom if you have any questions.
Thank you for your cooperation in ensuring compliance with this important requirement.

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** ELECTED LEADERS TO JOIN TRANSGENDER COMMUNITY LEADERS TO RAISE
TRANS FLAG OVER CITY HALL

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:35:00 AM

Attachments: 11.01.19 Trans Accomplishments and Flag Raising.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, November 01, 2019 9:25 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** ELECTED LEADERS TO JOIN TRANSGENDER COMMUNITY LEADERS
TO RAISE TRANS FLAG OVER CITY HALL

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, November 1, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
ELECTED LEADERS TO JOIN TRANSGENDER COMMUNITY
LEADERS TO RAISE TRANS FLAG OVER CITY HALL

To kick off Transgender Awareness Month, Mayor London Breed, Senator Scott Wiener,
Supervisor Rafael Mandelman, the Office of Transgender Initiatives and the trans community
will come together to celebrate successes and commit to combatting the prejudice,
discrimination, and violence that affect the transgender community

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today will join with community members to
raise the transgender flag at City Hall in honor of the beginning of Trans Awareness Month.
Mayor Breed will be joined by Senator Scott Wiener, Supervisor Rafael Mandelman, the
Office of Transgender Initiatives, and trans community leaders. Following the flag raising,
Mayor Breed and others will provide remarks at the Trans Awareness Month kick-off
celebration, outlining San Francisco’s major accomplishments on trans policies and programs
to date.

Trans Flag Raising
Friday, November 1, 2019
4:00pm
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
Mayor Breed will be joined by Senator Scott Wiener, Supervisor Rafael Mandelman, the Office
of Transgender Initiatives, and trans community leaders. Following the flag raising, Mayor
Breed and others will provide remarks at the Trans Awareness Month kick-off celebration,
outlining San Francisco’s major accomplishments on trans policies and programs to date.

Trans Flag Raising
Friday, November 1, 2019
4:00pm

City Hall, Room 200

“In San Francisco, we celebrate our diversity,” said Mayor Breed. “Despite transphobic and
bigoted efforts around the country to dismantle the rights of trans people, our trans community
will never be erased. We are committed to continuing our investments in the trans community,
providing support through policies and program, and maintaining our unyielding commitment to
equal rights for all.”

Each year in November, the trans community, allies and organizations across the country come
together to celebrate Transgender Awareness Week followed by observing Transgender Day of
Remembrance. Last year Mayor Breed and Office of Transgender Initiatives extended the event
to declare November as Transgender Awareness Month in San Francisco.

San Francisco’s Office of Transgender Initiatives is a historic trans-led City government office
launched to develop innovative policies and programs that support the transgender, gender
nonconforming, and LGBTQ communities. The Office was created by then-Mayor Ed Lee and is
the first and only municipal office of its kind.

“Here in San Francisco we celebrate Transgender Awareness Month to highlight the way that the
community and the City are working together to advance equity for trans and gender
nonconforming communities,” said Clair Farley, Director of Office of Transgender Initiatives.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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“This is also a time to ground ourselves in our observance of Transgender Day of Remembrance,
a day where we pay respect to the lives of the predominantly Black transgender women we have
lost to anti-trans violence. As transgender people are under attack across the country

San Francisco will not rest until everyone in our community is thriving and has a safe place to
call home.”

“Itali Marlowe, Elisha Chanel Stanley, Bailey Reeves, and Jordan Cofer are just a few of the
beautiful trans souls we*ve lost this year to the epidemic of hateful, tragic murders,” said Senator
Wiener. “As our federal government turns its back on and attacks the transgender community,
we must recommit to stand with our transgender neighbors. In San Francisco, we will always
uplift transgender people, and | remain committed to the fight for safety, dignity, and equality.”

“The trans civil rights movement started in San Francisco at the Compton’s Cafeteria riot,” said
Supervisor Mandelman. “This year the City has made historic investments in trans housing with
Our Trans Home SF and opened the state’s first shelter for trans youth. These are major
milestones but we still have a lot more to do.”

San Francisco has invested over $2 million annually in transgender programs and services. In the
City budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and 2020-21, Mayor Breed has increased that funding
amount to $3 million per year. Under Mayor Breed’s leadership and commitment to the
community, the Office of Transgender Initiatives has launched the following programs with the
community:

Trans Housing Support

Notably, Mayor Breed has funded the Our Trans Home SF program to provide rental subsidies
and housing navigation services to low-income trans people. The goal of the trans housing
program is to support the community in finding or keeping safe and inclusive housing. The
program is spearheaded by St. James Infirmary and will include flexible rental subsidies, housing
navigation, and a transitional housing program that will support trans community members on
their pathway towards housing stability.

Fellowship for LGBTQ Immigrants

The fellowship is intended to equip LGBTQ immigrants with the skills and training necessary to
achieve their career goals. The first of its kind program helps address a critical gap in

San Francisco for many LGBTQ immigrants who have very few options to survive financially
which can lead to unsafe and non-inclusive work environments. In partnership with the Office of
Civic Engagement and Immigrant Affairs (OCEIA) and community organizations, the fellowship
will provide paid internship and training to address the unique economic development needs of
this community.

Investing in Arts and Culture

San Francisco’s trans and gender nonconforming community has a long history within the arts
and culture of the city. Under Mayor Breed’s leadership the City has increased its investment in
vital LGBTQ arts and culture programs including the Transgender Film Festival and the
Compton’s Transgender Cultural District. The annual San Francisco Transgender Film Festival

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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takes place during Trans Awareness Month, screening films that promote the visibility of trans
and gender nonconforming people. The Film Festival will run from November 7 until November
10, 2019. More information about the film festival can be found at http://sftff.org/.

Trans Inclusion Across the City

Last November, Mayor Breed issued an Executive Directive to expand gender and self-
identifiers on all City forms and applications to support trans community to be recognized and
respected. The Executive Directive also requires that all City employees working with the public
receive trans inclusion training. The City budget includes funding to hire a Training Officer to
track the expansion of gender and self-identifier options on City forms and provide transgender
inclusion training.

Trans Policy

The Office also worked with the other City departments to implement an All Gender Bathroom
Policy, and to implement Senate Bill (SB) 310 (Name and Dignity Act), SB 179 (Gender
Recognition Act), SB 396 (Transgender Work Opportunity Act), Admin Code Chapter 12X
(Anti-LGBT State Ban List) and the SOGI Data Collection Ordinance.

The trans flag raising marks the beginning of a month full of events. For a full schedule of
Transgender Awareness Month events, please visit: https://sf.gov/departments/city-
administrator/office-transgender-initiatives.

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
providing support through policies and program, and maintaining our unyielding commitment
to equal rights for all.”

Each year in November, the trans community, allies and organizations across the country
come together to celebrate Transgender Awareness Week followed by observing Transgender
Day of Remembrance. Last year Mayor Breed and Office of Transgender Initiatives extended
the event to declare November as Transgender Awareness Month in San Francisco.

San Francisco’s Office of Transgender Initiatives is a historic trans-led City government office
launched to develop innovative policies and programs that support the transgender, gender
nonconforming, and LGBTQ communities. The Office was created by then-Mayor Ed Lee and
is the first and only municipal office of its kind.

“Here in San Francisco we celebrate Transgender Awareness Month to highlight the way that
the community and the City are working together to advance equity for trans and gender
nonconforming communities,” said Clair Farley, Director of Office of Transgender Initiatives.
“This is also a time to ground ourselves in our observance of Transgender Day of
Remembrance, a day where we pay respect to the lives of the predominantly Black
transgender women we have lost to anti-trans violence. As transgender people are under attack
across the country San Francisco will not rest until everyone in our community is thriving and
has a safe place to call home.”

“Itali Marlowe, Elisha Chanel Stanley, Bailey Reeves, and Jordan Cofer are just a few of the
beautiful trans souls we‘ve lost this year to the epidemic of hateful, tragic murders,” said
Senator Wiener. “As our federal government turns its back on and attacks the transgender
community, we must recommit to stand with our transgender neighbors. In San Francisco, we
will always uplift transgender people, and I remain committed to the fight for safety, dignity,
and equality.”

“The trans civil rights movement started in San Francisco at the Compton’s Cafeteria riot,”
said Supervisor Mandelman. “This year the City has made historic investments in trans
housing with Our Trans Home SF and opened the state’s first shelter for trans youth. These are
major milestones but we still have a lot more to do.”

San Francisco has invested over $2 million annually in transgender programs and services. In
the City budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and 2020-21, Mayor Breed has increased that funding
amount to $3 million per year. Under Mayor Breed’s leadership and commitment to the
community, the Office of Transgender Initiatives has launched the following programs with
the community:

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
program is spearheaded by St. James Infirmary and will include flexible rental subsidies,
housing navigation, and a transitional housing program that will support trans community
members on their pathway towards housing stability.



Fellowship for LGBTQ Immigrants

The fellowship is intended to equip LGBTQ immigrants with the skills and training necessary
to achieve their career goals. The first of its kind program helps address a critical gap in

San Francisco for many LGBTQ immigrants who have very few options to survive financially
which can lead to unsafe and non-inclusive work environments. In partnership with the Office
of Civic Engagement and Immigrant Affairs (OCEIA) and community organizations, the
fellowship will provide paid internship and training to address the unique economic
development needs of this community.

Investing in Arts and Culture

San Francisco’s trans and gender nonconforming community has a long history within the arts
and culture of the city. Under Mayor Breed’s leadership the City has increased its investment
in vital LGBTQ arts and culture programs including the Transgender Film Festival and the
Compton’s Transgender Cultural District. The annual San Francisco Transgender Film
Festival takes place during Trans Awareness Month, screening films that promote the
visibility of trans and gender nonconforming people. The Film Festival will run from
November 7 until November 10, 2019. More information about the film festival can be found

at http://sftff.org/.

Trans Inclusion Across the City

Last November, Mayor Breed issued an Executive Directive to expand gender and self-
identifiers on all City forms and applications to support trans community to be recognized and
respected. The Executive Directive also requires that all City employees working with the
public receive trans inclusion training. The City budget includes funding to hire a Training
Officer to track the expansion of gender and self-identifier options on City forms and provide
transgender inclusion training.

Trans Policy

The Office also worked with the other City departments to implement an All Gender
Bathroom Policy, and to implement Senate Bill (SB) 310 (Name and Dignity Act), SB 179
(Gender Recognition Act), SB 396 (Transgender Work Opportunity Act), Admin Code
Chapter 12X (Anti-LGBT State Ban List) and the SOGI Data Collection Ordinance.

The trans flag raising marks the beginning of a month full of events. For a full schedule of
Transgender Awareness Month events, please visit: https:/sf.gov/departments/city-

administrator/office-transgender-initiatives.
Hi#H
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Request for Continuance for Planning Commission Hearing on 1776 Green Street (Case No. 2018-
011430CUAVAR)

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:32:07 AM

Attachments: 2019.11.01.Extension Req 2 1776 Green.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, November 01, 2019 1:58 PM

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

Subject: Request for Continuance for Planning Commission Hearing on 1776 Green Street (Case No.
2018-011430CUAVAR)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear President Melgar, Honorable Members of the Planning Commission and Mr. May,

Please find attached a letter from Richard Toshiyuki Drury, submitted on behalf of The Hollow
Revolution (“THoR”), regarding the above-referenced matter. Hardcopies will also be sent via U.S.
mail. Should you have any questions, please contact our office.

Best Regards,
Stacey

Stacey Oborne

Paralegal

Lozeau | Drury LLP

1939 Harrison Street, Suite 150
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BY E-MAIL AND US MAIL
November 1, 2019

President Myrna Melgar (myrna.melgar@sfgov.org)
Vice-President Joel Koppel (joel.koppel.sfgov.org)
Commissioner Frank Fung (frank.fung@sfgov.org)
Commissioner Milicent A Johnson (milicent.johnson@sfgov.orq)
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
historic building, requires extensive excavation of soil on a site listed on the City’s Maher
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

-~

Y. ¢ P
\T_, \ AL ) 8 VAR A N

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

| am writing on behalf of The Hollow Revolution (“THoOR”), an association of
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
space (“Project”).

l. Introduction

THoR is reaching out to the Planning Department early to outline its initial
concerns about the proposed Project. The proposed Project would be a relatively large
residential development on a quiet street. Specifically, THOR wants to ensure that any
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

4. Fully complies with the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).





1776 Green Street
May 28, 2019
Page 2 of 8

The developer was required to contact the members of THoR for a “pre-
application” meeting.! A pre-application meeting is mandatory in this case because it
serves as the “first step in the process prior to building permit applications or
entitlements.” The pre-application meeting gives proximate neighbors an opportunity to
learn the details of a proposed project from the developer directly.? In particular, the
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

According to the applications, the five residential units will constitute a total of 17,673 sq/ft
with 4,803 sq/ft of parking and 963 sq/ft of ground level retail. Reported open space

" Projects subject to 311 notification:

* New Construction;

* Any vertical addition of 7 feet or more;

* Any horizontal addition of 10 feet or more;

» Decks over 10 feet above grade or within the required rear yard,;

* All Formula Retail uses subject to a Conditional Use Authorization;
» Community Business Priority Processing (CB3P);

* Projects in PDR-1-B Districts subject to Section 313.

2 See http://forms.sfplanning.org/Pre-Application _Meeting Form.pdf.
31d.
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would be 3,891 sq/ft.* Please let us know if the project description has been modified or
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
2. Application No0.2018-011430CUA
3. Application No. 2018-011430ENV
4. Application No. 2018-011430PRJ

5 See application No. 2018-011430VAR.
8 Gov. Code §65906.
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
comply with the Code.’

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
size and density of the proposed development.? Similar to the request for a variance, the
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

7 See, Orinda Ass’n v. Bd. of Supervisors, 182 Cal.App.3d 1145 (1986) (facts did not justify a variance since
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

e Landmarks and historic buildings would be preserved,;

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
waste. ' Specifically, the project site is located on the Maher map; would involve ground
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

% http://forms.sfplanning.org/CUA _Application.pdf citing relevant findings necessary for a conditional use.
9 No. 2018-011430PRJ.
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

THOoR is concerned about dispersal of heavy metals such as lead, solvents,
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
style.” The building was completed the same year as the Panama-Pacific International
Exhibition and was an early automobile-oriented building constructed contemporaneously
with the exhibition.'?

As it sits, the current building holds “a high degree of its [architectural] integrity and
continues to convey its individual significance.”'® In lay terms, it is a unique and charming
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
13 San Francisco Planning Department, Historic Resource Evaluation Response, at p. 5 (Dec.5, 2018).
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

1. The historic value of 1776 Green Street including ways project alternatives
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

3. Full compliance with San Francisco’s building code and general plan.

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
Comm. College, 110 Cal.App.4th 629 (2004) (presence of hazardous materials makes
CEQA exemption improper). CEQA review must be required to mitigate the proposed
Project’s impacts related to historic resources and potentially contaminated soil.

V. Conclusion

The members of THoOR understand that the proposed Project has yet to be
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

”~

\ X Lo
A A ) W A

Richard Toshiyuki Drury
LOZEAU DRURY LLP






Oakland, CA 94612
510-836-4200 (Phone)
510-836-4205 (Fax)

stacey@lozeaudrury.com

| Virus-free. www.avg.com
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

Subject: FW: Affordable Housing & Educator Housing Streamlining Program (File # 191016)

Date: Monday, November 04, 2019 9:30:02 AM

Attachments: Planning Comm LRT 11-1-2019.docx

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

From: Anabel Ibanez <aibanez@uesf.org>

Sent: Friday, November 01, 2019 3:02 PM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: Affordable Housing & Educator Housing Streamlining Program (File # 191016)

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hello Mr. lonin,
Please provide a copy to each SF Planning Commissioners of the attached letter regarding the

trailing legislation, the Affordable Housing & Educator Housing Streamlining Program (File # 191016).
Let me know if you have any questions. Thanks.

Anabel Ibafiez
UESF Political Director


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:Frank.Fung@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
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mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
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November 1, 2019





Dear Planning Commissioners,



[bookmark: _GoBack]As the union representing 6,400 educators of the San Francisco Unified School District, we write to express our support for the trailing legislation for Proposition E, the 100% Affordable Housing and Educator Housing Streamlining Program (File #191016). 



UESF worked closely with the sponsors of this initiative to create a definition for Educator Housing Projects that will serve the diverse needs of our educator workforce based on surveys of our members’ incomes, household sizes, and housing needs. There are two components of this Educator Housing Program that are very important to us. The first is an income averaging requirement which will ensure that educators across a wide range of incomes are served. The second is a unit mix requirement which will ensure that housing for educators who live with their partners and/or family (a large share of our members) will also be included.



Though we feel strongly that Educator Housing Projects should include 3-bedroom family units, we are okay with removing the 20% 3-bedroom unit requirement in order to accommodate the Francis Scott Key Project. This project was designed with a specific population of newer educators in mind, and as much as we were involved and support the project, it was not intended to be a model for permanent educator housing. By changing the unit mix requirement so that 50% are 2 bedrooms or larger, we can ensure that this project will get the streamlining benefits of Prop E and will still be assured that future projects won’t be made up of just studios and 1-bedroom units.



With half of our teachers leaving the school district every five years, in part because of the lack of affordable homes, it is critical that we prioritize affordable homes for our educators. Since these Educator Housing Projects will be constructed on our precious public land owned by the school district and City College district, it is critical that we prioritize housing that will be affordable and serve the needs of the full spectrum of our educator workforce. Should the voters adopt Proposition E, we hope to have your support on this legislation to ensure the Francis Scott Key teacher housing project receives the full streamlining benefits of the measure.



Sincerely,





Anabel Ibáñez

UESF Political Director

image1.emf




From: Son, Chanbory (CPC

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna
(CPQC); Eung, Frank (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN
(CAT)

Subject: CPC Calendars for November 7, 2019

Date: Friday, November 01, 2019 2:50:49 PM

Attachments: CPC Hearing Results 2019.docx

Advance Calendar - 20191107.xlIsx
20191107 cal.docx
20191107 cal.pdf

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for November 7, 2019.

Chanbory Son, Executive Secretary
Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.6926 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map
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To:             Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:            Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20557

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 0671

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



October 24, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2009.0885B

		1100 Van Ness Avenue

		Teague

		Continued to November 21, 2019

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2018-012392CUA

		37 Saturn Street

		Horn

		Continued to November 21, 2019

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2019-001568CUA

		101 Bayshore Boulevard

		Liang

		Withdrawn

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2019-013506GEN

		Water Supply

		Kern

		Continued to November 7, 2019

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2016-012773CUA

		146 Geary Street

		Tran

		Continued to December 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-014849CUA

		220 Post Street

		Vimr

		Continued to December 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		Continued to December 19, 2019

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Melgar absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to December 19, 2019

		



		M-20549

		2018-013158CUA

		2956 24th Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 10, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20550

		2016-006860ENV

		65 Ocean Avenue

		Li

		Upheld PMND

		+5 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20551

		2016-006860AHB

		65 Ocean Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Melgar absent)



		

		2016-006860IKA

		65 Ocean Avenue

		Flores

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to December 12, 2019

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Melgar absent)



		

		2018-010555CUA

		2412 Clay Street

		Weissglass

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued Indefinitely

		+3 -1 (Koppel against; Melgar, Johnson absent)



		R-20553

		2019-017266PCA

		Extension of Temporary Cannabis Permits [BF 190842]

		Starr

		Approved with Modifications

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson absent)



		M-20552

		2007.0946CWP-03

		Candlestick Point Design for Development Amendments

		Snyder

		Approved

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-011717CUA

		1369 Sanchez Street

		Cisneros

		After hearing and closing public comment; a motion to Approve with Conditions failed +2 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Melgar, Johnson absent); Continued to December 19, 2019.

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson absent)



		M-20554

		2006.0660B

		100 California Street

		Teague

		Revoked Office Allocation

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson absent)



		M-20555

		2012.0605B

		300 California Street

		Teague

		Revoked Office Allocation

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson absent)



		M-20556

		1998.714B

		350 Rhode Island Street

		Teague

		Revoked Office Allocation

		+4 -0 (Melgar, Johnson absent)



		DRA-0670

		2019-012253DRP

		463 Castro Street

		Washington

		A motion to Take DR failed; BPA Approved

		+3 -1 (Fung against; Melgar, Johnson absent)



		

		2014.1063DNX

		633 Folsom Street

		Tran

		None - Informational

		







October 17, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		R-20548

		2019-016927CWP

		Downtown Park Fund Allocation – Turk Hyde Mini Park and Willie “Woo Woo” Wong Park Renovations

		Race

		Approved

		+4 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)







October 17, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to December 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2019-004451CUA

		2075 Mission Street

		Christensen

		Continued to December 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20544

		2019-006948CUA

		650 Jackson Street

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 3, 2019 – Joint with Health

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 3, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		R-20545

		2018-004545CRV

		351 12th Street

		Flores

		After being pulled off of Consent; Adopted Findings

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Koppel absent)



		R-20546

		2019-014960PCA

		Fulton Street Grocery Store Special Use District [BF190839]

		Flores

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		R-20547

		2019-014525PCA

		Parking Requirements

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications, except No. 3

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Koppel absent)



		

		2016-013312GPA

		542-550 Howard Street (Transbay Parcel F) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to December 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2017-000565CWP

		Community Stabilization: Policy and Program Inventory and Priorities

		Nelson

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-014774CUA

		360 Spear Street

		Liang

		After hearing and closing public comment; a motion to approve with conditions as amended to include future tenants provide proof of laboratory use through a LoD failed +3 -2 (Fung, Moore against); Continued to December 5, 2019.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Koppel absent)



		DRA-0668

		2018-016955DRP

		220 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-0669

		2017-012939DRP

		2758 23rd Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved

		+5 -0 (Koppel absent)







October 10, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-009211CUA

		5538 3rd Street

		Jardines

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20537

		2018-012603CND

		1046 14th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 26, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20538

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street Project

		Delumo

		Certified

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20539

		2018-002179CUA

		350 Masonic Avenue, 2120-2122 & 2130 Golden Gate Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20540

		2016-009538CUA

		905 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20541

		2018-016600CUA

		2241 Chestnut Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Moore absent)



		M-20542

		2018-016040CUA

		3419 Sacramento Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20543

		2018-002060CUA

		258 Noe Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore absent; Richards recused)



		

		2018-016284DRP

		1299 Sanchez Street

		Pantoja

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 14, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)







October 3, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2012.0403W

		California Pacific Medical Center (CPMC) Annual Compliance Statement

		PURL

		Reviewed and Commented

		







October 3, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-014348PCA

		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable and Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities

		Merlone

		Continued to November 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2019-001694CUA

		1500 Mission Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to November 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2019-006951CUA

		1401 19th Avenue

		Campbell

		Continued to December 5, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2018-004614DRP

		16 Seacliff Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-005500CUA

		2934 Cesar Chavez Street

		Christensen

		Continued to November 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2019-012253DRP

		463 Castro Street

		Washington

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2018-009175DRP

		3610 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20529

		2019-000362CUA

		1501C Sloat Boulevard

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20530

		2019-005402CUA

		50 Beale Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20531

		2018-013963CUA

		855 Geary Street

		Tran

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20532

		2019-004164CUA

		1056-1062 Sanchez Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		M-20533

		2019-005201CUA

		298 Munich Street

		Fahey

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 12, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 19, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards absent)



		

		2013.1535CUA

		450-474 O’Farrell Street/532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		None - Informational

		



		

		2019-005575IMP

		555 Post Street

		Tran

		Closed the Public Hearing

		



		M-20534

		2014.0334SHD

		262 7th Street

		Samonsky

		Adopted Findings

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20535

		2014.0334ENX

		262 7th Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions, with material palette on sheet A.05.

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20536

		2018-014433CUA

		49 Duboce Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		DRA-0667

		2019-013111DRP

		240 Chenery Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved without property line windows and opaque treatment for the third window.

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Moore absent)







September 26, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Racial & Social Equity Training

		Flores

		None - Informational

		







September 19, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-002060CUA

		258 Noe Street

		Horn

		Continued to October 10, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-002545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-002545DRP-03

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Continued to November 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20520

		2019-007313CND

		31-37 Camp Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-0665

		2018-013320DRP

		1520 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 5, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20521

		2019-003627PCA

		South of Market Planning Community Advisory Committee

		Snyder

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20522

		2019-011975PCA

		Jobs Housing Linkage Fee

		Sanchez

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-003559ENV

		3700 California Street

		Poling

		Received public comment

		



		

		2014.0926DNX

		1270 Mission Street

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20523

		2017-002136CUA

		340 Townsend Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a three year update memo.

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		M-20524

		2017-000263CUA

		20 - 22 Church Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended requiring a one-foot setback on the top floor.

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-000263VAR

		20 - 22 Church Street

		Young

		ZA Closed PC and took the matter under advisement.

		



		M-20525

		2016-001794SHD

		95 Hawthorne Street

		Foster

		Adopted Findings

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		M-20526

		2016-001794DNX

		95 Hawthorne Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		After a Motion of Intent to Disapprove and Continue to October 10th failed +2 -2 (Fung, Melgar against) and  a motion to Continue to November 14th failed +2 -2 (Richards, Koppel against)and no other motion was made; Disapproved.

		



		

		2018-002602VAR

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		ZA Closed PC and took the matter under advisement.

		



		M-20527

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Alexander

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Alexander

		ZA Closed PC and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20528

		2019-004691CUA

		1347 27th Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-009203DRP-02

		2880 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0666

		2018-012718DRP

		1980 Eddy Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions, requiring the rear shed roof be modified to a flat roof, providing nine-feet clear.

		+4 -0 (Moore, Johnson absent)







September 12, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-006825CUA

		367 Hamilton Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to November 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards, Melgar absent)



		M-20517

		2019-005613CUA

		382 21st Avenue

		Phung

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 29, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Moore, Richards, Melgar absent)



		M-20518

		2016-004403CUA

		2222 Broadway

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		M-20519

		2018-011446CUA

		399 Fremont Street

		 Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0662

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions:

1. Eliminating the ADU and incorporating the square footage into the lower unit.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Richards, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0663

		2018-006557DRP-02

		20 Inverness Drive

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0664

		2018-001940DRP-02

		33 Capra Way

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with conditions:

1. Reduce the roof deck; and

2. Encourage removal the stair penthouse.

		+5 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-007883ENV

		Balboa Reservoir Project

		Poling

		Received public comment

		







September 5, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-008431DRP

		2220 Turk Boulevard

		Phung

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-008412DRP

		2230 Turk Boulevard

		Phung

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-013006DRP

		550 10th Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-013006VAR

		550 10th Avenue

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to September 25, 2019

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 22, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 22, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-010192CWP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		None - Informational

		



		R-20511

		2017-011878GPA

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after October 10, 2019

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		DRA-0660

		2018-013317DRP

		333 Camino Del Mar

		Winslow

		Did NOT Take DR and Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0661

		2017-013309DRP-04

		1 Winter Place

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20512

		2015-014028ENV

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Zushi

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20513

		2015-014028ENV

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Adopted Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

		+6 -1 (Richards against)



		R-20514

		2015-014028PCAMAP

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20515

		2015-014028DVA

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-20516

		2015-014028CUA

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0







August 29, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Continued to September 12, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-014849CUA

		220 Post Street

		Asbagh

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

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Acting ZA Continued to September 19, 2019

		



		

		2019-000297DRP

		1608-1610 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		M-20505

		2019-006116CUA

		2621 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		M-20506

		2019-014314CUA

		49 Hopkins Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Limit the GSF to 3280 sq.ft.;

2. Eliminate the roofdeck; and

3. Provide an ADU with a minimum of 1,000 sq. ft. and two bedrooms.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20507

		2019-014759PCA

		Allowing Long Term Parking of and Overnight Camping in Vehicles and Ancillary Uses at 2340 San Jose Avenue (Board File No.190812)

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20508

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions and modification, eliminating the fourth floor.

		+4 -2 (Hillis, Richards against, Johnson absent) 



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		

		2015-000878DNXCUAOFA

		300 Grant Avenue

		Alexander

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-000940ENV, 

2017-008051ENV, 

2016-014802ENV	

		The Hub Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, and Hub Housing Sustainability District

		White

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20509

		2019-000268CUA

		121 Gates Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2008.0023CUA

		461 29th Street

		Townes

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 7, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued September 19, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602VAR

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		ZA Continued to September 19, 2019

		



		M-20510

		2015-006356CUA

		336 Pierce Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-006356VAR

		336 Pierce Street

		Dito

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued October 24, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+4 -2 (Fung, Hillis against, Johnson absent) 



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to October 24, 2019

		



		

		2018-011962DRP

		869 Alvarado Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued November 14, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-0659

		2018-002777DRP

		4363 26th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications, eliminating the fourth floor.

		+4 -2 (Hillis, Koppel against, Johnson absent) 







August 22, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a motion not to disclose

		+7 -0







August 22, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Acting ZA Continued to August 29, 2019

		



		

		2017-003545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to October 17, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-001592CUA

		1190 Gough Street

		Dito

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20499

		2018-011004CUA

		146 Geary Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20500

		2018-017311CUA

		5420 Mission Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20501

		2017-013654CUA

		4720 Geary Boulevard

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 18, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 25, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 25, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2007.0903PHA

		Treasure Island Subphase 1C: C2.1 & C2.4

		Alexander

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Executive Directive on Housing (17-02) Report

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-016955DRP

		220 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to October 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 10, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 10, 2019

		+7 -0



		M-20502

		2017-002951ENX

		755 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20503

		2014-003160CUA

		3314 Cesar Chavez Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20504

		2019-012580CUA

		61 Cambon Drive

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		

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

		







July 25, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to NOT Disclose

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)







July 25, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-011975PCA

		Jobs Housing Linkage Fee

		Sanchez

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20490

		2018-013387CUA

		88 Perry Street

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20491

		2019-001013CUA

		375 32nd Avenue/3132 Clement Avenue

		Jonckheer

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended, directing the Project Sponsor to continue working with the community on security mitigation measures

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 11, 2019

		Ionin

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Koppel absent)



		

		

		SB 35 Projects

		Conner

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-012970IMP

		Forty-Three (43) Properties Owned or Leased by the Academy of Art University (AAU) Located in the City and County of San Francisco

		Perry

		Closed the Public Hearing

		



		

		2013.0208PHA

		Mission Rock Phase 1 (aka Seawall Lot 337 and Pier 48)

		Snyder, Christensen 

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20492

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended prohibiting corporate housing

		+5 -1 (Melgar against; Hillis absent)



		M-20493

		2015-012490ENX

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions with the necessary corrections

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20494

		2015-012490OFA

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions with the necessary corrections

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2015-012490VAR

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20495

		2014.1573CUA

		2050 Van Ness Avenue & 1675 Pacific Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended prohibiting corporate housing.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2014.1573VAR

		2050 Van Ness Avenue & 1675 Pacific Avenue

		May

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20496

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Sucre

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent) 



		M-20497

		2018-013122CUA

		2966 24th Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2019-004451CUA

		2075 Mission Street

		Christensen

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to October 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20498

		2018-010465CUA

		349 3rd Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-0656

		2018-009355DRP

		63 Laussat Street

		May

		Took DR and Approved as revised and noting on the plans the area of the roof to be unoccupied.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-0657

		2017-000987DRP-02

		25 17th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised reverting the property to its previous condition

		+5 -1 (Fung against, Hillis absent) 



		DRA-0658

		2017-000987DRP-04

		27 17th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised reverting the property to its previous condition

		+5 -1 (Fung against, Hillis absent)







July 18, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2017-013309DRP-04

		1 Winter Place

		Winslow

		Continued to September 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		R-20482

		2019-011895PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Units in New Construction [BF 190590]

		Flores

		Approved (with K. Moore comments)

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2018-003800CWP

		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines

		Francis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20483

		2017-000663PCAMAP

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20484

		2017-000663ENX

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20485

		2017-000663OFA

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20486

		2017-000663DVA

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20487

		2019-003787CUA

		3301 Fillmore Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20488

		2017-004654CUA

		1901 Fillmore (aka 1913 Fillmore) Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		M-20489

		2015-015199CUA

		562 28th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+4 -2 (Johnson, Richards against; Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		ZA After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		Adopted a Motion of Intent to Take DR and approve with two flats and a third ground floor unit, and Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Fung absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		ZA After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 29, 2019

		



		

		2018-007676DRP

		3902 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0655

		2017-013308DRM

		1 La Avanzada Street

		Lindsay

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Fung absent)







July 11, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Continued to August 22, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Acting ZA Continued to August 22, 2019

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



		

		2017-002545DRP

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

		Continued to October 3, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street

		Jardines

		Continued to July 25, 2019

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

		Acting ZA Continued to July 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to October 3, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-013582DRP

		215 Montana Street

		Hicks

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20478

		2017-001427CUA

		2187 Market Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 20, 2019 – Joint With BIC

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 20, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 27, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		M-20479

		2019-004597CUA

		1509-1511 Sloat Boulevard

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-000940CWP

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20480

		2015-011274ENV

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		M-20481

		2015-011274CUA

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-011274VAR

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		







June 27, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-011962DRP

		869 Alvarado Street

		Chandler

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

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



		M-20473

		2018-014378CUA

		733 Washington Street

		Phung

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20474

		2018-008277CUA

		952 Clement Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-008277VAR

		952 Clement Street

		Weissglass

		Acting ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 13, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2013.1753CXV

		1066 Market Street

		Adina

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Senate Bill 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		After hearing and closing public comment and a Motion to Approve with Conditions failed +3 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Johnson, Melgar absent); Continued to July 11, 2019

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20475

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Limiting the floor to ceiling height of the living room to 12’6”; and 

2. Increasing the setback of the living room portion from 7’6” to 10’.

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20476

		2015-005763CUA

		247 17th Avenue

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Provide five foot setbacks on the roof deck;

2. Provide an ADU behind the garage with direct access to the street; and

3. Eliminate the interior stair between ground and second level.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20477

		2016-006164CUA

		2478 Geary Boulevard

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended, to provide a six foot opaque privacy screen.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)







June 20, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017028PCA

		Controls on Residential Demolition, Merger, Conversion, and Alterations

		Butkus

		Reviewed and Commented

		







June 20, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 6, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		R-20469

		2019-006421PCA

		Temporary Uses: Intermittent Activities [BF 190459]

		Flores

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2000.0875CWP

		Downtown Plan Monitoring Report 2018

		Harris

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20470

		2014-000203ENX

		655 04th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved as amended by Staff and Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20471

		2014-000203CUA

		655 04th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved as amended by Staff and Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20472

		2016-015814CUA

		5400 Geary Boulevard

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Johnson against; Hillis, Richards absent)



		DRA-0654

		2018-016871DRP

		3600 Scott Street

		Wilborn

		Did NOT Take DR

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)







June 13, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20463

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Oceanview Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0



		M-20464

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street and 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Fung, Moore against)



		

		2017-000663PRJ

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20465

		2019-006418PCA

		North of Market Affordable Housing Fees and Citywide Affordable Housing Fund

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		ConnectSF

		Chan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-016313CWP

		Public Land for Housing and Balboa Reservoir

		Hong

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20466

		2018-009861CUA

		1633 Fillmore Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20467

		2019-004216CUA

		3989 17th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Koppel absent)



		M-20468

		2019-001048CUA

		1398 California Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Hillis, Koppel absent)







June 6, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2019-000183CUA

		435-441 Jackson Street

		Adina

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to July 18, 2019

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 16, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 16, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 23, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2011.1356

		Affordable Housing in Central SoMa

		Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-004406CRV

		Office Development Annual Limit

		Rahaim

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20457

		2015-010013IKA

		30 Otis Street

		Langlois

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20458

		2015-015203DNX-02

		135 Hyde Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20459

		2012.0640ENX

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and adding an 18 month update report

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20460

		2012.0640B

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and adding an 18 month update report

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		R-20461

		2012.0640PRJ

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Directed the Planning Director to enter into Agreement

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20462

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		ZA after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		







May 23, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Continued to June 6, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Acting ZA Continued to June 6, 2019

		



		

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

		Continued to June 13, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 9, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		R-20453

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses at 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Approved with Modification, permitting office uses to participate in the legitimization program for up to three years.

		+7 -0



		

		2015-005255CWP

		Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Consequences Assessment

		Varat

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2015-012490ENXOFA

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2014-000203ENX

		655 4th Street

		Hoagland

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20454

		2019-000189CUA

		1860 9th Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended, for Sponsor to continue working with Staff in order to strengthen the ADU entrance.

		+7 -0



		M-20455

		2019-000186CUA

		828 Innes Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Restricting a Type 8 license; and

2. Informational update presentation, one year from operation.

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		M-20456

		2019-000697CUA

		1370 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2016-009503DRP

		149 Mangels Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0653

		2018-008362DRP

		237 Cortland Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -1 (Moore against)







May 16, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to NOT Disclose

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)







May 16, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street And 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20451

		2018-016996CUA

		517 Clement Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 2, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2015-000937CWP

		Civic Center Public Realm Plan

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-003559PRJ

		3700 California Street

		May

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20452

		2018-014905CUA

		1711 Haight Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)







May 9, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses at 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-013230CUA

		2215 Quesada Avenue

		Christensen

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Durandet

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 25, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2019-006143CWP

		Youth Engagement in Planning

		Exline

		None - Informational

		



		R-20449

		2017-016416PCA

		Code Reorg. Phase 3: Chinatown [Board File TBD]

		Starr

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20450

		2019-003581PCA

		Upper Market NCT and NCT-3 Zoning Districts (Board File No. 190248)

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications including a recommendation that the Board consider:

1. Including Health Services within the definition of Formula Retail; and 

2. Eliminating the Philanthropic Administrative Services use category.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2011.1356

		Central SoMa Open Space

		Small

		None - Informational

		



		

		2012.0640

		598 Brannan Street

		Sucre

		None - Informational

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to July 18, 2019

		



		DRA-0652

		2017-013328DRP-02

		2758 Filbert Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+4 -1 (Moore against, Johnson, Richards absent)







May 2, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2017-001270CUA

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-001270VAR

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		

		2018-007366CUA

		838 Grant Avenue

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



		M-20441

		2019-001017CUA

		1700 Irving Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20442

		2019-003637CUA

		2200 Market Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		CASA

		Pappas

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20443

		2016-011011GPR

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20444

		2015-016326CUA

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20445

		2018-012709CUA

		990 Pacific Avenue

		Lindsay

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused, Melgar absent)



		M-20446

		2018-013395CUA

		10 29th Street

		Lindsay

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards recused; Moore, Melgar absent)



		M-20447

		2017-000280CUA

		915 North Point Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-000280VAR

		915 North Point Street

		Perry

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20448

		2018-015127CUA

		4526 Third Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)







April 25, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		

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

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20433

		2018-017254CUA

		2750 Jackson Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2016-000240DRP

		1322 Wawona Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 11, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20434

		2018-011653PCA

		Temporary Uses on Development Sites

		Butkus

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2015-010192CWP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		None - Informational

		



		R-20435

		2016-007303PCA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20436

		2016-007303DNX

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20437

		2016-007303CUA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20438

		2015-015789ENX

		828 Brannan Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to July 11, 2019

		



		M-20439

		2018-010426CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20440

		2017-012697CUA

		3944a Geary Boulevard

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		DRA-0651

		2018-003223DRP

		15 El Sereno Court

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0







April 18, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses At 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009224CUA

		601 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0



		

		2017-013841DRP

		295 Coso Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		

		



		M-20428

		2019-000475CND

		863 Haight Street

		Wilborn

		Approved 

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 4, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		1996.0013CWP

		2018 Housing Inventory Report

		Ambati

		None – Informational 

		



		M-20429

		2018-006127CUA

		201 19th Avenue

		Weissglass

		Disapproved

		+6 -0



		M-20430

		2018-016549CUA

		40 West Portal Avenue

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20431

		2018-012416CUA

		1345 Underwood Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20432

		2018-013332CUA

		1555 Yosemite Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0







April 11, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Continued to April 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003223DRP

		15 El Sereno Court

		Winslow

		Continued to April 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2015-016326GPR

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2015-016326CUA

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-016667CUA

		3307 Sacramento Street

		Ganetsos

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20417

		2018-017057CUA

		1226 9th Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 7, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20418

		2019-003571MAP

		915 Cayuga Avenue Project Zoning Map Amendments [BF 190251]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		R-20419

		2016-013850PCAMAP

		915 Cayuga Avenue Project Special Use District [BF 190250]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20420

		2016-013850DVA

		915 Cayuga Avenue Development Agreement [BF 190249]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20421

		2016-013850CUA

		915 Cayuga Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		R-20422

		2019-001604PCA

		Building Standards

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff Modifications and direction to Staff to pursue similar controls for RM districts.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		R-20423

		2013.4117CWP

		San Francisco Biodiversity Resolution

		Fisher

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20424

		2017-016416PCA

		Code Reorganization Phase 3: Chinatown

		Starr

		Initiated and Scheduled a Hearing on or after May 9, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-013156SRV

		Citywide Cultural Resources Survey

		LaValley

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to May 23, 2019 with direction from the Commission

		+6 -0



		M-20425

		2018-004711DNX

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20426

		2018-004711CUA

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20427

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include an update memo in one year.

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		DRA-0649

		2018-007006DRP

		2000 Grove Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0



		DRA-0650

		2017-010147DRP

		1633 Cabrillo Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and approved per private agreement

		+6 -0







April 4, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Acting ZA Continued to May 2, 2019

		



		

		2017-015590DRP

		4547 20th Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20409

		2019-000325CUA

		3600 Taraval Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 14, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20410

		2018-000532CUA

		468 Valley Street

		Ajello-Hoagland

		After being pulled off of Consent Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street

		Thomas

		Received Public Comment

		



		

		2019-004406CRV

		Office Development Annual Limit Program Update

		Teague; Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to May 23, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and Closing public comment; ZA Continued to May 23, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to June 6, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20411

		2018-013413CUA

		1001 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2018-013230CUA

		2215 Quesada

		Christensen

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20412

		2018-015071CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. No Amplified music outdoors;

2. Outdoor activities limited to 10 pm daily;

3. Outdoor activities with amplified music limited to 12 am on NYE, Castro Street Fair, Folsom Street Fair, Pride Week, and Halloween, only; and 

4. Provide a Community Liaison.

		+6 -0



		M-20413

		2018-017008CUA

		3512 16th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused)



		M-20414

		2017-010011CUA

		840 Folsom Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20415

		2018-003066CUA

		1233 Connecticut

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20416

		2018-003916CUA

		1326 11th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel absent)



		[bookmark: _Hlk5010645]DRA-0647

		2017-013473DRP

		115 Belgrave Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised per the private agreement

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel absent)



		DRA-0648

		2018-001541DRP

		2963 22nd Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+4 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)







March 14, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-007303PCA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-007303DNXCUA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-006127CUA

		201 19th Avenue

		Weissglass

		Continued to March 21, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-004711DNXCUA

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Continued to April 11, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-009503DRP

		149 Mangels Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.0655CUA

		1513A-F York Street

		Sucre

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.0655VAR

		1513A-F York Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		M-20402

		2018-003264CUA

		2498 Lombard Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 28, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		

		Senate Bill 50: Planning and Zoning: Housing Development: Equitable Communities Incentive (2019)

		Ikezoe

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20405

		2018-003593CUA

		906 Broadway

		Tran

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20406

		2018-007204CUA

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include fire access to the roof be replaced by a shipladder.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-007204VAR

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20407

		2018-007460CUA

		1226 10th Avenue

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20408

		2018-012687CUA

		657 - 667 Mission Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0645

		2017-014420DRP

		2552 Baker Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a three-foot setback of the third-floor terrace railing.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0646

		2016-006123DRP-02

		279 Bella Vista Way

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a condition to continue working with Staff on façade modifications.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)







March 7, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2015-015129DRP

		1523 Franklin Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20397

		2018-012727CUA

		3327-3380 19th Street

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20398

		2018-000813CUA

		939 Ellis Street

		Jimenez

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000813VAR

		939 Ellis Street

		Jimenez

		Assistant ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20399

		2016-005805CUA

		430 Broadway

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20400

		2017-008875CUA

		920 North Point Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 21, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20401

		2019-000048PCA

		Small Business Permit Streamlining

		Butkus

		Approved with modification, requiring CU for outdoor bar uses.

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 11, 2019.

		+6 -0



		

		2018-010552PCA

		Employee Cafeterias Within Office Space

		Sanchez

		Disapproved

		+3 -3 (Hillis, Johnson, Koppel against)



		R-20403

		2018-016401PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Units in New Construction

		Flores

		Approved with Staff modifications, except No. 2

		+5 -1 (Richards against)



		M-20404

		2018-007253CUA

		3356-3360 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 9, 2019.

		+6 -0



		DRA-0643

		2016-005189DRP

		216 Head Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the lightwell be extended to accommodate the bedroom and bathroom windows.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0644

		2018-001681DRP

		120 Varennes Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+6 -0







February 28, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-007204CUA

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Continued to March 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007204VAR

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Acting ZA Continued to March 14, 2019

		



		

		2019-000048PCA

		Small Business Permit Streamlining

		Butkus

		Continued to March 7, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 14, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20394

		2019-000931PCA

		Homeless Shelters in PDR and SALI Districts

		Conner

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20395

		2018-003324CUA

		2779 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Setback roof decks five feet from east and west property lines; and

2. Comply with the Planning Code.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Johnson absent)



		

		2018-003324VAR

		2779 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2009.3461CPW

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		None - Informational

		



		M-20396

		2017-016520CUA

		828 Arkansas Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Provide a matching lightwell in length; and

2. Provide a roof deck compliant with the Roof Deck Policy.

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)







February 21, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-003593CUA

		906 Broadway

		Tran

		Continued to March 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003916CUA

		1326 11th Avenue

		Dito

		Continued to April 4, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2017-009224CUA

		601 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Continued to April 18, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 7, 2019

		Silva

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20389

		2018-016400PCA

		Arts Activities and Nighttime Entertainment Uses in Historic Buildings

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20390

		2019-000592PCA

		C-3 Retail to Office Conversion [Board File No. 190030, Previously Board File No. 180916]

		Butkus

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street

		Perry

		None - Informational

		



		M-20391

		2016-011101CTZ

		Great Highway

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20392

		2016-015997CUA

		820 Post Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions as amended, to work with staff on wall coloring/treatment.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20393

		2017-009635CUA

		432 Cortland Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

3. Work with staff on façade design;

4. Add Construction Impact Mitigation Plan; and

5. Remove roof deck & stair penthouse.

		+6 -1 (Melgar against)



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Sucre

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 21, 2019.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-012929DRP

		830 Olmstead Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-004967DRP

		929 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0642

		2014-002435DRP

		95 Saint Germain Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Proposed

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







February 14, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Acting ZA Continued to April 4, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to April 4, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2017-005279VAR

		448 Valley Street

		Horn

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20380

		2018-013462CUA

		3995 Alemany Boulevard

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 24, 2019 – Joint with HPC

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 24, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 31, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20381

		2018-015439CUA

		205 Hugo Street

		Weissglass

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Limiting hours of operation to 9 pm; and 

2. Restricting amplified music outdoors.

		+7 -0



		

R-20382

		2018-015471CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Johnson absent)



		

		

		Executive Directive on Housing (17-02) Report

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

R-20383

		2019-001351CRV

		Nonprofit Organizations’ First-Right-To-Purchase Multi-Family Residential Buildings [BF 181212]

		Ikezoe

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended, encouraging the pursuit of incentives.

		+6 -0 (Fong absent)



		

R-20384

		2018-016562PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Fee for State Density Bonus Projects [Bf 181154]

		Bintliff

		Disapproved

		+6 -0 (Fong absent)



		M-20385

		2016-007303ENV

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Pollak

		Upheld the PMND

		+7 -0



		M-20386

		2018-007049CUA

		3378 Sacramento Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Hillis absent)



		M-20387

		2017-005279CUA

		448 Valley Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20388

		2018-014721CUA

		1685 Haight Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-639

		2016-005555DRP-02

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+4 -1 (Fong against; Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2016-005555VAR

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement.

		



		DRA-640

		2016-009554DRP

		27 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and approved with conditions:

1. Provide an open to the sky  privacy screen for acoustic mitigation; and

2. Continue working with staff on a more defined entry to the garden unit.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-641

		2017-014666DRP

		743 Vermont Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)







February 7, 2019 Special Off-Site Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1543

		1979 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 31, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-009635CUA

		432 Cortland Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

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



		

		2018-016494PCA

		Central SoMa “Community Good Jobs Employment Plan”

		Chen

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-010630DRP

		1621 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Continued to March 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-002409DRP

		1973 Broadway

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20376

		2018-012850CND

		3132-3140 Scott Street

		Wilborn

		Approved

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		M-20377

		2018-009587CUA

		3535 California Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 17, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-016562PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Fee for State Density Bonus Projects [BF 181154]

		Bintliff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to February 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Housing Strategies and Plans

		Chion

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20378

		2018-007259CUA

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-007259VAR

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20379

		2016-010079CUA

		3620 Buchanan Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-010079VAR

		3620 Buchanan Street

		Ajello

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-638

		2015-008813DRP

		2337 Taraval Street

		Horn

		Took DR and approved with modifications:

1. Eliminating the roof deck; and

2. Providing a clear breezeway for the rear unit.

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel, Melgar absent)







January 24, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Communication Between Commissions

		

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Retained Elements Policy

		

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 24, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20373

		2018-011935CUA

		2505 Third Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20374

		2018-010700CUA

		4018 24th Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 10, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2018-015471CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Racial & Social Equity Initiative

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20375

		2018-008877CUA

		1519 Polk Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-637

		2015-011216DRP

		277 Judson Avenue

		Kwiatkowska

		Took DR and reduced the depth of the top floor seven feet (allowing a deck to replace the proposed addition) and staff recommended modifications.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)



		

		2016-005189DRP

		216 Head Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 7, 2018 with direction for additional information.

		+5 -0 (Fong, Koppel absent)



		

		2017-013175DRP

		1979 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		







January 17, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-005555DRP-02

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2016-005555VAR

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Acting ZA  Continued to February 14, 2019

		



		

		2016-015997CUA

		820 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012092DRP

		299 Edgewood Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Continued to January 31, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2017-002545DRP

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Melgar – President;

Koppel - Vice

		+7 -0



		R-20369

		2018-015443MAP

		170 Valencia Street [Board File No. 181045]

		Butkus

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20370

R-20371

		2018-007888CWP

		Polk / Pacific Special Area Design Guidelines

		Winslow

		Adopted Guidelines and Approved Amendment

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Economic Trends and Housing Pipeline

		Ojeda

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-004568PRJ

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		None - Informational

		



		M-20372

		2018-006212CUA

		145 Laurel Street

		Lindsay

		Approved Staff’s recommended alternative with Conditions as Amended

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







January 10, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-007259CUA

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Continued to January 31, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007259VAR

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Acting ZA Continued to January 31, 2019

		



		

		2017-001270CUA

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-001270VAR

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued to February 14, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Perry

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-008351DRP-06

		380 Holladay Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007888CWP

		Polk / Pacific Special Area Design Guidelines

		Winslow

		Continued to January 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-012929DRP

		830 Olmstead Street

		Winslow

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20364

		2018-012050CUA

		927 Irving Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 13, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 20, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20365

		2016-007467CUA

		360 West Portal Avenue Suite A

		Hicks

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-017238CWP

		Tall Buildings Safety Strategy

		Small

		None - Informational

		



		M-20366

		2017-007943CUA

		3848 24th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused; Johnson absent)



		M-20367

		2018-009178CUA

		2909 Webster Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20368

		2018-001936CUA

		799 Van Ness Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-636

		2018-001609DRP

		144 Peralta Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Proposed

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				November 7, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Johnson - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-009548CUA		427 Baden St				CONSENT		Pantoja

						a lot line adjustment and construction of a new SFH

				AAU				to: 11/21		Perry

						Entitlements

		2008.0023CUA		461 29th Street 				fr: 8/29		Townes

						Residential Demo 		to: 11/21

				Water Supply 				fr: 10/24		Kern

						Informational		to: 12/12

		2018-007267OFA		865 Market Street 				to: 12/5		Vimr

						49,999 square feet of office space on levels 7-8

		2018-011441CUAVAR 		1846 Grove Street				to: 12/12		Dito

						new construction of five dwelling units 

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

				 		Initiation

		2019-014348PCA		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable & Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities				fr: 10/3		Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2015-006825CUA		367 Hamilton Avenue				fr: 7/11; 9/12		Flores

						317 tantamount to demo

		2018-000468CUA		3945 Judah Street						Pantoja

						HOME-SF, 20 new dwelling units

		2019-004664CUA 		57 Wentworth St.						Asbagh

						Retail to a Cocktail Bar/ Lounge

		2018-011430CUAVAR		1776 Green St						May

						TBD

		2017-013155CUA 		230 Kirkham Avenue						Ajello

						Demo SFD/Construct new two-family dwelling

		2018-001485CUA		3360 Sacramento Street						Ajello

						legalize a 1,472 sq. ft. trade office use (dba Toboni Group) on the ground floor

		2019-002758CUA 		3501 Geary Boulevard						Young

						Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. T-Mobile)

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th St 						Sucre

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-015288DRP		1130 POTRERO AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 14, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Fire Drill @ 10:30 am				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST				to: 2/6		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011962DRP		869 ALVARADO ST				fr: 6/27; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR		to: Indefinite

		2019-012281CUA		350 Pacific Avenue				CB3P		Weissglass

						reauthorization of a public parking lot in the C-2

		2019-016419CND 		3234 Washington Street 				CONSENT		Dito

						5 unit condo conversion

				Plan Bay Area Update 						Switzky

						Informational

		2016-010589ENXOFA		2300 Harrison Street 				fr: 4/25; 5/9; 6/6; 7/18; 8/22; 10/10		Hoagland

						6-story vertical addition, office/24 unit mixed use building, including State Density Bonus

		2018-012642CUA		552-554 Capp St						Liang

						Conversion of existing Residential to Community Facility use

		2019-001694CUA		1500 Mission Street				fr: 10/3		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2017-004110CUA02		2867 San Bruno Ave						Durandet

						increase the dwelling unit density from 10 to 24 units

		2017-000140CUA		2299 Market St						Campbell

						ENF-Related CUA to Legalize Formula Retail Establishment

		2017-002545ENVAPL		2417 Green St 				fr: 9/19		Poling

						PMND Appeal

		2017-002545DRP		2417 Green St 				fr: 7/11; 9/19		May

						Public Initiated DR

		2018-016284DRP		1299 SANCHEZ ST				fr: 10/10		Washington

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 21, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Moore, Fung - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-014224CUA 		279 Columbus Ave 				CB3P		Lindsay

						new restaurant use (d.b.a. Bulgara) 

		2016-003351CWP 		Racial & Social Equity Action Plan						Flores

						Adoption

		TBD		100% Affordable Housing and Educator Housing Streamlining Program						Starr

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-003800CWP		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines						Francis

						Adoption

				AAU				fr: 11/7		Perry

						Entitlements

				Prop M				fr: 10/24		Teague

						Office Allocation

		2018-012392CUA		37 Saturn Street				fr: 10/24		Horn

						Corona Heights SUD

		2016-003994CUA		55 Belcher Street 				fr: 6/13; 7/11; 10/3		Townes

						CUA

		2008.0023CUA		461 29th Street 				fr: 8/29; 11/7		Townes

						Residential Demo 

		2019-004849CUA 		2406 Bush Street						Ajello

						ENF-related CUA to legalize 2 to 1 DUM

		2019-015129CUA		333 Dolores St						Pantoja

						amendment of Motion No. 19041 for temporary structures for an additional seven years

		2018-009157PRJ 		2175 Hayes Street 						Jimenez

						TBD

		2019-000745CUAVAR		1100 Thomas Street						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2019-001143CUA		1465 Donner Avenue						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2019-005500CUA		2934 Cesar Chavez Street				fr: 10/3		Christensen

						171 sq ft Retail to Cannabis Retail

		2018-007725DRP		244 DOUGLASS STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 28, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				December 5, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-006951CUA		1401 19th Ave				CONSENT		Campbell

						CUA Type 20 ABC License within an Existing Fuel Station Café/Retail Establishment

				Retained Elements Special Topic Design Guidelines						Small

						Adoption

		2018-012576CUA		1769 Lombard St						Weissglass

						1-year update on the CUA approved last year for the Kennel Use

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Initiation

		2016-013312GPA		542-550 Howard Street				fr: 10/17		Foster

						General Plan Amendment (Initiation-only)

		2015-010192CWP		Potrero Power Station 						Schuett

						FEIR certification and project approvals 

		2018-016625DNX		50 Post Street 				fr: 6/6; 7/11; 8/22; 10/17		Perry

						Crocker Galleria

		2019-000013CUA		552-554 Hill Street						Campbell

						Legalization of Dwelling Unit Merger & Relocation

		2019-004451CUA		2075 Mission Street				fr: 7/25; 10/17		Christensen

						cosmetic school to Cannabis Retail

		2018-014774CUA		360 Spear Street 				fr: 10/17		Liang

						Internet Service Exchange (ISE) to Laboratory use.   

		2013.1593BCUA		2 Henry Adams						Giacomucci

						office use in a landmark building in PDR-1-D

		2018-011004CUA		146 Geary St				fr: 10/24		Tran

						change of use from retail to office at upper floors 

		2017-014849CUA		220 Post Street				fr: 8/29; 10/24		Vimr

						Change of Use from Retail to Office on Floors 3-5

		2017-012887DRP		265 OAK ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013559DRP-02		2517 PACIFIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013201DRP		500 JONES ST						Christensen

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 12, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-012018CUA		251 Clement Street				CONSENT		Wilborn

						Formula Retail use (an after-school institutional program; dba “The Coder School”)

		2019-014764CND		2101-2109 Ellis Street				CONSENT		Wilborn

						Condo Conversion Subdivision of a 5-unit building

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

						Adoption

		2019-017957PCA		Geary-Masonic Special Use District						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Initiation

				Water Supply 				fr: 10/24; 11/7		Kern

						Informational

		2016-006860IKA		65 Ocean Av				fr: 10/24		Flores

						In-Kind Agreement

		2013.0655CUAVAR		1513A-F York Street						Liang

						5 new buildings for a total of 10 residential units

		2018-011441CUAVAR 		1846 Grove Street				fr: 11/7		Dito

						new construction of five dwelling units 

		2018-015446CUAVAR 		740 Clayton Street						Dito

						church to residential

		2018-011904CUA		1420 Taraval St						Hoagland

						Demo SFD & construct 3 du mixed use building

		2018-002124CUA 		54 4th St 						Alexander

						conversion of residential hotel rooms to tourist hotel 

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St						Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels

		2019-000503DRP-03		2452 GREEN ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-012442DRP		436 TEHAMA STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-013697DRP		3500 JACKSON ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 19, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-004827ENV		SFPUC Alameda Creek Recapture Project						Kern

						DEIR

		2017-005154CUASHD		1300 Columbus Avenue						Fahey

						4-story addition of 174 rooms and ground floor retail to an existing 4-story, 342 room hotel

		2019-001995CUA 		1 Front Street 

						Service Use (Accessory Office) and 600 sq ft of Retail Sales and Service (Limited Restaurant)

		2018-011717CUA 		1369 Sanchez Street				fr: 10/24		Cisneros

						Demo per PC Section 317

		2018-009551DRPVAR		3847-3849 18TH ST				fr: 5/9; 7/18; 8/29; 10/24		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-010941DRP		2028 LEAVENWORTH ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011578DRP		2898 VALLEJO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-010655DRP-03		2169 26TH AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 26, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 2, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 9, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2016-013312CUADNXMAP		542-550 Howard Street (“Parcel F”)						Foster

		OFAPCAVAR				Project Adoption 

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST				fr: 11/14		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-003023DRP-02		2727 VALLEJO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 16, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Market Octavia Plan Amendment						Langlois

						Informational

		2019-002665DRP		801 SANCHEZ ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-005400DRP		166 PARKER AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2014.0243DRP-02		3927-3931 19TH ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 23, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Budget & Work Program						Landis

						Informational

				Market Octavia Plan Amendment						Langlois

						Adoption

		2016-008652ENXCUA		1721 15th Street 						Durandet

						Demo and new construction with State Density Bonus 41 residential units

		2019-000650DRP-02		617 SANCHEZ ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-002825DRP		780 KANSAS ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-003900DRP		1526 MASONIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 30, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-014127DRP		2643 31ST AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013041DRP		41 KRONQUIST CT						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2016-011407DRP		407 WILDE AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 6, 2020 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Adoption

				February 6, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-014893DRP-02		152 GEARY ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-014211DRP		667 MISSISSIPPI ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				February 13, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Budget & Work Program						Landis

						Adoption

				February 20, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				February 27, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2017-003559ENV		3700 California St						Poling

						Certification

		2017-003559PRJ		3700 California St						May

						Project Approvals
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Notice of Hearing

&

Agenda





Commission Chambers, Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689



Thursday, November 7, 2019

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Myrna Melgar, President

Joel Koppel, Vice President

Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.




Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Myrna Melgar		Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

		Commissioners:                	Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

			Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2019-012970PRJ	(A. PERRY: (415) 575-9017)

ACADEMY OF ART UNIVERSITY – The proposed Project involves 34 properties owned or leased by the Academy of Art University (the “Academy”). Consistent with the Term Sheet and Supplement to the Term Sheet for Global Resolution, the Project seeks to establish or legalize uses at these properties, consolidate single room occupancy units regulated under Chapter 41 of the Administrative Code into two buildings and provide at least 7 new Chapter 41 units, and perform or legalize building modifications to these properties in order to implement said uses and to generally abate all Planning Code violations. A full list of the 34 properties may be found at sfplanning.org/academy. The Planning Commission will act on the following items: 1) Adoption of CEQA Findings. The Planning Commission certified the Final EIR for the Project on July 28, 2016. An Addendum to the FEIR was prepared for the Project and was published on October 9, 2019. Prior to any other action, the Commission must adopt CEQA Findings and a Statement of Overriding Considerations for the Project to proceed; 2) Planning Code Amendment and Development Agreement. The Planning Commission will consider adoption of a resolution and recommendation to the Board of Supervisors regarding the proposed Planning Code amendments that are necessary in order to implement the Project and regarding the proposed Development Agreement between the Academy and its various LLCs and the City and County of San Francisco; and 3) Conditional Use Authorization. As allowed by the proposed Planning Code Amendment, the Planning Commission will take action to authorize the proposed uses and building modifications across all 34 properties through a single, Master Conditional Use Authorization (MCUA). The MCUA allows the Planning Commission to grant exceptions from Code requirements that might otherwise be required under the Code to authorize all scopes of work contemplated by the Project.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt CEQA Findings, Adopt Resolution Recommending Approval of Planning Code Amendments and Development Agreement, and Approval with Conditions of Conditional Use Authorization

(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)



[bookmark: _Hlk18069886]2.	2008.0023CUA	(B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)

[bookmark: _Hlk18069877]461 29TH STREET – south side of 29th Street between Noe Street and Sanchez Street; Lot 033 of Assessor’s Block 6631 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Section 303 and 317 to demolish an existing, two-story, 750 square foot, single family residence and construct a new four-story, 6,459 square foot, two-dwelling unit building up to 40-feet tall and including two parking spaces, and two Class 1 bicycle parking spaces. Per Planning Code Section 317, any application for a permit that would result in the removal of one or more residential units shall require a Conditional Use Authorization for the removal and replacement of the units. The subject property is located within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on August 29, 2019)

Note: On August 29, 2019, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to November 7, 2019 with direction from the Commission by a vote of +6 -0 (Johnson absent).

(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)



3.	2019-014348PCA	(A. MERLONE: (415) 575-9129)

EXEMPTION FROM DENSITY LIMITS FOR AFFORDABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED UNITS [BOARD FILE NO. 190757] – Planning Code Amendment to provide an exception from density limit calculations for all affordable units in projects not seeking and receiving a density bonus, permit the legalization of all unauthorized dwelling units notwithstanding a history of no-fault evictions, and principally permit residential care facilities for seven or more persons in all RH (Residential, House) zoning districts; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 3, 2019)

(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)



4.	2018-007267OFA	(J. VIMR: (415) 575-9109)

865 MARKET STREET – south side of Market Street immediately east of its intersection with Fifth Street; Lot 042 in Assessor’s Block 3705 (District 6) – Request for an Office Development Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 320 through 325 to authorize up to 49,999 square feet from the Office Development Annual Limit. The proposal would convert existing retail use, accessory office use, and miscellaneous spaces at floors 7-8 of the subject building to General Office use. The subject property is located within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District, 120-X/160-S Height and Bulk District, and Article 11 Kearny-Market-Mason-Sutter Conservation District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)



5a.	2018-011441CUA	(M. DITO: (415) 575-9164)

[bookmark: _Hlk23255042]1846 GROVE STREET – south side of Fulton Street between Atalaya Terrace and Masonic Avenue, Lot 003H in Assessor’s Block 1187 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1 and 303 to construct five dwelling units on a lot zoned RH-2 (Residential, House – Two Family) and RH-3 (Residential, House – Three Family). The Conditional Use Authorization request is to exceed the principally permitted dwelling unit density limit for the respective zoning district. The lot is located within 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed Continuance to December 12, 2019)



5b.	2018-011441VAR	(M. DITO: (415) 575-9164)

[bookmark: _Hlk23254999]1846 GROVE STREET – south side of Fulton Street between Atalaya Terrace and Masonic Avenue, Lot 003H in Assessor’s Block 1187 (District 5) – Request for Variances from the rear yard, exposure, and bicycle parking requirements of the Planning Code, pursuant to Sections 134, 135, and 151, respectively. The subject property is located within both a RH-2 (Residential, House – Two Family) and RH-3 (Residential, House – Three Family) Zoning District, as well as 40-X Height and Bulk District.

(Proposed Continuance to December 12, 2019)



B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



6.	2019-004664CUA 	(C. ALEXANDER (415) 575-8724)

57 WENTWORTH STREET – east side of Grant Avenue and west side of Wentworth Place between Jackson and Washington Streets, Lot 035 in Assessor’s Block 0194 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 811 and 303 for a change of use from retail to bar/lounge (approximately 4,048 sf) on the ground floor and basement level of a mixed-use building within the CVR (Chinatown Visitor Retail) Zoning District and 50-N Height and Bulk District. The Conditional Use Authorization request is for the bar/lounge use and to exceed the principally permitted use size limit and operation hours for non-residential uses. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



7.	2018-009548CUA	(G. PANTOJA: (415) 575-8741)

427 BADEN STREET – between Martha and Mangels Avenues, Lot 005 and 006 in Assessor’s Block 6762 (District 13) – Request a Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121 and 303 for the creation of one substandard lot and construction of a new two-story, single-family dwelling unit within a RH-1 (Residential House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The new single-family dwelling unit will be located on an existing vacant lot to be altered via a lot line adjustment into a substandard lot. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



8.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for October 17, 2019 – Joint with Rec and Park

· Draft Minutes for October 17, 2019 – Regular 

· Draft Minutes for October 24, 2019 – Regular 



9.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.



10.	PLANNING DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT AND HIRING PROCESS: Discussion and possible adoption of a Motion to endorse the process for the recruitment of candidates for the position of Planning Director and making a hiring recommendation to the Mayor.

	Preliminary Recommendation:  Endorse Process

D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



11.	Director’s Announcements



12.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.





F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



13.	2019-013522PCA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

[bookmark: _GoBack]CODE CLEAN-UP 2019 – Planning Code Amendment to correct typographical errors, update outdated cross-reference, and make non-substantive revisions to clarify or simplify Code language; amending Article 4 to move the language regarding timing of fee payments to the beginning of the Article and cross-reference it in the individual impact fee sections and to add an additional fee waiver based on the replacement of gross floor area in buildings damaged or destroyed by fire or other calamity; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation: Initiate and Consider Adoption on or after December 12, 2019



14.	2019-013506GEN	(C. KERN: (415) 575-9037)

WATER SUPPLY – Informational Presentation by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission and Planning Department on the City’s water supply planning process.

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 24, 2019)



15.	2015-006825CUA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

367 HAMILTON AVENUE – between Burrows and Bacon Streets; Lot 022 of Assessor’s Block 5987 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to allow demolition of an existing 950 square foot single-family home and unauthorized dwelling unit and new construction of a three-story 3,115 square foot single-family home with an Accessory Dwelling Unit on the ground floor per Ordinance 95-17. The project site is located within a RH-1 (Residential, House – One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on September 12, 2019)



16.	2018-000468AHB	(G. PANTOJA: (415) 575-8741)

3945 JUDAH STREET – between 44th and 45th Avenues; Lot 028 in Assessor’s Block 1809 (District 15) – Request for a HOME-SF Project Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 328 for the demolition of an existing one-story commercial building, formerly utilized for the operation of a gas station, and the construction of a new five-story over basement, 55-foot, approximately 19, 160 square-foot mixed-use building containing a total of 20 dwelling units (10 one-bedroom, 9 two-bedroom, and 1 three-bedroom), 2,440 square feet of commercial space, 7 off-street parking spaces, and 24 bicycle parking spaces within a Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster (NC-1) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The proposal is pursuing a Tier-2 HOME-SF Project Authorization which permits a form-based density, one additional story of height, and five additional feet at the ground floor in excess of the height limit in exchange for providing 25% on-site affordable dwelling units. Additionally, the proposal is pursuing a Zoning Modification from the rear yard requirement pursuant to Planning Code Section 206.3. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



17a.	2018-011430CUA	(C. MAY: (415) 575-9087)

1776 GREEN STREET – north side of Green Street between Octavia and Gough Streets, Lot 006 in Assessor’s Block 0544 (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1 and 303 to permit a two-story vertical addition and a change of use from an automobile repair garage to a residential building containing five new residential units within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The Conditional Use Authorization request is to exceed the principally permitted dwelling unit density limit for the respective zoning district. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



17b.	2018-011430VAR	(C. MAY: (415) 575-9087)

1776 GREEN STREET – north side of Green Street between Octavia and Gough Streets, Lot 006 in Assessor’s Block 0544 (District 2) – Request for Variances from the front setback and rear yard requirements of Planning Code Sections 132 and 134, respectively, to permit a two-story vertical addition and a change of use from an automobile repair garage to a residential building containing five new residential units within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.



18.	2018-001485CUA	(L. AJELLO: (415) 575-9142)

3360 SACRAMENTO STREET – north side of Sacramento Street between Walnut and Presidio Streets; Lot 011 in Assessor’s Block 1008 (District 2) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 724 and 102 to legalize a “Trade Office” use on the ground floor of a mixed-use building within the Sacramento Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



19.	2017-013155CUA	(L. AJELLO: (415) 575-9142)

230 KIRKHAM AVENUE – north side of Kirkham Street between 6th  and 7th Avenues; Lot 026 in Assessor’s Block 1847 (District 5) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to demolish a two-story single-family dwelling and construct a three-story two-family dwelling within a RH-2 (Residential, House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

[bookmark: _Hlk22907354]Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



20.	2019-002758CUA	(S. YOUNG: (415) 558-6346)

3501 GEARY BOULEVARD – southwest corner of Geary Boulevard and Stanyan Street; Lots 012-013 (formerly Lot 001B) in Assessor’s Block 1084 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, 703.4 and 712 to establish a Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. T-Mobile) in an approximately 1,866 square foot vacant ground floor commercial space.  The project site is located within a NC-3 (Moderate-Scale Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



21.	2018-003910DRP	(R. SUCRE: (415) 575-9108)

3252 19TH STREET – located at northwest corner of 19th and Shotwell Streets; Lot 025 in Assessor’s Block 3591 (District 9) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.08.16.7612, to legalize a change in use of approximately 2,849 square feet on the first floor and an associated mezzanine from automotive repair to amusement game arcade/restaurant (dba. Redemption) within an existing two-story building in an UMU (Urban Mixed-Use) Zoning District and 58-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



22.	2018-015288DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

1130 POTRERO AVENUE – between 23rd and 24th Streets.; Lot 007 in Assessor’s Block 4211 (District 9) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.1105.5040, proposing a third -story vertical addition and a 1-story horizontal rear and side addition to an existing  2-story, one-family house within a RH-3 (Residential House, Three-Family) Zoning District and 55-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



ADJOURNMENT


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

REGARDING PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

(November 21, 2019)

[bookmark: _Hlk22223949][bookmark: _Hlk22220491]Case No. 2008.0586DVA / 2019-012970DVA: Academy of Art University, located at 43 properties owned or leased by the Academy of Art University – On November 21, 2019, the Planning Commission will hold a public hearing to consider a Request for Approval of a Development Agreement between the City and County of San Francisco and The Academy, including The Stephens Institute dba Academy of Art University and the LLC Parties, for implementation of the Academy of Art Project, with various public benefits, including: (1) an “Affordable Housing Benefit” defined as the cash payment by the LLC Parties of $37,600,000 to the City to be used by the City solely for affordable housing purposes, with a first priority for uses related to the creation or preservation of single room occupancy (SRO) units in those supervisorial districts in which the City alleges the Academy unlawfully converted SRO buildings to student housing, as the City may determine in its sole discretion; (2) a cash payment by the LLC Parties to the City’s Small Sites Fund estimated to exceed $8,200,000; (3); an agreement by the Stephens Institute to meet all future housing needs for its students through new construction on property that is zoned for such use, or conversion of existing non-residential, non-PDR structures to student housing use, to not promise new students more housing units than the number of lawful units that are at the disposal, to not temporarily house its students in non-Academy facilities with limited exceptions, and to provide housing to increase the percentage of housing it provides to On Campus Students pursuant to a “Housing Metering” formula agreed to by the Parties; (4) payment by the LLC Parties of Planning Code penalties totaling $1,000,000 and reimbursement for enforcement costs in the amount of $1,300,000; and (5) payment by the LLC Parties of Unfair Competition Law penalties totaling $6,000,000. The Project contemplates that the Academy will withdraw from 9 existing sites, will occupy 3 new buildings, will legalize certain changes in use, where required, will legalize alterations previously made without required permits, and obtain permits necessary to perform work to bring its buildings into compliance with the Planning Code including, where applicable, Articles 10 and 11. The Project will result in Academy uses at 34 properties. Also, the Academy will pay impact, fair share and in lieu fees of an estimated $3,800,000. Those total payments are approximately $58,000,000.  In addition, the Academy will pay permit fees and the City’s administrative costs in connection with the processing of the Development Agreement. The Development Agreement and accompanying legislation will confirm compliance with or waive certain provisions of Administrative Code, Chapters 41 and 56, provide a limited exception to the density requirements of Planning Code Section 209.3 for a single site and ratify certain actions taken in connection therewith. Pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 56.4(c), the Director of Planning has received and accepted a complete application for the amendment of the above-mentioned development agreement which is available for review by the public at the Planning Department in Planning Department Case File Nos. 2008.0586DVA and 2019-012970DVA.




Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City
and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations
are open to the people's review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-
7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco
Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to
the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect
or copy.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist

Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415)
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove,
Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6,9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance
of the hearing to help ensure availability.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisién de Planificacién. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato
para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 1 #| & B &g i . BB e L anws B S WBhel BRI ER M, 55203 415-558-6309, (LR E 81T 2 A Ad
/D48 /INREE H B R

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: NoBecTka aHst Komuccum no nnaHNpoBaHUIO. 3a nomouybio nepesoavunka nnun 3a scrnomMoratesibHbIM CI1yXOBbIM
yCTpOVICTBOM Ha BpeMA CJ'IyLLIaHI/II7I o6pau.|,a|7|Ter no Homepy 415-558-6309. 3anp00b| JOJKHbI AenaTtbcsa MUHUMYM 3a 48 YacoB
00 Havyana cnywaHus.
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San Francisco Planning Commission Thursday, November 7, 2019

ROLL CALL:

President: Myrna Melgar
Vice-President: Joel Koppel
Commissioners: Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson,

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards

A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE

The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may choose
to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear
the item on this calendar.

1.

2019-012970PRJ (A. PERRY: (415) 575-9017)
ACADEMY OF ART UNIVERSITY - The proposed Project involves 34 properties owned or
leased by the Academy of Art University (the “Academy”). Consistent with the Term Sheet
and Supplement to the Term Sheet for Global Resolution, the Project seeks to establish or
legalize uses at these properties, consolidate single room occupancy units regulated under
Chapter 41 of the Administrative Code into two buildings and provide at least 7 new Chapter
41 units, and perform or legalize building modifications to these properties in order to
implement said uses and to generally abate all Planning Code violations. A full list of the 34
properties may be found at sfplanning.org/academy. The Planning Commission will act on
the following items: 1) Adoption of CEQA Findings. The Planning Commission certified the
Final EIR for the Project on July 28, 2016. An Addendum to the FEIR was prepared for the
Project and was published on October 9, 2019. Prior to any other action, the Commission
must adopt CEQA Findings and a Statement of Overriding Considerations for the Project to
proceed; 2) Planning Code Amendment and Development Agreement. The Planning
Commission will consider adoption of a resolution and recommendation to the Board of
Supervisors regarding the proposed Planning Code amendments that are necessary in order
to implement the Project and regarding the proposed Development Agreement between
the Academy and its various LLCs and the City and County of San Francisco; and 3)
Conditional Use Authorization. As allowed by the proposed Planning Code Amendment, the
Planning Commission will take action to authorize the proposed uses and building
modifications across all 34 properties through a single, Master Conditional Use
Authorization (MCUA). The MCUA allows the Planning Commission to grant exceptions from
Code requirements that might otherwise be required under the Code to authorize all scopes
of work contemplated by the Project.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt CEQA Findings, Adopt Resolution Recommending
Approval of Planning Code Amendments and Development Agreement, and Approval with
Conditions of Conditional Use Authorization

(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)

2008.0023CUA (B. HICKS: (415) 575-9054)
461 29™ STREET - south side of 29th Street between Noe Street and Sanchez Street; Lot 033
of Assessor’s Block 6631 (District 8) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant
to Planning Code Section 303 and 317 to demolish an existing, two-story, 750 square foot,
single family residence and construct a new four-story, 6,459 square foot, two-dwelling unit
building up to 40-feet tall and including two parking spaces, and two Class 1 bicycle parking
spaces. Per Planning Code Section 317, any application for a permit that would result in the
removal of one or more residential units shall require a Conditional Use Authorization for

Notice of Hearing & Agenda Page 3of 13






San Francisco Planning Commission Thursday, November 7, 2019

5a.

the removal and replacement of the units. The subject property is located within a RH-2
(Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This
action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to
San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on August 29, 2019)

Note: On August 29, 2019, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to
November 7, 2019 with direction from the Commission by a vote of +6 -0 (Johnson absent).
(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)

2019-014348PCA (A. MERLONE: (415) 575-9129)
EXEMPTION FROM DENSITY LIMITS FOR AFFORDABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED UNITS [BOARD
FILE NO. 190757] - Planning Code Amendment to provide an exception from density limit
calculations for all affordable units in projects not seeking and receiving a density bonus,
permit the legalization of all unauthorized dwelling units notwithstanding a history of no-
fault evictions, and principally permit residential care facilities for seven or more persons in
all RH (Residential, House) zoning districts; affirming the Planning Department’s
determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of
consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section
101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under
Planning Code, Section 302.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 3,2019)

(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)

2018-0072670FA (J. VIMR: (415) 575-9109)
865 MARKET STREET - south side of Market Street immediately east of its intersection with
Fifth Street; Lot 042 in Assessor’s Block 3705 (District 6) — Request for an Office Development
Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 320 through 325 to authorize up to
49,999 square feet from the Office Development Annual Limit. The proposal would convert
existing retail use, accessory office use, and miscellaneous spaces at floors 7-8 of the subject
building to General Office use. The subject property is located within a C-3-R (Downtown-
Retail) Zoning District, 120-X/160-S Height and Bulk District, and Article 11 Kearny-Market-
Mason-Sutter Conservation District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the
project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section
31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)

2018-011441CUA (M. DITO: (415) 575-9164)
1846 GROVE STREET - south side of Fulton Street between Atalaya Terrace and Masonic
Avenue, Lot 003H in Assessor's Block 1187 (District 5) — Request for Conditional Use
Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1 and 303 to construct five dwelling
units on a lot zoned RH-2 (Residential, House — Two Family) and RH-3 (Residential, House -
Three Family). The Conditional Use Authorization request is to exceed the principally
permitted dwelling unit density limit for the respective zoning district. The lot is located
within 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the
project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section
31.04(h).
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C

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
(Proposed Continuance to December 12, 2019)

5b. 2018-011441VAR (M. DITO: (415) 575-9164)
1846 GROVE STREET - south side of Fulton Street between Atalaya Terrace and Masonic
Avenue, Lot 003H in Assessor’s Block 1187 (District 5) — Request for Variances from the rear
yard, exposure, and bicycle parking requirements of the Planning Code, pursuant to Sections
134, 135, and 151, respectively. The subject property is located within both a RH-2
(Residential, House — Two Family) and RH-3 (Residential, House — Three Family) Zoning
District, as well as 40-X Height and Bulk District.

(Proposed Continuance to December 12, 2019)

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission. There
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff
so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered
as a separate item at this or a future hearing

6.

2019-004664CUA (C. ALEXANDER (415) 575-8724)
57 WENTWORTH STREET - east side of Grant Avenue and west side of Wentworth Place
between Jackson and Washington Streets, Lot 035 in Assessor’s Block 0194 (District 3) —
Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 811 and 303
for a change of use from retail to bar/lounge (approximately 4,048 sf) on the ground floor
and basement level of a mixed-use building within the CVR (Chinatown Visitor Retail)
Zoning Districtand 50-N Height and Bulk District. The Conditional Use Authorization request
is for the bar/lounge use and to exceed the principally permitted use size limit and operation
hours for non-residential uses. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for
the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2018-009548CUA (G. PANTOJA: (415) 575-8741)
427 BADEN STREET - between Martha and Mangels Avenues, Lot 005 and 006 in Assessor’s
Block 6762 (District 13) — Request a Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning
Code Sections 121 and 303 for the creation of one substandard lot and construction of a new
two-story, single-family dwelling unit within a RH-1 (Residential House, One-Family) Zoning
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The new single-family dwelling unit will be
located on an existing vacant lot to be altered via a lot line adjustment into a substandard
lot. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA,
pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

COMMISSION MATTERS

8.

Consideration of Adoption:
e Draft Minutes for October 17, 2019 — Joint with Rec and Park
e Draft Minutes for October 17, 2019 — Reqular
e Draft Minutes for October 24, 2019 — Reqular
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9. Commission Comments/Questions

¢ Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could
be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the
Planning Commission.

10. PLANNING DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT AND HIRING PROCESS: Discussion and possible
adoption of a Motion to endorse the process for the recruitment of candidates for the
position of Planning Director and making a hiring recommendation to the Mayor.
Preliminary Recommendation: Endorse Process

D. DEPARTMENT MATTERS
11. Director’s Announcements

12. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic
Preservation Commission

E. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect
to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is
reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three
minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may
be moved to the end of the Agenda.

F. REGULAR CALENDAR

The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal. Please be advised that the
project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors.

13. 2019-013522PCA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)
CODE CLEAN-UP 2019 - Planning Code Amendment to correct typographical errors, update
outdated cross-reference, and make non-substantive revisions to clarify or simplify Code
language; amending Article 4 to move the language regarding timing of fee payments to
the beginning of the Article and cross-reference it in the individual impact fee sections and
to add an additional fee waiver based on the replacement of gross floor area in buildings
damaged or destroyed by fire or other calamity; affirming the Planning Department’s
determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of
consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section
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14.

15.

16.

17a.

101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under
Planning Code, Section 302.
Preliminary Recommendation: Initiate and Consider Adoption on or after December 12, 2019

2019-013506GEN (C. KERN: (415) 575-9037)
WATER SUPPLY - Informational Presentation by the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission and Planning Department on the City’s water supply planning process.
Preliminary Recommendation: None — Informational

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 24, 2019)

2015-006825CUA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)
367 HAMILTON AVENUE - between Burrows and Bacon Streets; Lot 022 of Assessor’s Block
5987 (District 9) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code
Sections 303 and 317 to allow demolition of an existing 950 square foot single-family home
and unauthorized dwelling unit and new construction of a three-story 3,115 square foot
single-family home with an Accessory Dwelling Unit on the ground floor per Ordinance 95-
17.The project site is located within a RH-1 (Residential, House — One Family) Zoning District
and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project
for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on September 12,2019)

2018-000468AHB (G. PANTOJA: (415) 575-8741)
3945 JUDAH STREET — between 44th and 45t Avenues; Lot 028 in Assessor’'s Block 1809
(District 15) — Request for a HOME-SF Project Authorization pursuant to Planning Code
Sections 328 for the demolition of an existing one-story commercial building, formerly
utilized for the operation of a gas station, and the construction of a new five-story over
basement, 55-foot, approximately 19, 160 square-foot mixed-use building containing a
total of 20 dwelling units (10 one-bedroom, 9 two-bedroom, and 1 three-bedroom), 2,440
square feet of commercial space, 7 off-street parking spaces, and 24 bicycle parking spaces
within a Neighborhood Commercial, Cluster (NC-1) and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The
proposal is pursuing a Tier-2 HOME-SF Project Authorization which permits a form-based
density, one additional story of height, and five additional feet at the ground floor in excess
of the height limit in exchange for providing 25% on-site affordable dwelling units.
Additionally, the proposal is pursuing a Zoning Modification from the rear yard requirement
pursuant to Planning Code Section 206.3. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the
project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section
31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2018-011430CUA (C. MAY: (415) 575-9087)
1776 GREEN STREET - north side of Green Street between Octavia and Gough Streets, Lot
006 in Assessor’s Block 0544 (District 2) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1 and 303 to permit a two-story vertical addition
and a change of use from an automobile repair garage to a residential building containing
five new residential units within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and
40-X Height and Bulk District. The Conditional Use Authorization request is to exceed the
principally permitted dwelling unit density limit for the respective zoning district. This
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17b.

18.

19.

20.

action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to
San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2018-011430VAR (C. MAY: (415) 575-9087)
1776 GREEN STREET - north side of Green Street between Octavia and Gough Streets, Lot
006 in Assessor’s Block 0544 (District 2) — Request for Variances from the front setback and
rear yard requirements of Planning Code Sections 132 and 134, respectively, to permit a
two-story vertical addition and a change of use from an automobile repair garage to a
residential building containing five new residential units within a RH-2 (Residential-House,
Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

2018-001485CUA (L. AJELLO: (415) 575-9142)
3360 SACRAMENTO STREET - north side of Sacramento Street between Walnut and Presidio
Streets; Lot 011 in Assessor's Block 1008 (District 2) - Request for Conditional Use
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 724 and 102 to legalize a “Trade
Office” use on the ground floor of a mixed-use building within the Sacramento Street NCD
(Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This
action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to
San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2017-013155CUA (L. AJELLO: (415) 575-9142)
230 KIRKHAM AVENUE — north side of Kirkham Street between 6th and 7th Avenues; Lot 026
in Assessor’s Block 1847 (District 5) — Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to
Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to demolish a two-story single-family dwelling and
construct a three-story two-family dwelling within a RH-2 (Residential, House, Two Family)
Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action
for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code
Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

2019-002758CUA (S. YOUNG: (415) 558-6346)
3501 GEARY BOULEVARD - southwest corner of Geary Boulevard and Stanyan Street; Lots
012-013 (formerly Lot 001B) in Assessor’s Block 1084 (District 1) — Request for Conditional
Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1,703.4 and 712 to establish
a Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. T-Mobile) in an approximately 1,866 square foot vacant ground
floor commercial space. The project site is located within a NC-3 (Moderate-Scale
Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action
constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San
Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR

The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff;
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project. Please be
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advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.

21.

22,

ADJOURNMENT

2018-003910DRP (R. SUCRE: (415) 575-9108)
3252 19™ STREET - located at northwest corner of 19t and Shotwell Streets; Lot 025 in
Assessor’s Block 3591 (District 9) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit
Application No. 2018.08.16.7612, to legalize a change in use of approximately 2,849 square
feet on the first floor and an associated mezzanine from automotive repair to amusement
game arcade/restaurant (dba. Redemption) within an existing two-story building in an UMU
(Urban Mixed-Use) Zoning District and 58-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes
the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve

2018-015288DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)
1130 POTRERO AVENUE — between 231 and 24th Streets.; Lot 007 in Assessor’s Block 4211
(District 9) — Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No.
2018.1105.5040, proposing a third -story vertical addition and a 1-story horizontal rear and
side addition to an existing 2-story, one-family house within a RH-3 (Residential House,
Three-Family) Zoning District and 55-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco
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

Case No. 2008.0586DVA / 2019-012970DVA: Academy of Art University, located at 43 properties owned or
leased by the Academy of Art University — On November 21,2019, the Planning Commission will hold a public
hearing to consider a Request for Approval of a Development Agreement between the City and County of
San Francisco and The Academy, including The Stephens Institute dba Academy of Art University and the LLC
Parties, for implementation of the Academy of Art Project, with various public benefits, including: (1) an
“Affordable Housing Benefit” defined as the cash payment by the LLC Parties of $37,600,000 to the City to be
used by the City solely for affordable housing purposes, with a first priority for uses related to the creation or
preservation of single room occupancy (SRO) units in those supervisorial districts in which the City alleges
the Academy unlawfully converted SRO buildings to student housing, as the City may determine in its sole
discretion; (2) a cash payment by the LLC Parties to the City’s Small Sites Fund estimated to exceed
$8,200,000; (3); an agreement by the Stephens Institute to meet all future housing needs for its students
through new construction on property that is zoned for such use, or conversion of existing non-residential,
non-PDR structures to student housing use, to not promise new students more housing units than the
number of lawful units that are at the disposal, to not temporarily house its students in non-Academy
facilities with limited exceptions, and to provide housing to increase the percentage of housing it provides
to On Campus Students pursuant to a “Housing Metering” formula agreed to by the Parties; (4) payment by
the LLC Parties of Planning Code penalties totaling $1,000,000 and reimbursement for enforcement costs in
the amount of $1,300,000; and (5) payment by the LLC Parties of Unfair Competition Law penalties totaling
$6,000,000. The Project contemplates that the Academy will withdraw from 9 existing sites, will occupy 3
new buildings, will legalize certain changes in use, where required, will legalize alterations previously made
without required permits, and obtain permits necessary to perform work to bring its buildings into
compliance with the Planning Code including, where applicable, Articles 10 and 11. The Project will result in
Academy uses at 34 properties. Also, the Academy will pay impact, fair share and in lieu fees of an estimated
$3,800,000. Those total payments are approximately $58,000,000. In addition, the Academy will pay permit
fees and the City’s administrative costs in connection with the processing of the Development Agreement.
The Development Agreement and accompanying legislation will confirm compliance with or waive certain
provisions of Administrative Code, Chapters 41 and 56, provide a limited exception to the density
requirements of Planning Code Section 209.3 for a single site and ratify certain actions taken in connection
therewith. Pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 56.4(c), the Director of Planning has
received and accepted a complete application for the amendment of the above-mentioned development
agreement which is available for review by the public at the Planning Department in Planning Department
Case File Nos. 2008.0586DVA and 2019-012970DVA.
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Hearing Procedures
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and
the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.
¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder sound

indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases (CU’s, PUD's, 309’s, etc...) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects,
engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing,
through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. Apresentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period

equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers. The intent of the 10 min block

of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized
opposition. The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to

represent their testimony, if granted. Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72

hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair. Such application should

identify the organization(s) and speakers.

Public testimony from proponents of the proposal: Anindividual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

Public testimony from opponents of the proposal: An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3)

minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by
the Chair;

11.  Amotion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue
to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

NV A

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present
constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Athorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4, A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers,
expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

Notice of Hearing & Agenda Page 1710f 13




http://www.sfplanning.org/



San Francisco Planning Commission Thursday, November 7, 2019

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise
exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under
Discretionary Review. A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.

Hearing Materials
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. All submission packages must be
delivered t01650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part
of the public record for any public hearing.

Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.

Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.

These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650
Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the
hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.

Appeals
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission

hearing.

Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body

Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals**
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit | CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Development

Building Permit Application (Discretionary | DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Review)

EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals
Large Project Authorization in Eastern | LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals
Neighborhoods

Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown | DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals
Residential Districts

Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors

* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the
date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission
hearing). Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an Office
Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.

For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.
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An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For
further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
at (415) 554-5184.

An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.

Challenges
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the

adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4)
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.

CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16. This
appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project. Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar
days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA. For information
on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,
Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184. If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project
to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at
http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising
only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors,
Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part
of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.

Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance
with Government Code Section 66020. The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must
be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee
or exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest
discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.

The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator's Variance Decision Letter will
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE SUCCESSFUL REHABILITATION OF 96
AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR SENIORS AND ADULTS WITH DISABILITIES

Date: Wednesday, October 30, 2019 11:32:01 AM

Attachments: 10.30.19 Ellis Gardens Reopening.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2019 11:26 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE SUCCESSFUL
REHABILITATION OF 96 AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR SENIORS AND ADULTS WITH DISABILITIES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 30, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE SUCCESSFUL
REHABILITATION OF 96 AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR
SENIORS AND ADULTS WITH DISABILITIES

Former public housing in the Tenderloin at 350 Ellis St. was renovated as part of the Rental
Assistance Demonstration program and is now called Ellis Gardens

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Matt Haney, and community
leaders today celebrated the grand reopening of 96 units of affordable housing at Ellis
Gardens, a former public housing property that was originally built in 1970. The building at
350 Ellis St. in the Tenderloin is one of 28 sites previously owned by the San Francisco
Housing Authority that were renovated under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD)
program through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The RAD
program allows for a voluntary, permanent conversion of public housing to privately owned,
permanently affordable housing.

“For too long, people living in public housing were left behind—and their homes were
allowed to fall into disrepair,” said Mayor Breed. “At Ellis Gardens, and in other RAD sites
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
leaders today celebrated the grand reopening of 96 units of affordable housing at Ellis Gardens, a
former public housing property that was originally built in 1970. The building at 350 Ellis St. in
the Tenderloin is one of 28 sites previously owned by the San Francisco Housing Authority that
were renovated under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The RAD program allows for a voluntary,
permanent conversion of public housing to privately owned, permanently affordable housing.

“For too long, people living in public housing were left behind—and their homes were allowed
to fall into disrepair,” said Mayor Breed. “At Ellis Gardens, and in other RAD sites across the
City, we’ve been able to improve the conditions of San Francisco’s public housing and keep our
most vulnerable residents in affordable housing in the neighborhood that they call home. Thanks
to the partnership of the Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation and GLIDE
Community Housing, we have 96 units of safe, beautiful, and permanently affordable housing
right here in the Tenderloin.”

Ellis Gardens is a 96-unit building that provides affordable housing for seniors and adults with
disabilities with incomes up to 50% of Area Median Income. This project is part of the City’s

commitment to preserving and revitalizing nearly 3,500 distressed public housing units across
San Francisco. To date, more than 3,200 apartments have been converted and renovated under
the RAD program. The remaining 300 units will be completed in 2020.

“The renovation and reopening of nearly 100 permanently affordable units in the Tenderloin is
an exciting and meaningful development for seniors and people with disabilities in this
community,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. “As a City we must do everything we can to preserve
and build affordable units, and 350 Ellis is a prime example of creative solutions to our housing
crisis.”

The substantial rehabilitation of Ellis Gardens focused on life safety and accessibility
improvements, including upgrades to create four apartments for visually and hearing impaired
households. Additional renovations included updating bathrooms and kitchens, installing new
flooring throughout the residential units, enlarging the community room and creating office
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spaces, elevator modernization, installing a new roof and sprinkler system, and replacing the
siding and windows.

“With the completion of crucial renovations at 350 Ellis we have transformed nearly every single
public housing project we set out to under the RAD program and will complete our efforts next
year,” said Daniel Adams, Acting Director of the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community
Development (MOHCD). “RAD has been integral in ensuring San Francisco remains a city for
all and I am thrilled the new Ellis Gardens allows seniors and people with disabilities to continue
to live in their homes with greater comfort and dignity.”

Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation and GLIDE Community Housing worked
together to complete the $67 million comprehensive rehabilitation funded with tax credit equity,
permanent mortgage and City funds. Ellis Gardens is located nearly adjacent to the GLIDE
Foundation. GLIDE Community Housing’s support services staff provide clients with benefit-
related assistance and referrals to ensure housing stability. GLIDE also hosts a variety of
community-building activities, knowledge-sharing, and ongoing residential case management.

“At TNDC we believe that when a person has a place to call home, they have the foundation for
a better life. The rehabilitation of Ellis Gardens created 96 newly-renovated homes with beautiful
indoor and outdoor community spaces for seniors and people with disabilities,” said Don Falk,
CEO of Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation. “Together with the SF Housing
Authority, Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development and other key partners, this
project represents the realization of a community’s vision for revitalizing public housing.”

Ellis Gardens also includes new garden space in the front and rear of the building, as well as a
mural, painted by Precita Eyes Muralists, honoring the Tenderloin’s legacy of African-American
jazz, the struggles for LGBTQ rights, local Asian culture, and the neighborhood’s low-income
residents. The late Michael Palmer, MOHCD’s construction lead on the Ellis Gardens
renovation, is memorialized in the mural in honor of his nearly 15 years of service to the City
and County of San Francisco.

“We at Glide Community Housing are honored to be providing Support Services to the residents
of Ellis Gardens. Support Services for these residents means an array of amenities including
better access to medical providers, improving their health and wellness, community activities,
educational trainings, and art therapy workshops,” said Pamela Grayson-Holmon, Executive
Director of GLIDE Community Housing Inc. “We also provide harm reduction focused intensive
case management services.”

“I love that Ellis Gardens is across the street from Boeddeker Park and feels like an extension of
the park now that the renovations are complete,” said Luis Castillo, a resident of Ellis Gardens.
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across the City, we’ve been able to improve the conditions of San Francisco’s public housing
and keep our most vulnerable residents in affordable housing in the neighborhood that they
call home. Thanks to the partnership of the Tenderloin Neighborhood Development
Corporation and GLIDE Community Housing, we have 96 units of safe, beautiful, and
permanently affordable housing right here in the Tenderloin.”

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
community,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. “As a City we must do everything we can to
preserve and build affordable units, and 350 Ellis is a prime example of creative solutions to
our housing crisis.”

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

“With the completion of crucial renovations at 350 Ellis we have transformed nearly every
single public housing project we set out to under the RAD program and will complete our
efforts next year,” said Daniel Adams, Acting Director of the Mayor’s Office of Housing and
Community Development (MOHCD). “RAD has been integral in ensuring San Francisco
remains a city for all and I am thrilled the new Ellis Gardens allows seniors and people with
disabilities to continue to live in their homes with greater comfort and dignity.”

Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation and GLIDE Community Housing worked
together to complete the $67 million comprehensive rehabilitation funded with tax credit
equity, permanent mortgage and City funds. Ellis Gardens is located nearly adjacent to the
GLIDE Foundation. GLIDE Community Housing’s support services staff provide clients with
benefit-related assistance and referrals to ensure housing stability. GLIDE also hosts a variety
of community-building activities, knowledge-sharing, and ongoing residential case
management.

“At TNDC we believe that when a person has a place to call home, they have the foundation
for a better life. The rehabilitation of Ellis Gardens created 96 newly-renovated homes with
beautiful indoor and outdoor community spaces for seniors and people with disabilities,” said
Don Falk, CEO of Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corporation. “Together with the
SF Housing Authority, Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development and other
key partners, this project represents the realization of a community’s vision for revitalizing
public housing.”

Ellis Gardens also includes new garden space in the front and rear of the building, as well as a
mural, painted by Precita Eyes Muralists, honoring the Tenderloin’s legacy of African-



American jazz, the struggles for LGBTQ rights, local Asian culture, and the neighborhood’s
low-income residents. The late Michael Palmer, MOHCD’s construction lead on the Ellis
Gardens renovation, is memorialized in the mural in honor of his nearly 15 years of service to
the City and County of San Francisco.

“We at Glide Community Housing are honored to be providing Support Services to the
residents of Ellis Gardens. Support Services for these residents means an array of amenities
including better access to medical providers, improving their health and wellness, community
activities, educational trainings, and art therapy workshops,” said Pamela Grayson-Holmon,
Executive Director of GLIDE Community Housing Inc. “We also provide harm reduction
focused intensive case management services.”

“I love that Ellis Gardens is across the street from Boeddeker Park and feels like an extension
of the park now that the renovations are complete,” said Luis Castillo, a resident of Ellis
Gardens.
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From:
To:

Cc:

Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

FW: Letter of support for the Planning Commission hearing
Monday, October 28, 2019 2:37:20 PM
Letter of support from Fromer& Sanchez 102419.docx

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

From: Amanda Alegado <aalegado@childrenscouncil.org>

Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2019 11:59 AM

To: Gina Fromer <ginafromer@gmail.com>; La Shon Walker <LaShon.A.Walker@fivepoint.com>;
lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Snyder, Mathew (CPC) <mathew.snyder@sfgov.org>;
Rogers-Pharr, Emily (PUC) <ERogersPharr@sfwater.org>

Subject: RE: Letter of support for the Planning Commission hearing

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted

sources.

Good morning all:

Attached is the signed letter from the Southeast Community Facility Commission, City and County of
San Francisco executed from the Chair and Vice Chair.

Warmest regards,
Amanda Alegado, EA to Gina Fromer

From: Gina Fromer <ginafromer@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2019 11:47 AM

To: La Shon Walker <LaShon.A.Walker@fivepoint.com>; Amanda Alegado
<aalegado@childrenscouncil.org>

Subject: Re: Letter of support for the Planning Commission hearing

We have the letter and amanda will be sending now.

Unanimous vote of approval. | may not be able to make the meeting this afternoon.
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Gina Fromer
Chair

Amerika Sanchez

Vice-Chair
Karen Chung
Commissioner
LaVaughn King
Commissioner
Susan Murphy
Commissioner
Falaofuta Satele
Commissioner
Marlene Tran
Commissioner

SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY FACILITY COMMISSION
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

London Nicole Breed, Mayor

Emily Rogers-Pharr
Executive Director

October 23, 2019

La Shon A. Walker

Director of Community Affairs
FivePoint

One Sansome Street, Suite 3200
San Francisco, CA 94104

RE: Candlestick Development
Dear Ms. Walker:

On behalf of the Southeast Community Facility Commission, we would like to thank you
for your informative presentation and update on Fivepoint’s plans to amend its
development concept for Candlestick Point and the surrounding area.

The Commission was impressed with FivePoint’s ongoing commitment to the creation of
jobs and affordable (including below market rate) housing. Moreover, FivePoint’s
willingness to be flexible by right-sizing the mix of retail and office space as a response
to the changing retail market is clever. We especially appreciate FivePoint’s inclusion of
the community voices through thoughtful dialogue. It is critical that as our community
continues to change, developers like FivePoint respect community as a valuable partner.

While the SEFC does not have jurisdiction over the Candlestick development, as
community stakeholders, stewards, leaders, and residents, we do have a vested interest in
the project’s success. We appreciate the FivePoint team being willing to share the project
details with us, answer our questions, and hear our feedback on ways to make the project
its best.

Therefore, we the members of the Southeast Facilities Commission have voted to provide
this letter of support for the Candlestick Point Development, as we believe it will be a
very important addition to our community.

Sincerely,
Gina Fromer mez 6
Chair Vice-Chair

1800 OAKDALE AVE, SUITE B, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94124 (415) 821-1534 FAX (415) 821-1627
www.sfgov.org/sefacility
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On Thu, Oct 24, 2019 at 10:27 AM La Shon Walker <LaShon.A.Walker@fivepoint.com> wrote:

Amanda, thank you for the conversation this morning. The letter of support should be
sent to the following people:

Jonas P. lonin — Planning Commission Secretary

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org

415.558.6309

Mat Snyder — Planner who is making the presentation to the Commission today.

mathew.snyder@sfgov.org

This email contains information that may be confidential and privileged. Unless you are the
addressee (or authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not examine, use, copy, disclose
or distribute to anyone the email or any information contained in the email. If you received this
email in error, please advise the sender by reply email and delete the original email. Thank you.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Why are we continuing to allow cold-blooded developers to weaponize the ADU?
Date: Monday, October 28, 2019 2:36:39 PM
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kfiaghdcfahbnphd.png
caeffcamnlielili.png
apilanfninohhiid.png
bbccikmlpapojcjg.png
helollbaccoapdna.pna
nbnmebbieeokbbia.png

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309;Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: ROGER DAWSON - CPOST <roger@cpost.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2019 12:46 PM

To: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Brown,
Vallie (BOS) <vallie.brown@sfgov.org>; Fewer, Sandra (BOS) <sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Haney, Matt (BOS)
<matt.haney@sfgov.org>; Mar, Gordon (BOS) <gordon.mar@sfgov.org>; Ronen, Hillary
<hillary.ronen@sfgov.org>; Safai, Ahsha (BOS) <ahsha.safai@sfgov.org>; Stefani, Catherine (BOS)
<catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Walton, Shamann (BOS) <shamann.walton@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman (BOS)
<norman.yee@sfgov.org>; Mandelman, Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>; Hepner, Lee (BOS)
<lee.hepner@sfgov.org>; Sider, Dan (CPC) <dan.sider@sfgov.org>; Conner, Kate (CPC) <kate.conner@sfgov.org>;
Kwiatkowska, Natalia (CPC) <natalia.kwiatkowska@sfgov.org>; Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC)
<marcelle.boudreaux@sfgov.org>; Sayed, Khaled M. (KGO-TV) <Khaled.M.Sayed@abc.com>; Smeallie, Kyle (BOS)
<kyle.smeallie@sfgov.org>; lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC)
<corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Temprano,
Tom (BOS) <tom.temprano@sfgov.org>; Jennifer Fieber <jennifer@sftu.org>; Renee Curran
<sfmeancat@yahoo.com>; Dan.Noyes@abc.com; KPIXNEWSASSIGN.EDITORS@CBS.COM;
KTVU2Investigates@foxtv.com; stories@nbcbayarea.com; breakingnews@kron4.com;
metrodesk@sfchronicle.com; acooper@sfchronicle.com; Breed, Mayor London (MYR)

<mayorlondonbreed @sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Horn, leffrey (CPC) <jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; Ozzie Rohm <ozzierohm@sbcglobal.net>;
Woodrow, Melanie <Melanie.Woodrow@abc.com>; Cityattorney <Cityattorney@sfcityatty.org>;
office@greensteinmcdonald.com; Roger Dawson <rogercpost@icloud.com>; pmatier@sfchronicle.com;
projecthome@cbs.com

Subject: Why are we continuing to allow cold-blooded developers to weaponize the ADU?

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear members of the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Mayor Breed and News Media,
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Mark E. Hyatt
MEH Pioneer LLC
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Why are we continuing to allow greedy cold-blooded developers to weaponize the ADU
and attack our low income rent controlled Senior Citizens?

Immediate action is needed now to reform the ADU and to give the Planning Commission the
authority to stop this madness.

The help of the Board of Supervisors is desperately needed immediately. There is an existential threat right now to
the well being of thousands of us renters in our city brought about by rampant speculation aggravated by Wiener's
ill conceived ADU.

With an attitude of "we are far superior to the people we rent to", greedy Landlord Supremacists are abusing
renters, treating them like cattle in a pen and arrogantly destroying the harmony of our city. | have never seen
behavior this abhorrent in my 60+ years of living here. Landlords here in San Francisco have a virtual monopoly
(via collusion) on the housing market and they relish and abuse the power it gives them. When did it become OK
to allow landlords to disrespect renters so blatantly? Honestly, if we were living at the zoo we'd be better
protected and such abuse and harassment would result in arrests. Even one of the Planning Commissioners, at a
meeting | attended in March, expressed her anxiety at being a renter here in SF and living with the threat of
eviction, another expressed relief that he was able to buy a house.

Three actions should immediately be implemented to restore San Francisco to a peaceful, respectful place for
renters to live.

1. Give the Planning Commission the necessary and immediate authority that they can consider the well-being
of tenants as the most important factor in approving or disapproving ADU projects here in the city.



2. Add protections to the ADU for current residents of rent controlled buildings:

No amenities relied upon by existing residents shall be infringed for the purpose of adding additional units to
include: access, parking, laundry and storage. Additional units shall be properly insulated for sound to
minimize disturbing adjacent units. Construction of additional units shall respect the current residents and not
disrupt their access, parking or other amenities. Residents shall be protected from the noise, vibration and
dust of demolition & construction. Construction shall be completed within a reasonable length of time.

3. Put a stop to Landlord Supremacist's abuse of renters by instituting a $250,000 fine for any landlord caught
harassing tenants, not responding to their needs in a timely manner or otherwise negatively affecting the
quality of their life at their residence. We need to change their attitude from one of arrogance to one of
walking on eggshells in consideration of their tenant's well being.

A law like #3 would change the landscape to one of landlords who truly care about their tenants. All three actions
would give thousands peace of mind and tranquility at home here in The City.

| was one of the first whistle-blowers (a year ago) to bring ADU abuse to the attention of the Supervisors and later
the Planning Commission at a hearing on 3/14/19.

BILL 50 PLANNING AND ZONING HD'.IH : .‘rl

SE|
DEVELOPMENT EQUITABLE COMMUNITIES

As a senior citizen with disabilities and on a fixed income, my rent controlled apartment at 801 Corbett Ave. on
Twin Peaks has been my home and my sanctuary for 12 years.



It allows me to live my life in quiet peace, manage my pain and maintain my mobility and independence. If
an ADU were allowed in the garage, not only would it take away access to my car so badly needed for my
health issues, but the construction noise will be intolerable for me and my fellow residents who live directly
on top of the garage. This building has very thin floors and the concrete garage is an echo chamber that
will be excruciating if there is continuous construction for two years. I would not be able to tolerate 2
years of extreme noise/shock/vibration. It would surely be my death sentence as the stress would give
me a heart attack. Noise is a health factor which is just as deadly as pollution, carcinogens and
cholesterol.

Because of this and my efforts to prevent the disruption of the lives at my building, | have faced constant
retaliation by new owner/speculator Mark Hyatt (aka: MEH Pioneer, LLC) and Joe Peters his ADU developer.

|
E

Honeybee Hyatt slides info her chauffeured Cadillac Escalade,
giddy for a night on the town

Mark E. Hyatt
MEH Pioneer LLC

No Image Found

Joe Peters ‘
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Wealthy Newport Beach (registered Republican) Mark E. Hyatt (aka MEH Pioneer, LLC) is extremely
secretive and there are no images of him anywhere. However, his wife "Honeybee" (yes, her real name)
loves flaunting their wealth (and CO2 emissions) for the news in Orange County. Mr. Hyatt has never
returned any of the dozens of calls made and emails I have sent to him regarding harassment by his



developer Joe Peters, neglected building maintenance issues, or even flooding emergencies. Not even a
response regarding a large water damage hole in the fire sprinkler section of our garage ceiling that hasn't
been repaired in over 10 months now.

This is very alarming to us all since Mark Hyatt's other building in Redwood City turned into a tragic
inferno:

The San Mateo County Times - 2013

The six-alarm fire in the 72-unit Hallmark House Apartments at 531 Woodside Road displaced 97
residents and Killed one tenant — 48-year-old Darin Michael Demello-Pine. About 20 people,
including three firefighters, were injured as a result of the fire, first reported around 2 a.m. on July
7. A lawsuit, filed in San Mateo County Superior Court on behalf of Jorge and Juanita Chavez,
states that Hallmark House residents “suffered displacement, fear, emotional trauma, and the loss of
most of their life’s possessions” because of the fire. The building’s owner, KDF Hallmark LP, is to
blame for the way the fire spread, according to the lawsuit, because it failed to “properly inspect,
maintain and safeguard the property from a foreseeable unit fire.” KDF founder Mark Hyatt said in
a phone interview that he can’t comment on the pending legal action.

Because of my outspoken opposition to the ADU plans that they have here, I have been the victim of an
ever increasing amount of harassment by Joe Peters, the developer hired by Mark Hyatt. Joe Peters moved
here from NY and has now made it his full time activity to exploit the ADU law for the quick enrichment
of out of town speculators. Developer Joe Peters is the worst human being I've ever encountered in my
entire life. I have been the victim of an ongoing campaign of abuse that has left me (a senior citizen with
disabilities) terrified and a nervous wreck.



* He has followed me with a camera taking pictures of me and then sends me printouts letting me know he
is "watching" me. Intentionally inflicting emotional distress upon me.

——

* He has come to the building late at night knocking on my door, waking me up and taunting me. I have
had to call the police to escort him off the property. An intentional infliction of emotional distress upon
me.

* In collusion with the owner Mark Hyatt they have conspired to isolate me by having the organization not
respond to my requests. When I confronted him about this he just looked at me with a sickly smile and
(almost proudly) acknowledged that no one is going to talk or respond to me. My requests go unanswered
and the building continues to deteriorate. Again, intentionally inflicting emotional distress upon me.

* Despite my emotional pleading with him, he deliberately removed the security system protecting our cars
in the garage. It had been keeping us safe for years preventing burglaries and even helping the police catch
some really nasty gang suspects that were doing crime all over the city. As soon as he tore it down we had a
rash of burglaries in the garage and no more protection for our vehicles. Again, intentionally inflicting
emotional distress upon me and the other tenants.

* He has repeatedly threatened me with eviction in an arrogant and abusive manner. He takes every
opportunity to remind me of the eviction power he thinks he has because of his relationship with the
owner. Again, intentionally inflicting emotional distress upon me.

I believe he is doing all this because he perceives me as being old and perhaps easily intimidated. He is
attacking those of us who are most vulnerable. Is this Elder Abuse? Someone needs to investigate this.
As I get ready to mail my $1900 rent, it sickens me that my own money is being used against me, to pay
Joe Peters to harass me, maybe to make donations to Trump and to put gas into Mr. Hyatt's enormous,
hideous, CO2 belching Cadillac Escalade.

I believe these people have but one priority: to stuff the building's garage with an extra unit or two and then



flip it for what they hope will be a big profit. I don't think they give a rat's a$$ about the housing situation
here in Our City because I have never seen the building with so many vacant units since they took over.
That is the problem that the ADU has created and it must be addressed and these people must be stopped
before their actions further erode my health and well being as well as negatively affecting the 30 other
tenants who live here.

Something must be done by those of you on the Board of Supervisors and at the Planning Commission so
that when this Joe Peters files for an ADU permit representing MEH Pioneer, LLC (aka Mark E. Hyatt) it
can be rejected for its substantial negative impact on those of us who call 801 Corbett Ave. home.

Sincerely,

Roger Dawson

801 Corbett, # 15

San Francisco, CA 94131

Cell: (650) 218-5431

This email has been checked for viruses by AVG antivirus software.
WWw.avg.com
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: Pantoja, Gabriela (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Support for 3945 Judah

Date: Monday, October 28, 2019 12:16:22 PM

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

From: Jane Natoli <wafoli@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, October 27, 2019 8:00 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for 3945 Judah

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hello,

My name is Jane Natoli, a resident of the Westside, and I'm writing to show my support for 3945
Judah Street. It's rare to see opportunities like this on the Westside, but it's exciting to see a
thoughtful proposal for 20 new homes replacing a gas station and providing 25% affordable while
utilizing HOME-SF. | hope you will move to expeditiously approve this on November 7th so we can
provide more examples of great thoughtful additions to our western neighborhoods for current and
future San Franciscans.

Thanks!
Jane
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ISSUES PROCLAMATION DECLARING A LOCAL
EMERGENCY TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY SHELTER FOR KINCADE FIRE EVACUEES

Date: Monday, October 28, 2019 11:08:38 AM

Attachments: 10.27.19 Declaration of Local Emergency.pdf

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

Sent: Sunday, October 27, 2019 8:29 PM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ISSUES PROCLAMATION DECLARING A
LOCAL EMERGENCY TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY SHELTER FOR KINCADE FIRE EVACUEES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Sunday, October 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ISSUES PROCLAMATION
DECLARING A LOCAL EMERGENCY TO PROVIDE
EMERGENCY SHELTER FOR KINCADE FIRE EVACUEES

With nearly 200,000 people evacuated as a result of the fire, San Francisco will open a
temporary disaster shelter to assist people who have been displaced

San Francisco, CA — This evening, Mayor London Breed issued a proclamation declaring a
local emergency to provide mutual aid in response to the Kincade Fire in Sonoma County. The
fire has burned more than 30,000 acres to date, leading to the evacuation of almost 200,000
people and threatening hundreds of structures. Due to the Kincade Fire, Governor Newsom
declared a state of emergency on October 25. As of today, there are over 3,000 local, state and
federal personnel, including first responders, assisting with the Kincade Fire alone.

In light of the unprecedented number of evacuees, San Francisco will open a temporary
disaster shelter to assist those who have been displaced. The shelter will be located at
Cathedral of Saint Mary of the Assumption (St. Mary’s Cathedral) at 1111 Gough Street and
will be open at 8:00am tomorrow, October 28, 2019. The temporary shelter is scheduled
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LONDON N. BREED
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

In light of the unprecedented number of evacuees, San Francisco will open a temporary disaster
shelter to assist those who have been displaced. The shelter will be located at Cathedral of Saint
Mary of the Assumption (St. Mary’s Cathedral) at 1111 Gough Street and will be open at 8:00am
tomorrow, October 28, 2019. The temporary shelter is scheduled through Friday to support the
statewide shelter system as necessary.

“San Francisco stands with our neighbors to the north and is ready to help in every way we can,”
said Mayor Breed. “Our City departments are working in unison to provide shelter and care to
those who have been displaced, while first responders continue to fight the fire in Sonoma
County.”

The Human Services Agency is working with the American Red Cross to provide shelter for 200
people at St. Mary’s Cathedral. The shelter will be open to serve adults, families, and pets. No
proof of documentation is necessary, and all evacuees seeking safe shelter are welcome.

The Department of Public Health will have a team on site to assess the medical and mental
health needs of the evacuees. The City is also looking into opening additional locations to shelter
evacuees. This shelter will not have any impact on City services.

The proclamation allows the Mayor to deploy resources to respond to emergencies. It must be
ratified by the Board of Supervisors within seven days.

The best way to support disaster victims is with a financial donation. Food, clothing and
household items are not being accepted at this time. For more information, visit
https://socoemergency.org/home/recover/how-to-help/.

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

For media inquiries to the San Francisco Emergency Operation Center call 415-558-2712.
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141






through Friday to support the statewide shelter system as necessary.

“San Francisco stands with our neighbors to the north and is ready to help in every way we
can,” said Mayor Breed. “Our City departments are working in unison to provide shelter and
care to those who have been displaced, while first responders continue to fight the fire in
Sonoma County.”

The Human Services Agency is working with the American Red Cross to provide shelter for
200 people at St. Mary’s Cathedral. The shelter will be open to serve adults, families, and pets.
No proof of documentation is necessary, and all evacuees seeking safe shelter are welcome.

The Department of Public Health will have a team on site to assess the medical and mental
health needs of the evacuees. The City is also looking into opening additional locations to
shelter evacuees. This shelter will not have any impact on City services.

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

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC); Flores, Veronica (CPC)
Subject: FW: 65 Ocean Ave. development

Date: Monday, October 28, 2019 11:06:17 AM
Attachments: 65 Ocean Ave. LOS.pdf

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

From: Theresa Imperial <theresa@bishopsf.org>

Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2019 2:30 PM

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

Cc: lonin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: 65 Ocean Ave. development

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Hello,

Attached is BiSHoP's letter re: 65 Ocean Ave. development. We urge to vote NO on this
development.

Thank you.

Theresa Imperial
Bill Sorro Housing Program
Executive Director

Ph: 415-513-5177 Ext. 402
Fax: 1-833-200-6025

Bill Sorro Housing Program
1360 Mission Street #400,


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:Veronica.Flores@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

1360 Mission Street #400
* San Francisco, CA 94103
] Phone: 415-513-5177
7] Email: info@bishopsf.org
BILL SORRO HOUSING PROGRAM

October 24, 2019

RE: 65 Ocean Avenue

Dear Planning Commissioners:

On behalf of Bill Sorro Housing Program (BiSHoP), we urge you to vote NO on 65
Ocean Avenue development. BiSHoP is an organization that provides access to
affordable housing through housing case management, application assistance, housing
education and advocacy.

D11 is the second largest clientele that BiSHoP receives who are looking for affordable
housing citywide. The average annual income of BiSHoP's clientele from D11 is
$30,000 who are primarily seniors, or senior-lead households. Many of these residents
are facing various kinds of displacements or evictions. From our data, many of them
lives in illegal units facing demolition, habitability issues, overcrowding and in some
cases, unconventional housing arrangements. We also encounter D11 residents who
are currently resides in single family homes where tenants are facing buy-outs as
original homeowners opt to sell their homes or raise rents beyond the tenants can
afford. Typically, there are limited tenant protections in these kind of housings.

Although the developer will provide 25% of inclusionary units than required by
Inclusionary Housing legislation, the units provided are at 55% AMI, 80% AMI and
110% AMI. The AMIs provided for this particular development does not match what
community needs. D11 needs truly deeply 100% affordable housing.

We urge to vote on behalf of the community and to ensure that developments that are
built mirrors the community it will serve.

Sincerely,

/, AN =
-~ Theresa Iphperial
Executive Director






San Francisco, CA 94103
*** This office is a scent-free space; to avoid getting others sick, please refrain from using perfume/cologne, dryer
sheets, or other products with fragrances. Thank you! ***

www.bishopsf.org
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED HOSTS JOB FAIR FOR RESIDENTS IN VISITACION
VALLEY

Date: Monday, October 28, 2019 11:00:56 AM

Attachments: 10.25.19 Visitacion Valley Job Fair.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, October 25, 2019 9:59 AM

To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED HOSTS JOB FAIR FOR RESIDENTS IN
VISITACION VALLEY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, October 25, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

#%+* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED HOSTS JOB FAIR FOR
RESIDENTS IN VISITACION VALLEY

Visitacion Valley has one of the highest rates of unemployed residents in San Francisco, over
60% higher than the citywide average

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development (OEWD), and Family and Child Empowerment Services San Francisco (FACES
SF) will host a job fair and hiring event today in Visitacion Valley to bring employment
opportunities and resources to a neighborhood with one of the highest unemployment rates in
the City. The Visitacion Valley Job Fair and Hiring Event takes place today from 10:00am
until 2:00pm at The Village located at 1099 Sunnydale Avenue.

“Even as San Francisco is experiencing a record low unemployment rate, there are still people
looking for jobs and careers, especially in neighborhoods that have been underserved as the
rest of our City prospered,” said Mayor Breed. “This job fair in Visitacion Valley is part of our
efforts to make San Francisco a more equitable city and to ensure that all residents have access
to employment opportunities—regardless of their background or where they live. We want to
connect people with potential employers, and by bringing the fair to their neighborhood we
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
MAYOR LONDON BREED HOSTS JOB FAIR FOR RESIDENTS
IN VISITACION VALLEY

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
opportunities and resources to a neighborhood with one of the highest unemployment rates in the
City. The Visitacion Valley Job Fair and Hiring Event takes place today from 10:00am until
2:00pm at The Village located at 1099 Sunnydale Avenue.

“Even as San Francisco is experiencing a record low unemployment rate, there are still people
looking for jobs and careers, especially in neighborhoods that have been underserved as the rest
of our City prospered,” said Mayor Breed. “This job fair in Visitacion Valley is part of our
efforts to make San Francisco a more equitable city and to ensure that all residents have access to
employment opportunities—regardless of their background or where they live. We want to
connect people with potential employers, and by bringing the fair to their neighborhood we hope
to reach people who otherwise might not know about the employment and training resources that
are available to them.”

Data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American Community Survey shows that Visitacion Valley,
which includes the Sunnydale public housing community, has one of the highest unemployment
rates in the City—60% more than the citywide average. This high rate of unemployment
illustrates stark employment disparities for the City, as more than 90% of Visitacion Valley
residents are people of color. Asian American residents make up the greatest number of people
who are unemployed in the neighborhood, and the rate of unemployment for Visitacion Valley’s
African American residents is five times that of the City average.

“As we push for more local hiring, not only in construction but in healthcare, hospitality and the
tech industry, we need to continue to bring these opportunities to our most vulnerable residents,”
said Supervisor Shamann Walton. “This is one of many ways we are looking to close the
economic wealth gap in our great city. I’m happy to stand with the Mayor as she continues to
support the residents of District 10 and the city of San Francisco by connecting them to
employers.”

Over twenty employers are participating in the hiring fair, and some companies, such as Artisan
Restaurant Collection, Target, Safeway, SPIN, and Amazon, are interviewing candidates on the
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spot in preparation for an increased demand for workers during the holiday season. The City and
County of San Francisco and other agencies will also be hiring for long-term positions in a
variety of industries. Job seekers will have the chance to connect to resources and talk with
employers, non-profit service providers, and city agencies. The Department of Human Resources
will offer a workshop to teach residents about how to navigate the job application process for
openings with the City. The Public Defender’s Office will be on site to discuss their Clean Slate
Program, which is designed to help people secure employment after being involved in the
criminal justice system by dismissing convictions, sealing arrest records, obtaining a certificate
of rehabilitation, ending probation early, and reducing a felony to a misdemeanor.

After Chinatown, Visitacion Valley has the greatest concentration of limited-English proficient
(LEP) speakers in San Francisco, including the second-highest concentration of LEP Chinese
speakers. Interpreters will provide translation services throughout the job fair for non-English
and limited English speakers.

“Housing and job resources are crucial for keeping residents in the City. With one of the lowest
median household incomes in San Francisco, Visitacion Valley is a neighborhood that needs
more resources to help connect residents to jobs and on a path towards upward mobility,” said
Joshua Arce, Director of Workforce at the Office of Economic and Workforce Development.
“When we go directly into the neighborhood, we are making sure our residents are aware of the
opportunities and resources available to them.”

This job fair is part of Mayor Breed’s efforts to reach underserved neighborhoods and
communities. The first Job Fair was held in December 2018 at the Fillmore Heritage Center, and
the most recent job fair was held in August 2019 specifically for older adults and people with
disabilities. In September, Mayor Breed celebrated the grand opening of a Job Center in the
Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside neighborhoods, which will provide comprehensive
services for jobseekers and employers.

“We are excited to have the job fair at our Job Center here in Visitacion Valley,” said FACES SF
Executive Director Lawland Long. “It’s important for the needs to be met on this side of town
where we have so many limited English speakers and public housing residents. We can’t say we
are serving our communities if we aren’t serving all of our communities.”

“Right now I work full time, but sometimes it feels like it’s not enough,” said Amy Fung,
Visitacion Valley resident. “Having a job fair where | can talk to employers and City
departments about my future goals, interview, and work with the Department of Human
Resources to help me apply for my next job is really helpful. I already have the skills; I just need
some advice and someone to give me a chance.”

Earlier this year, Mayor Breed introduced her proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and
2020-21 in Sunnydale. The finalized City budget included over $146 million in new funding for
the production and preservation of affordable housing. Just last month, Mayor Breed celebrated
the groundbreaking of 167 new permanently affordable homes in the Sunnydale neighborhood—
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part of the Mayor’s HOPE SF initiative with financing from the San Francisco Mayor’s Office of
Housing and Community Development, San Francisco Housing Authority and Wells Fargo.

About the Office of Economic and Workforce Development

The Office of Economic and Workforce Development advances equitable and shared prosperity
for San Franciscans by growing sustainable jobs, supporting businesses of all sizes, creating
great places to live and work, and helping everyone achieve economic self-sufficiency. For more
information, please visit www.oewd.org.

About FACES SF

Family and Child Empowerment Services San Francisco, FACES SF, is a community-based
organization that provides critical assistance to low-income families citywide, with a focus in the
Haight Ashbury, Western Addition, Visitacion Valley, and Bayview Hunters Point
neighborhoods in the following areas: early childhood development, workforce training, school-
age enrichment programs, and family support services. For more information, please visit
www.facessf.org.

HiH
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hope to reach people who otherwise might not know about the employment and training
resources that are available to them.”

Data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American Community Survey shows that Visitacion
Valley, which includes the Sunnydale public housing community, has one of the highest
unemployment rates in the City—60% more than the citywide average. This high rate of
unemployment illustrates stark employment disparities for the City, as more than 90% of
Visitacion Valley residents are people of color. Asian American residents make up the greatest
number of people who are unemployed in the neighborhood, and the rate of unemployment for
Visitacion Valley’s African American residents is five times that of the City average.

“As we push for more local hiring, not only in construction but in healthcare, hospitality and
the tech industry, we need to continue to bring these opportunities to our most vulnerable
residents,” said Supervisor Shamann Walton. “This is one of many ways we are looking to
close the economic wealth gap in our great city. I’'m happy to stand with the Mayor as she
continues to support the residents of District 10 and the city of San Francisco by connecting
them to employers.”

Over twenty employers are participating in the hiring fair, and some companies, such as
Artisan Restaurant Collection, Target, Safeway, SPIN, and Amazon, are interviewing
candidates on the spot in preparation for an increased demand for workers during the holiday
season. The City and County of San Francisco and other agencies will also be hiring for long-
term positions in a variety of industries. Job seekers will have the chance to connect to
resources and talk with employers, non-profit service providers, and city agencies. The
Department of Human Resources will offer a workshop to teach residents about how to
navigate the job application process for openings with the City. The Public Defender’s Office
will be on site to discuss their Clean Slate Program, which is designed to help people secure
employment after being involved in the criminal justice system by dismissing convictions,
sealing arrest records, obtaining a certificate of rehabilitation, ending probation early, and
reducing a felony to a misdemeanor.

After Chinatown, Visitacion Valley has the greatest concentration of limited-English
proficient (LEP) speakers in San Francisco, including the second-highest concentration of LEP
Chinese speakers. Interpreters will provide translation services throughout the job fair for non-
English and limited English speakers.

“Housing and job resources are crucial for keeping residents in the City. With one of the
lowest median household incomes in San Francisco, Visitacion Valley is a neighborhood that
needs more resources to help connect residents to jobs and on a path towards upward
mobility,” said Joshua Arce, Director of Workforce at the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development. “When we go directly into the neighborhood, we are making sure our residents
are aware of the opportunities and resources available to them.”

This job fair is part of Mayor Breed’s efforts to reach underserved neighborhoods and
communities. The first Job Fair was held in December 2018 at the Fillmore Heritage Center,
and the most recent job fair was held in August 2019 specifically for older adults and people
with disabilities. In September, Mayor Breed celebrated the grand opening of a Job Center in
the Oceanview, Merced Heights, and Ingleside neighborhoods, which will provide
comprehensive services for jobseekers and employers.



“We are excited to have the job fair at our Job Center here in Visitacion Valley,” said FACES
SF Executive Director Lawland Long. “It’s important for the needs to be met on this side of
town where we have so many limited English speakers and public housing residents. We can’t
say we are serving our communities if we aren’t serving all of our communities.”

“Right now I work full time, but sometimes it feels like it’s not enough,” said Amy Fung,
Visitacion Valley resident. “Having a job fair where I can talk to employers and City
departments about my future goals, interview, and work with the Department of Human
Resources to help me apply for my next job is really helpful. I already have the skills; I just
need some advice and someone to give me a chance.”

Earlier this year, Mayor Breed introduced her proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and
2020-21 in Sunnydale. The finalized City budget included over $146 million in new funding
for the production and preservation of affordable housing. Just last month, Mayor Breed
celebrated the groundbreaking of 167 new permanently affordable homes in the Sunnydale
neighborhood—part of the Mayor’s HOPE SF initiative with financing from the San Francisco
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, San Francisco Housing Authority
and Wells Fargo.

About the Office of Economic and Workforce Development

The Office of Economic and Workforce Development advances equitable and shared
prosperity for San Franciscans by growing sustainable jobs, supporting businesses of all sizes,
creating great places to live and work, and helping everyone achieve economic self-
sufficiency. For more information, please visit www.oewd.org.

About FACES SF

Family and Child Empowerment Services San Francisco, FACES SF, is a community-based
organization that provides critical assistance to low-income families citywide, with a focus in
the Haight Ashbury, Western Addition, Visitacion Valley, and Bayview Hunters Point
neighborhoods in the following areas: early childhood development, workforce training,
school-age enrichment programs, and family support services. For more information, please

visit www.facessf.org.
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From: Silva, Christine (CPC)

To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);
Melgar, Myrna (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN
(CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT)

Subject: CPC Calendars for October 31 - Cancelled

Date: Friday, October 25, 2019 3:14:06 PM

Attachments: Advance Calendar - 20191031.xlIsx

20191031 can.pdf
20191031 can.docx

Commissioners,

Please see attached calendars for October 31°t which has been cancelled. The Hearing Results doc
from yesterday’s hearing is forthcoming.

Happy Halloween!

Christine Silva
EPR Project Lead
Permit Center Team

Senior Planner, Manager of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9085 | www.sfplanning.org
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



				October 24, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Melgar - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

				Prop M				to: 11/21		Teague

						Office Allocation

		2018-012392CUA		37 Saturn Street				to: 11/21		Horn

						Corona Heights SUD

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St. 				fr: 4/11; 5/23; 6/27; 10/10		Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels		to: Indefinite

		2019-001568CUA		101 Bay Shore Boulevard 				fr: 8/29		Liang

						Convenience store (d.b.a. Extra Mile) that sells beer and wine in an existing gas station.  		Withdrawn

		2018-010555CUA		2412 Clay Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Macro wireless facilities

		2019-017266PCA		Medical Cannabis Dispensary Permits and Temporary Cannabis Business Permits						Starr

						One-Year Extension 

		2014.1063DNX		633 Folsom Street 						Tran

						Public Art Informational

		2016-006860AHBENVIKA		65 Ocean Av						Flores

						HOME-SF, PMND, and In-Kind Agreement

				Water Supply 						Kern

						Informational

		2007.0946CWP-03		Candlestick Point						Snyder

						Design-for-Development Amendments

		2017-000655CUA 		458 Grove St						Tran

						Informational

		2018-011004CUA		146 Geary St						Tran

						change of use from retail to office at upper floors 

		2017-014849CUA		220 Post Street				fr: 8/29		Vimr

						Change of Use from Retail to Office on Floors 3-5

		2018-013158CUA		2956 24th Street						Jardines

						limited restaurant to full-service restaurant 

		2018-011717CUA 		1369 Sanchez Street						Cisneros

						Demo per PC Section 317

		2019-012253DRP		463 CASTRO ST				fr: 10/3		Campbell

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-009551DRPVAR		3847-3849 18TH ST				fr: 5/9; 7/18; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 31, 2019 - CANCELED

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

		2018-009548CUA		427 Baden St						Pantoja

						a lot line adjustment and construction of a new SFH

		2018-011430CUAVAR		1776 Green St						May

						TBD

		2018-007267OFA		865 Market Street 						Vimr

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

		2019-004377DRP		1301-1311 40th Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 21, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Moore - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

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

				December 5, 2019

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
PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE
OF
CANCELLATION

Thursday,
October 31, 2019

Regular Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thursday, October 31, 2019 San Francisco Planning Commission Regular
Meeting has been canceled. The next Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission is scheduled for
Thursday, November 7, 2019.

Commissioners:

Myrna Melgar, President
Joel Koppel, Vice President
Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson,
Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards

Commission Secretary:
Jonas P. lonin

Hearing Materials are available at:
Website: http://www.sfplanning.org
Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4t Floor, Suite 400
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
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Please see attached.

Aaron Starr, MA
Manager of Legislative Affairs

Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6362 Fax: 415-558-6409

Email: aaron.starr@sfgov.org

Web: www.sfplanning.or
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Summary of Board Activities
October 21-25, 2019

Planning Commission Report: October 24, 2019

Land Use Committee

190839 Planning Code - Fulton Street Grocery Store Special Use District. Sponsor: Brown. Staff:
V. Flores.
First on the land use agenda was Supervisor Brown’s ordinance that would permit a Formula
Retail Grocery Store at 555 Fulton Street with Conditional Use Authorization. The Planning
Commission heard this item last week on October 17th and recommended approval with
modifications. Those modifications included:

1. Removing the periodic reporting requirement;

2. Removing the sunset clause;

3. Clerical amendments (lot and Board File No. references)

There was no public comment at land use. During the hearing, Chair Peskin expressed concern
about language in the Ordinance regarding non-Formula Retail grocery stores being less
affordable. He also questioned the reason the sunset provision was being removed from the
ordinance, adding it was another tool the city could use to ensure compliance. Staff clarified that if
the operator is not in compliance, the Planning Commission can revoke their CU authorization.
Further, any future tenants would have to comply with original conditions of approval, regardless
of the inclusion of a sunset clause. Staff also explained that the recommendation to remove the
sunset provision was to allow future tenants should Trader Joes leave, without the City having to
pass another ordinance.

In the end, the Committee moved to approve the Ordinance with all the recommendations
except the recommendation to remove the sunset clause. Additionally, the language regarding
how non-Formula Retail grocery stores are not as affordable was removed. | would note, however

that the affordability claim was in the Controller’s study on Formula Retail done in 2014.

190844 Planning Code, Zoning Map - 3333 California Street Special Use District. Sponsor:
Stefani. Staff: Foster. ltem 4
190845 Development Agreement - Laurel Heights Partners, LLC - 3333 California Street Project -

California Street at Presidio Avenue. Sponsor: Stefani. Staff: Foster. ltem 5

Next, the land use committee considered the legislative changes and Development Agreement
for the project at 3333 California Street. This is a mixed-use project with 744 dwelling units 25%

of which would be affordable; about 35k sq. ft. of retail; and a 15k sq. ft. child care. The Planning



https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4077301&GUID=60F045FE-1981-4ABA-8200-9E83A05DD835

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4077301&GUID=60F045FE-1981-4ABA-8200-9E83A05DD835

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4077306&GUID=0E9822B7-059F-44DC-BF19-937BB8CBC46B

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4077306&GUID=0E9822B7-059F-44DC-BF19-937BB8CBC46B

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4077307&GUID=55716B46-F3FC-49B3-96C1-774C7C2E5F52

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4077307&GUID=55716B46-F3FC-49B3-96C1-774C7C2E5F52
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Commission heard the item on September 5 and voted to certify the EIR and approve the

project’s various entitlements and legislative changes.

During the land use hearing, the public expressed concern about the number of trees being
removed at the Project Site; the type of retail uses permitted (specifically flexible retail); and the
permitted hours of operation. Opponents of proposed project supported the “community

alternative” endorsed by the Laurel Heights Improvement Association.

Supervisor Peskin asked if parking for the 100% affordable building could be reduced to .5 ratio
(from 1:1), which the project Sponsor agreed to do. Supervisor Stefani made minor modifications
to planning code text amendments, namely a reduction in a few permitted uses within the NC-S
controls, plus a reduction of principally permitted hours or operation, reducing that from 2 a.m. to

12 a.m.

In the end the committee forwarded the items to full BoS without recommendation due to pending

appeals.

190548 Planning Code - Jobs Housing Linkage Fee and Inclusionary Housing. Sponsors: Haney;
Fewer, Ronen, Mar, Peskin, Walton and Yee. Staff: D. Sanchez. Item 6

190989 Hearing - Budget and Legislative Analyst Report - Jobs-Housing Fit. Sponsor: Mar. Staff:
Switzky.

Last on the land use agenda, the Committee considered both the Jobs Housing Linkage Fee and
the Jobs Housing Fit Report at the same time. You'll recall that the Planning Commission heard

the Jobs Housing Balance ordinance on September 19 and voted to recommend approval.

The Jobs-Housing Fit report was prepared by The Budget & Legislative Analyst office and was
published on October 16. The report was done at the request of Supervisor Gordon Mar. The
report looks at both actual and projected job growth and compares that to actual and projected
housing production in terms of the wage levels of the jobs and the affordability levels of the

housing.

Not surprisingly, the report concluded that there has been insufficient construction of BMR
housing as measured by the growth of lower wage jobs. The report did not make any policy
recommendations about how the City could or should increase production of BMR units. It did

however include two non-policy recommendations:



https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3950583&GUID=E416740A-B76F-49B6-BD44-EAB578E96A40

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3950583&GUID=E416740A-B76F-49B6-BD44-EAB578E96A40

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4148410&GUID=A4C282D9-A35D-4D8F-88DB-A0C69B4E588F

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4148410&GUID=A4C282D9-A35D-4D8F-88DB-A0C69B4E588F
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1. That the BoS could request Planning to prepare an annual report comparing actual and
projected job and housing growth by income. At the hearing Supervisor Mar indicated his
intention to introduce legislation to do exactly that.

2. That the BoS could request MOHCD to more closely track the use of JHL fee revenues to

construct affordable housing and report annually to the BoS.

The report was presented as a prelude to the Jobs Housing Linkage Fee hearing, which is why
the two items were called together for public comment and discussion. During the public
comment there were many speakers, the vast majority of which were in support of increasing the

Jobs-housing linkage fee.

Supervisor Haney introduced amendments to the Jobs Housing Linkage fee ordinance that
phased in the fee increase. Projects with a complete application submitted on or before
September 10 would pay $57.14 per square foot, projects submitted after that date but before
January 1, 2022 would pay $63.37, and projects submitted after January 1, 2022 would pay the
full amount of $69.90.

The Committee then forwarded the item to the Full Board with a positive recommendation on a 2-
3 vote with Supervisor Safai voting against. Supervisor Safai stated that he wanted more time to
understand how the fee increase would impact development and had requested additional time
for that.

| would also note that in the report | sent to you this morning incudes additional information and

discussion about the report for your reference. (see below)

Full Board

190644 Planning Code - Landmark Designation - 2031 Bush Street (aka the Kinmon Gakuen
Building). Sponsors: Brown; Peskin. Staff: Ferguson. PASSED Second Read

181215 Administrative, Planning Codes - South of Market Community Advisory Committee.
Sponsor: Haney. Staff: Snyder. PASED Second Read

Introductions

And lastly Supervisor Peskin introduced an ordinance this week that would amend The City’s

planning code to add a new “residential use” characteristic, called “intermediate length



https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3971236&GUID=A428832F-894B-422B-978B-2D3C2EB28C32

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3971236&GUID=A428832F-894B-422B-978B-2D3C2EB28C32

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3781285&GUID=4CA074D8-7C52-4D79-9D71-4B6BDB42E344

https://sfgov.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=3781285&GUID=4CA074D8-7C52-4D79-9D71-4B6BDB42E344
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occupancy,” to define corporate rentals. This item has not been transmitted to us yet, but we will

be bringing it to you for your review and action.

Jobs-Housing Fit Report

The Budget & Legislative Analyst published a Policy Analysis Report on October 16 at the request of
Supervisor Gordon Mar that deals with the question of “Jobs-Housing Fit.” In simple terms, an analysis of
jobs-housing fit looks at both actual and projected job growth and compares that to actual and projected
housing production in terms of the wage levels of the jobs and the affordability levels of the housing. Such
analysis theoretically reveals quantitatively how well housing production matches the income profile of a

growing workforce.

Not surprisingly, and mirroring recent reports produced by the Planning Department, including the
Housing Needs & Trends Report published in July 2018, the BLA report found that job growth between
2010-2018 overall and at all wage levels dramatically outpaced housing production at all income levels,
though the BLA report focusses its energy on the shortfall of BMR units as compared to growth of low
wage jobs. The City added close to 200,000 jobs in this period and only 25,000 housing units were
produced, of which 25% were BMR. The lion’s share of job growth has been at the high end and the low
end. The report looked only at job data that blended SF with San Mateo County and so did not actually
produce a quantitative jobs-housing fit analysis of the past decade of SF job growth compared to SF
housing production. Similar analysis conducted by Planning using SF-specific information has shown that
in addition to severely falling short of meeting BMR housing needs, the City also has fallen far short of
producing market rate housing as compared to recent growth of high wage jobs and high income
households, whereby the City added over 60,000 high-income households in the past decade but only
produced about 18,000 market rate units, the result being that those households occupied existing

housing units.

The BLA report also attempted to project forward 10 years, showing that, according to their analysis,
projected job growth at the low wage end is substantially higher than the current pipeline of entitled BMR
units and that the pipeline of market rate units exceeds future job growth projections of high wage jobs.
However there are substantial unresolved caveats and considerations with this analysis that Planning
should note for the Commission. First, the housing pipeline information presented by BLA was
substantially incorrect and not reflective of the pipeline data posted by the Department online, as well as
excluded consideration of all of the entitled large-scale DA projects. Second, the BLA forward-looking
analysis did not account for the shortfalls, at all income levels, of the past ten years’ of housing production

as compared to job growth, taking a position that we are starting from a neutral position. Finally, the
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projections are reliant on EDD projections that have not necessarily been compared with the actual

pipeline or projection of commercial development in SF.

Nevertheless, the indisputable conclusion of the report is that there has been insufficient construction of
BMR housing as measured by the growth of lower wage jobs. The report did not make any policy
recommendations about how the City could or should increase production of BMR units. The two
recommendations included:

1) That the BoS could request Planning to prepare an annual report comparing actual and projected
job and housing growth by income. At the hearing Supervisor Mar indicated his intention to
introduce legislation to do exactly that. Planning looks forward to working with Supervisor Mar
and the Commission when and if this legislation is submitted.

2) That the BoS could request MOHCD to more closely track the use of JHL revenues to construct

affordable housing and report annually to the BoS.

The report was presented as a prelude to the Jobs Housing Linkage Fee hearing, and they were called

together as one item for public comment and discussion.
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